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I. Letter to Shareholders 

2023 is a challenging year. The global economy is gradually recovering from the pandemic, but climate 
disasters are becoming more common, regional wars are still ongoing, and geopolitical tensions remain. 
Inflation in developed economies around the world has slowed down significantly, but interest rates still 
remain high. The pace of economic recovery in China, which has an enormous impact on the 
development of the global market, has been slowed down. The declining economy in overall domestic 
manufacturing such as capital equipment has led private enterprises to adopt a prudent approach to 
investment. Confronting various challenges to economic growth and development, GrandTech C.G. 
Systems Inc. adjusted its business policies and strived to reduce the impact of external factors in order 
to strengthen operating performances. 
Here is a further explanation of the overview of business operations in 2023: 
 
(I) 2023 Operation Overview 
 

A. 2023 Business Plan Implementation Results 

With efforts from all of the group’s business teams to improve revenue performance and 
profitability, the consolidated annual revenue was NT$ 5,210,306,000 in 2023 (the same 
below), the operating income was NT$ 361,302,000, and the net income before tax was 
NT$ 419,179,000. However, since the implementation of the CFC system in 2023, the 
income tax has been levied on the overseas companies held by the group, which affected 
the overall profitability performance. The net income after tax attributed to the parent 
company was NT$245,089,000, and the net income after tax per share was NT$ 3.95. 
 

Relevant data may be referred to for the profit or loss in the same period as below: 
Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Item 
Year 2023 2022 Increase 

(Decrease) 

YoY Rate 
increase 

(decrease) 
Operating Revenue 5,210,306 5,286,819 -76,513 -1% 

Operating Income 361,302 427,561 -66,259 -15% 

Net Income Before Tax 419,179 468,343 -49,164 -10% 

Net Income After Tax 313,360 389,412 -76,052 -20% 

Net Income After Tax of the Parent 
company 245,089 320,201 -75,112 -23% 

Earnings per Share After Tax (NT$) 3.95 5.49 -1.54 -28% 

 
Overall, business users and digital printing clients have extended the evaluation time for 
capital expenditures, which affects the overall revenue and profit performance. The 
group’s strategy development of growth promoted the revenue of cloud services and 
digital printing services through a new business model, which emphasized the advantages 
of operator in the group. As a result, it has boosted the proportion of the recurrent income 
of the group with an annual increase of 14%. 
 
GrandTech focuses on an advantageous growth strategy. We ensure that business clients 
have achieved Customer Success efficiently with our service by increasing cloud-based 
value-added operations and digital printing services, continuously expanding the 



2 

percentage of ARR (Annual Recurring Revenue), promoting the comprehensive growth 
of business clients, developing service in various business groups with our advantages in 
order to enhance the Customer Lifetime Value of the Company. 
 
Long-term development and sustainable operations are our goals. The cloud service and 
digital printing business are the dual engines of growth of the corporate group. We have 
to increase investment in IaaS infrastructure and related services, as well as optimize the 
value-added system of cloud services. In addition, we must strengthen the 
competitiveness of the team, cultivating new markets diligently to meet customer needs, 
and continuing to network and cooperate with domestic and overseas start-up companies 
through strategic alliances, expanding the Greater SEA overseas market and building a 
powerful transnational cloud ecosystem to satisfy client needs. 

 
Printing technology is advancing under the trend of digital intelligence. Digital 
equipment and intelligence management are gaining influence. Digital intelligence brings 
the business opportunities of industrial restructuring by way of disruptive innovation. 
GrandTech is well aware that to seize such great business opportunities, requires 
commitment to cultivating and choosing the right clients to enable the power of digital 
printing and the capability of selling products to the global market. It is this way we will 
expand the business territory of our clients. Revolutionary innovations in smart 
packaging, labels, and material applications are also required. Moreover, in utilizing the 
business opportunity of the internet economy driven by one item, one QR code for various 
packaging, we can therefore provide small amounts, various selections, and mass 
customization services for the market. We are expanding in the local market in Taiwan at 
a steady pace, and are heading towards the world across borders with our clients and 
partners to establish a circle of sustainable management.  
 
The domestic and overseas investment subsidiaries of GrandTech utilize their business 
advantages and continue to grow. We provide our business clients with cybersecurity-
related integration services and solutions that have gained recognition in the international 
cybersecurity industry, aimed at market expansion in various fields, such as education, 
telecommunications, and logistics, not only establishing a solid backup force for 
corporate operations but also providing comprehensive support for client businesses to 
be successful. 
 

B. 2023 budget implementation status: The Company is not required to publicize the financial 
forecast and therefore it is not applicable. 

 
C. Analysis of financial income and expenses and profitability: 
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2023 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 
Analysis Item Parent company Group 

Revenue and 
expenditure 

Operating Income 412,362 5,210,306 
Gross Profit 124,988 827,392 
Net Income 245,089 313,360 

Profitability 

Return on Assets % 9% 11% 

Return on Equity % 18% 19% 

Profit Before Tax to Capital Stock % 46% 68% 

Operating Income to Capital % 8% 58% 

Net Profit Margin % 59% 6% 

EPS (NT$) 3.95 3.95 
 

D. Research and development status: In order to strengthen its service advantages, the group has set 
up a research and development unit to develop client value-added service platform systems and 
provide optimized management and analysis, and other additional online services. 

 
(II) 2024 Buisness Plan 

 
A. Business policy 

1. Adhere to the core value of “Entrepreneurs’ Paradise” to build an entrepreneurial 
leadership management platform, and continue to strengthen financial support, risk 
management, mentor consultation, experience and resource sharing, and 
performance supervision. 

2. Introduce “Internet+” and infuse innovative thinking into operations and the 
management platform to expand the business scale and increase operational 
performance. 

3. Facing the challenges of market changes and industry shifts with the spirit of 
“Entrepreneurship and Innovation” to establish sustainable development in the 
company’s foundations.  

4. Extend the thinking of new clients with an international perspective, market-leading 
insights, and innovative management models to improve clients’ satisfaction and 
grow with customers, developing a “clients are our partners” business circle and 
model.  

B. Estimated sales amount: The Company is not required to publicize the financial 
forecast and therefore it is not applicable. 

 
(III) Future Development Strategy 
 

With a sound financial structure and management, GrandTech promotes cross-regional 
cooperation plans and pursues maximum business profits. As a pioneering company, we 
leverage our advantages, focusing on the provision of multi-cloud value-added services 
and other IaaS and SaaS services to expand the deployment of overseas markets and 
recruit new start-up businesses as clients with great potential to enter the global market. 
Choosing the right clients in digital printing empowers the applications of innovative 
technologies of digital printing in various fields in different ways, enabling us not only 
to grow rapidly in the global market but also to establish strategic partnerships with 
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clients and enhance customer loyalty and success. Our aim is also to expand the business 
scale and increase operational performance. Through external investments and mergers, 
we are able to introduce potential businesses and services, recruit talent with 
entrepreneurial characteristics, and increase the proportion of business mergers to 
actively expand the group’s territory and increase profit. 
 

(IV) Impact of External Competitive Environment, Regulatory Environment, and Overall 
Economic Environment 

 
In 2023, although facing the global economic downturn, inflation significantly affects the 
overall market purchasing power, companies are conservative in their expansion, which 
may reduce their IT expenditures and postpone project procurement.  With the 
development of AI, blockchain and other technologies, electronic technology has 
benefited from the AI trend, and the semiconductor market has gradually improved, which 
may hopefully drive overall economic growth. Enterprises may continue to invest in IT, 
focusing on maintaining operating energy. National development not only needs to 
observe the changes in the international political and economic situation but also attaches 
importance to the subsequent performance of economic growth. In addition to the support 
of private consumption, we expect that the government will facilitate policies to promote 
investment, strengthen domestic demand, and assist in the transformation and innovation 
of business clients. The advantages of these possibilities are evident and can continue to 
maintain competitiveness in adversity. 
 
Regarding the regulatory environment, the company has completely adopted the IFRS 
(International Financial Reporting Standards), and complies with the relevant regulations 
of the competent authority to disclose information in a timely manner. 
 
GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. sincerely appreciates the long-term support and positive 
recognition of all shareholders so that we can focus on building a better operating 
foundation and continue to progress. Although the recovery of the global economy is still 
difficult and full of challenges, we are committed to our original aim and enthusiasm to 
implement lean management in group businesses, leading our employees to achieve their 
goals together, and make great contributions that add value to our shareholders and 
society. We believe that GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. will write another new page in 
2024 and sincerely ask our shareholders to continue supporting and encouraging us. 
 
Thank you! 

 

 

 

 

Chairman: HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 

General Manager: NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 
Chief Accounting Officer: HUANG, SHU-CHEN 
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II. Company Profile   

(I) Date of Incorporation: July 27, 1991. 
(II) Company History 

May 2000  The Securities and Futures Commission approved the issuance of new shares by the 
Company to complete a public offering, and the Company began the TPEx listed 
guidance operation. 

Jan. 2002  The stock was listed in TPEx in Taiwan. 
Dec. 2011 
Jun. 2014 
 
Mar. 2015 
 
 
Apr. 2015 
 
Jan. 2016 
 
Jun. 2016 
 
Feb. 2017 
 
Aug. 2017 
Sep. 2017 
 
 
 
Mar. 2019 

 A Remuneration Committee was established. 
 The Company invested in Netcore Network Communication Corp., and expanded 

the network communication layout with Juniper, Aruba, and A10. 
 The Company invested in DPI Technology, a Malaysian company, and obtained 

52% of its equity, to expand the digital printing business to the Southeast Asian 
market. 

 The Company obtained the exclusive agency of ADOBE software in Hong Kong 
and Macao. 

 The Company obtained 55% of equity of Senco-Masslink Technology Limited, a 
Hong Kong based company. 

 The Shareholders’ Meeting reelected directors, and established and Audit 
Committee. 

 The Board of Directors passed a resolution to appoint Mr. HSU, CHENG-
CHIANG (founder of GrandTech Group) as the chairman. 

 GrandTech Cloud Services were established. 
 The Company established GrandTech HP Indigo Endless Possibilities Center of 

Excellence (HP Indigo Authorized Training Center) in Zhonghe District, New 
Taipei City, to promote digital printing integration solutions and talent upgrading 
training for the industry. 

 GrandTech Cloud Services (GCS), an invested company, passed ISO 27001 
Information Security Certification. 

Apr. 2019 
 
Nov. 2019 
 
 
Jul. 2020 
 
Aug. 2021 
 
 
Sep. 2021 
Apr. 2022 
 
Nov. 2022 
 

 GrandTech Cloud Services (GCS), an invested company, marched towards a new 
milestone, and was awarded with AWS MSP Partner Certification. 

 The Company signed “Intelligent Packaging & Innovative Blue Ocean” 
Cooperation Plan with TCI (8643) to comprehensively set foot in the field of 
packaging intelligence. 

 The Company obtained the dealership of HP 3D printing products to jointly 
promote the new opportunities of intelligent manufacturing. 

 Subsidiary GrandTech Cloud signed a memorandum of understanding with 
Headline Asia, a venture capital company, to accelerate the matchmaking of 
business opportunities of entrepreneurial ecology system through cooperation. 

 Subsidiary GrandTech Cloud became an elite partner of Google Cloud. 
  The Company joined hands with an internal venture capital company called AC 

Ventures to speed up the scale growth of innovative ecology in the Southeast Asia. 
 The Company increased its capital by NT$ 220,500,000 in cash and issued 

4,500,000 new shares. After capital increase, the capital of the Company reached 
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Feb. 2023 
 
Feb. 2023 

NT$ 620,894,000. 
 The Board of Directors passed a resolution to appoint Mr. NGOI, MIEW- HUAT 

as the president of the Company. 
 Subsidiary GrandTech Cloud became a Google Workspace Premier Partner and a 

global sales service partner of Workspace 
 Subsidiary GrandTech Cloud became a Google Workspace for Education Partner. 
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III. Corporate Governance Report 

(I) Organization 

A. Organization Chart 

1. Organizational Chart 
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2. Business activities of main divisions 

Department Functions 
Audit Committee Supervise the following matters as the primary objectives based on the authorization of the 

Board of Directors: 
1. Fair presentation of the financial statements of the Company 
2. Selection (dismissal) of CPAs, and their independence and performance 
3. Effective implementation for the internal control of the Company 
4. Compliance of the Company with relevant laws, regulations, and rules 
5. Control of the existing or potential risks of the Company 

Corporate 
Governance and 
Nomination 
Committee 

1. Review and evaluate the soundness of corporate governance organizations and systems, and 
formulate regulations of corporate governance and committee. 

2. Recommend to the Board of Directors proposed nominees for election to the Board and 
review their qualifications. 

3. Formulate and review the establishment, duties and operations of the committees under the 
Board, and review the qualifications and potential conflicts of interest of the members of the 
committees. 

4. Plan and implement the continuing education program for directors. 
5. Other matters instructed by the Board of Directors. 

Remuneration 
Committee 

1. Establish and periodically review the performance evaluation of directors, supervisors, 
and managers, as well as remuneration policies, determination, standards, and 
structure. 

2. Periodically evaluate and determine remuneration for directors, supervisors, and managers. 
Auditing Office 1. Investigate and evaluate the absence of internal control system and measure the operating 

efficiency. 
2. Make suggestions on improvement as appropriate, to ensure the continual, effective 

implementation of the internal control. 
3. Assist the Board of Directors and the management in practically performing their 

responsibilities. 

Chairman’s Office 
1. Take charge of domestic and overseas project support, public relations, and other relevant 

matters of the Group as aids and staff of the enterprise. 
2. Provide operation analysis information. 

Corporate Strategic & 
New Business 
Management Dept. 

1. Provide operation analysis information, and manage overseas subsidiaries as well as 
domestic and overseas invested companies of the Group. 

2. Enterprise finance system maintenance, capital application, investment application planning, 
finance and stock affairs planning, and dispatch management. 

3. Accounting treatment. 
4. Take charge of credit limit, legal affairs management of each business division and human 

resources planning. 
SaaS & Distribution 
Business Group 

1. Take charge of planning the marketing of all series of products through the Company’s 
channels, executing and evaluating product agency, product commercialization, market 
analysis, and marketing activities, and managing market expansion, development, and 
channels. 

2. Take charge of planning the marketing of enterprise application software, and executing and 
evaluating product agency, product commercialization, market analysis, marketing 
activities., etc. 

Intelligent Printing 
Services Group 

1. Evaluate and market diversified variable digital printing products as an agent, including 
marketing planning for introduction of products to the market, business operation, and all-
around after-sales services. 

2. Provide cross-border cooperation solutions for industrial customers, e.g., digital printing 
equipment used in the printing industry, the Internet, or brand owners, technical and 
industrial application solutions, as well as relevant industry procedure planning and 
purchasing related to one-stop and customization-like printing services. 

3. Provide customers with consulting services involving professional planning of introduction 
of printing production procedures and products as well as marketing and execution. 

4. Establish GrandTech HP Indigo Endless Possibilities Center of Excellence (COE) to 
cultivate professional technical talents, and provide OP training courses and technical 
certification in the industry of digital printing. 
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Department Functions 
Cloud Service 
Business Group 

1. Consulting: Provide all-around professional technical and consulting services to facilitate a 
better understanding of enterprises for cloud transfer, cloud requirements, and cloud 
structure planning. 

2. Security monitoring: The information security experts of the Company assist the inspection 
of the security settings and policies of AWS, and provide security information protection to 
ensure the compliance of settings and policies with commercial requirements. Also, they 
standardize and help enterprises strengthen information security compliance and standards. 

3. SaaS services: Provide the infrastructure of AWS, i.e., IaaS and SaaS, and offer more 
experienced and professional services in multiple fields including image processing, website 
design, game, office applications, and customer support. 
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3.  Profile of directors 
(1) Professional qualifications and independence analysis of directors and independent directors: 

Condition 

 

 

 

Name 

Professional qualifications and 
experience 

Independence status 

Number of 
other public 
companies 
where the 
director 
holds a 

concurrent 
post of 

independent 
director 

HSU, 
CHENG-
CHIANG 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the chairman and 
CEO of the Company, and not involved 
in any situation stipulated in Article 30 
of the Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the Company held by 
director himself/herself, spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship (or in the name of others) as of 
April 30, 2024: 2,098,373 shares and 3.38% 
Other conditions complying with independence principle 
are shown in Note 1. 

0 

NGOI, MIEW-
HUAT 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the senior vice-
president of the Company, and not 
involved in any situation stipulated in 
Article 30 of the Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the Company held by 
director himself/herself, spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship (or in the name of others) as of 
April 30, 2024: 425,004 shares and 0.68% 
Other conditions complying with independence principle 
are shown in Note 1. 

0 

Longwei Co., 
Ltd. 
representative: 
CHUANG, 
TZU-HUA 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the chairman of 
Longwei Co., Ltd., and not involved in 
any situation stipulated in Article 30 of 
the Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the Company held by 
director himself/herself, spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship (or in the name of others) as of 
April 30, 2024: 2,750,964 shares and 4.43% 
Other conditions complying with independence principle 
are shown in Note 1. 

0 

LIU, YAO-
YUAN 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the president of 
Chief Telecom, and not involved in any 
situation stipulated in Article 30 of the 
Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the Company held by 
director himself/herself, spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship (or in the name of others) as of 
April 30, 2024: 111,000 shares and 0.18% 
Other conditions complying with independence principle 
are shown in Note 1. 

0 

HUANG, LI-
AN 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the director of 
Ability Enterprise Co., Ltd., and not 
involved in any situation stipulated in 
Article 30 of the Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the Company held by 
director himself/herself, spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship (or in the name of others) as of 
April 30, 2024: 0 shares and 0.00% 
Other conditions complying with independence principle 
are shown in Note 1. 

0 

YANG, JUNG-
KUNG 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the director of 
WRAP, and not involved in any 
situation stipulated in Article 30 of the 
Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the Company held by 
director himself/herself, spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship (or in the name of others) as of 
April 30, 2024: 0 shares and 0.00% 
Other conditions complying with independence principle 
are shown in Note 1. 

0 



13 

LIN, TE-JUI 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the law professor of 
National Chung Cheng University, and 
not involved in any situation stipulated 
in Article 30 of the Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the Company held by 
director himself/herself, spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship (or in the name of others) as of 
April 30, 2024: 180,626 shares and 0.29% 
Other conditions complying with independence principle 
are shown in Note 1. 

1 

CHEN, WEI-
YU 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as a CPA partner of 
JYH HER CPAs, and not involved in 
any situation stipulated in Article 30 of 
the Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the Company held by 
director himself/herself, spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship (or in the name of others) as of 
April 30, 2024: 0 shares and 0.00% 
Other conditions complying with independence principle 
are shown in Note 1. 

2 

CHEN, SU-
LAN 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the chairman of 
Business Next Publishing Corporation, 
and not involved in any situation 
stipulated in Article 30 of the Company 
Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the Company held by 
director himself/herself, spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship (or in the name of others) as of 
April 30, 2024: 0 shares and 0.00% 
Other conditions complying with independence principle 
are shown in Note 1. 

0 

Note 1. Compliance with independence status: All members of the Board of Directors comply with the independence status, 
including but not limited to the followings: Whether the director, his/her spouse, and relatives within the second degree 
of kinship have served as director, supervisor, or employee of the Company or its affiliated companies; number and 
ratio of shares held by the director, his/her spouse, and relatives within the second degree of kinship (or in the name 
of others); whether the director serves as director, supervisor, or employee of any company that has a specific relation 
with the Company (compliance with the provisions of subparagraphs 5~8, Article 3-1 of Regulations Governing 
Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies); amount of reward obtained 
from the Company or its affiliated companies in the last two years for the services provided to them, including 
commerce, legal affairs, finance, and accounting. 

 
4. Diversity and independence of the Board of Directors: 

a. Diversity of the Board of Directors: The Board of Directors of the Company currently consists 
of 9 directors, including 4 non-exclusive directors, 2 male independent directors, 1 female 
independent director, and 2 executive directors (CEO HSU, CHENG-CHIANG, and senior 
vice-president NGOI, MIEW- HUAT). In addition to sufficient experience in corporate 
governance and industry technical experience, directors possess professional knowledge, 
skills, industry experience, and expertise that cover multiple levels including finance and 
accounting, technology, and management. 

b. Independence of the Board of Directors: A candidate nomination system is adopted for 
election and appointment of directors in accordance with the provisions of “Articles of 
Association” of the Company. Upon nomination and selection of the members of the Board 
of Directors, relevant materials including written declaration have been acquired from each 
director, and the directors have no spousal relationship, or kinship within the second degree 
with each other, and they maintain their independence within the scope of business executed. 
Also, they do not have a direct or indirect stake in the Company. 

 
5. Overall capacity required of the diversity policy of the Board members and implementation of the 

policy: 
a. In order to strengthen corporate governance and promote the sound development of the 

constitution and structure of the Board of Directors, the Company has adjusted “Diversity 
Policy of Members of the Board of Directors” in accordance with Article 20 of “Corporate 
Governance Best Practice Principles”. It is indicated in this policy that: A variety of 
requirements including the Company’s operation structure, business development direction, 
and future development trends should be considered for the constitution of the Board of 
Directors, and various diversity aspects should be better evaluated, e.g., basic constitution 
(e.g., gender, age, etc.), and professional experience. 
(a) Diversity policy for constitution of the Board members 
The members of the Board of Directors should be diversified, and an appropriate diversity 
policy should be drafted based on the corporate operation, business types and development 
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demands. It is advisable to include but not limited to the standards regarding the following 
two aspects: 
Basic conditions and values: Gender, age, nationality, culture, etc. 
Professional knowledge and skills: Professional background (e.g., law, accounting, industry, 
finance, marketing, or technology), professional skills, industry experience, etc. The 
members of the Board of Directors shall generally possess the knowledge, skills and quality 
needed for execution of their duties. To achieve the ideal goal of corporate governance, the 
Board of Directors shall have the following abilities as a whole: 
Operation judgment capabilities 
Accounting and financial analysis capabilities  
Operation management capabilities 
Crisis handling capabilities  
Industrial knowledge 
Outlook on international market  
Leadership 
Decision-making capabilities. 

 
b. Implementation status 

The current Board of Directors consists of 9 directors. The general directors have important 
management experience as directors or presidents of TWSE/TPEx listed companies. In 
addition to the practical experience of management of operating enterprises, all these general 
directors have the leadership, decision-making capabilities, crisis handling capabilities, and 
outlook on international market. Among 3 independent directors, CHEN, WEI-YU has a 
qualification of CPA, LIN, TE-JUI is a law professor of National Chung Cheng University, 
and CHEN, SU-LAN is the CEO of Business Next Publishing Corporation. Therefore, all of 
them have the expertise in the fields of finance and accounting, practical legal affairs, 
industrial knowledge, and operation judgment capabilities. The Company attaches 
importance to the gender equality in the constitution of the Board of Directors, and aims to 
improve the ratio of seats held by female directors to 22% and above. Currently, the male 
members account for 89% (8 directors) and the male member accounts for 11% (1 director) 
in the Board of Directors. In the future, the Company will strive to increase the number of 
female directors in order to achieve the goal. 

The diversity of members of the Board of Directors is shown in the following table: 
Diversity item 

 
 
 
 
 
Name 

Basic constitution Industrial experience Professional competence  
N

ationality 

 
G

ender 

Serving as a 
concurrent 

em
ployee of the 
C

om
pany 

 
O

peration 
developm

ent 

O
peration 

m
anagem

ent 

International 
m

arket 

U
niversity or 

college lecturer 

 
C

om
m

erce 

Law
 

A
ccounting 

 R
isk m

anagem
ent 

HSU, 
CHENG- 
CHIANG 

R.O.C. Male V V V V  V   V 

NGOI, MIEW- 
HUAT Malaysia Male V V V V  V   V 

Longwei Co., 
Ltd. 
Representative: 
CHUANG, 
TZU- HUA 

 

R.O.C. 

 

Male 

  

V 

 

V 

   

V 

   

V 

LIU, YAO-
YUAN 

R.O.C. Male  V V V  V  V V 

HUANG, LI-AN R.O.C. Male  V V V  V   V 
YANG, JUNG- 
KUNG 

R.O.C. Male  V V V  V   V 

LIN, TE-JUI R.O.C. Male     V  V  V 
CHEN, WEI-YU R.O.C. Male   V     V V 
CHEN, SU-LAN R.O.C. Fema

le 
 V V V  V   V 
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6. Independence of the Board of Directors: A candidate nomination system is adopted for election and 
appointment of directors in accordance with the provisions of “Articles of Association” of the Company. 
Upon nomination and selection of the members of the Board of Directors, relevant materials including 
written declaration have been acquired from each director, and the directors have no spousal relationship, 
or kinship within the second degree with each other. All independent directors, their spouses, and 
relatives within the second degree of kinship haven’t held any shares of the Company, and maintained 
their independence within the scope of business executed. Also, they do not have a direct or indirect 
stake in the Company.
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(III). Implementation of corporate governance 

A. Operations of the Board of Directors 
total of 6 (A) meetings of the Board of Directors were held in the most recent fiscal year. The 
attendance of the directors is as follows: 

Title Name Attendance in 
person (B) By Proxy Attendance rate 

(%) Remark 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 6 0 100% - 
Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 6 0 100% - 

Director 
Longwei Investment Co., Ltd. 
representative：CHUANG, 

TZU-HUA 
6 0 100% - 

Director HUANG, LI-AN 6 0 100% - 
Director LIU, YAO-YUAN 6 0 100% - 
Director YANG, JUNG-KUNG 6 0 100% - 

Independent 
Director LIN, TE-JUI 6 0 100% - 

Independent 
Director CHEN, WEI-YU 6 0 100% - 

Independent 
Director CHEN, SU-LAN 6 0 100% - 

Other matters to be recorded: 
1. If any of the following circumstances occur, the dates of the meetings, sessions, contents of motion, 

all independent directors’ opinions and the Company’s response should be specified: 
(1) Matters referred to in Article 14-3 of the Securities and Exchange Act:  

Date Content of motion Proposal 
All 

independent 
directors’ 
opinions 

4th and 5th meetings 
in 2023 
August 10, 2023 

1. Proposal for consolidated financial statements of Q2 2023 
2. Proposal for profit distribution of Q2 2023 Approved N/A 

6th meeting in 2023 
 
November 3, 2023 

1. Proposal for consolidated financial statements of Q3 2023 
2. Proposal for profit distribution of Q3 2023 
3. Proposal for liability insurance of directors and important employees  
4. Proposal for audit plan of 2023 
5. Proposal for appointment of the Company’s information security 

manager 
6. Proposal for appointment of Corporate Governance and Nomination 

Committee Members 
7. Proposal for lending funds to subsidiaries 

Approved N/A 

1st Meeting in 2024 
 
March 7, 2024 

1. Proposal for distribution of employee remuneration and director 
remuneration of 2023 

2. Proposal for financial statements and consolidated financial statements 
of 2023 

3. Proposal for profit distribution of 2023 
4. Proposal for effectiveness assessment of internal control system of 2023 

and Declaration of Internal Control System 
5. Proposal for discussion of the handling of share dilution work of a 

subsidiary and waiver of participation in the cash capital increase plan 
of this subsidiary by the Company and companies controlled by or 
subordinate to the Company to coordinate with this subsidiary’s 
application for TPEx stock listing plan in the future 

6. Proposal for amendment to the corporate organizational structure 
7. Proposal for lending funds to subsidiaries 
8. Proposal for change of audit manager of the Company 

Approved N/A 

2nd Meeting in 2024 
April 25, 2024 

1. Proposal for lending funds to subsidiaries 
2. Proposal for handling of capital decrease in cash of subsidiaries Approved N/A 

3rd Meeting in 2024 
 
3 May, 2024 
 

1. Proposal for consolidated financial statements of Q1 2024 
2. Proposal for profit distribution of Q1 2024 
3. Proposal for distribution of employee remuneration and director 

remuneration of 2023 
4. Proposal for disposition of stock of subsidiaries 

Approved N/A 

(2) Other matters involving objections or expressed reservations by independent directors that were 
recorded or stated in writing that require a resolution by the Board of Directors: None.  

(3) Regarding recusals of directors from voting due to conflicts of interests, the names of the directors, 
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contents of motions, reasons for recusal, and results of the voting shall be specified: 

Date Content of proposal Recusing 
personnel 

Reason of 
recusal for 
conflict of 

interest 

Voting status 

November 
3, 2023 

1. Proposal for appointment 
of the Company’s 
information security 
manager 

2. Proposal for appointment 
of Corporate Governance 
and Nomination 
Committee Members 

 
 
 

NGOI, MIEW-
HUAT 
HSU, CHENG-
CHIANG, 
CHEN, WEI-
YU,  
LIN, TE-JUI 

This proposal 
involved their 
own interests, 
and they left for 
recusal. 

Except directors who recused for conflict 
of interest, all other attending directors 
raised on objection, and the proposal was 
passed as submitted. 

May 3, 
2024 

Proposal for distribution of 
employee remuneration and 
director remuneration of 2023 

HSU, CHENG-
CHIANG, 
NGOI, MIEW-
HUAT, LIU, 
YAO-YUAN, 
CHUANG, TZU-
HUA, HUANG, 
LI-AN, YANG, 
JUNG-KUNG 

This proposal 
involved their 
own interests, 
and they left for 
recusal. 

Except directors who recused for conflict 
of interest, all other attending directors 
raised on objection, and the proposal was 
passed as submitted. 

2. Objectives for the strengthening of the functionality of the Board of Directors in the current year and 
the most recent fiscal year (e.g., establishment of the Audit Committee, and enhancement of 
information transparency), and evaluation of implementation status: 

(1) Functionality objective of the Board of Directors 
In order to implement corporate governance, improve supervision functions, and strengthen the 
management mechanism, the Company has all independent directors form the Audit Committee 
to strengthen the functionality of the Board of Directors in accordance with the provisions of 
Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act. 

(2) Evaluation of implementation status: The Company has established Remuneration Committee and 
Audit Committee to assist the Board of Directors in executing its duties. Also, sticking to the 
principle of operation transparency, the Company would release major messages and disclose 
relevant information in the MOPS to safeguard shareholders’ rights and interests on the present 
days after end of meetings of the Board of Directors in accordance with “Procedures of Taipei 
Exchange for Investigation and Public Handling of Major Information of TPEx Listed Securities 
Companies”. 

3. Implementation status of evaluation of the Board of Directors and functional committees: 
The Auditing Office is assigned as the unit responsible for executing the internal performance 
evaluation of the Board of Directors and each functional committee of the Company. The Company 
has established “Performance Evaluation of the Board of Directors” to conduct evaluation work at the 
end of each year, and quantify the evaluation using evaluation indicators. The evaluation results shall 
be concluded prior to the end of the first quarter of next year, and submitted to the Board of Directors. 
The evaluation results are as follows, and have been presented and reported to the meeting of the Board 
of Directors on March 7, 2024. 

Frequency Period Scope Method Content Evaluation 
Result 

Once a 
year 

January 1, 
2023 to 
December 
31, 2023 

Board 
meeting 

Self-
evaluation 

Degree of participation in the corporate 
operation, improvement in the 
decision-making quality of the Board of 
Directors, constitution and structure of 
the Board of Directors, election and 
continuing education of directors, and 
internal control 

Questionnaire 
for performance 
evaluation: 4.82 
(out of 5). 

Once a 
year 

January 1, 
2023 to 
December 
31, 2023 

Individual 
members 
of the 
Board 

Self-
evaluation 

Mastery of corporate goals and 
missions, awareness of directors’ 
responsibilities, degree of participation 
in the corporate operation, operation 
and communication of internal 
relations, expertise and continuing 
education of directors, and internal 

Questionnaire 
of performance 
evaluation: 4.87 
(out of 5). 
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control 
Once a 
year 

January 1, 
2023 to 
December 
31, 2023 

Evaluation 
of the 
performan
ce of the 
Audit 
Committe
e 

Self-
evaluation 

Degree of participation in the corporate 
operation, improvement in the 
decision-making quality of the Board of 
Directors, constitution and structure of 
the Board of Directors, election and 
continuing education of directors, and 
internal control 

Questionnaire 
of performance 
evaluation: 4.93 
(out of 5). 

Once a 
year 

January 1, 
2023 to 
December 
31, 2023 

Remunera
tion 
Committe
e 
Performan
ce 
Evaluation 

Self-
evaluation 

Degree of participation in the corporate 
operation, improvement in the 
decision-making quality of the Board of 
Directors, constitution and structure of 
the Board of Directors, election and 
continuing education of directors, and 
internal control 

Questionnaire 
of performance 
evaluation: 4.93 
(out of 5). 

 
4. Objectives for the strengthening of the functionality of the Board of Directors in the current year and 

the most recent fiscal year, and evaluation of implementation status: 
(1) Strengthening of corporate governance: The Company has already established Remuneration 

Committee and Audit Committee in accordance with relevant laws and regulations to evaluate and 
suggest on the remuneration policies adopted for the directors and managers of the Company, as 
well as the corporate operation in a professional and objective position so that the Board of 
Directors may use them as reference for decision-making. 

(2) Improvement of information transparency: The Company sticks to the principle of operation 
transparency, and would release major messages and disclose relevant information in the MOPS 
to safeguard shareholders’ rights and interests on the present days after end of meetings of the 
Board of Directors in accordance with “Procedures of Taipei Exchange for Investigation and 
Public Handling of Major Information of TPEx Listed Securities Companies”. 

 
B. Operation of the Audit Committee or attendance of supervisors at Board Meetings: 

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of 3 independent directors, and is responsible for fair 
presentation of the financial statements of the Company, selection (dismissal) of CPAs, and their 
independence and performance, effective implementation fo the internal control of the Company, 
compliance of the Company with relevant laws, regulations, and rules, and control of the existing or 
potential risks of the Company. 
Total of 5 (A) meetings of the Audit Committee were held in the most recent fiscal year.  
The attendance of independent directors as a nonvoting party is as follows: 

Title Name Attendance in 
Person (B) By Proxy Attendance rate (%) 

(B/A) Remark 

Convener CHEN, WEI-YU 5 0 100% - 
Committee 

member LIN, TE-JUI 5 0 100% - 

Committee 
member CHEN, SU-LAN 5 0 100% - 

Other matters to be recorded: 
1. With regard to the implementation of the Audit Committee, if any of the following circumstances 

occur, the dates, terms of the meetings, contents of motions, all Audit Committee resolutions, 
and the Company’s handling of such resolutions shall be specified: 
(1) Matters referred to in Article 14-5 of the Securities and Exchange Act: 

Date  
Contents of motions 

Audit 
Committee 
resolutions 

The 
Company’s 
handling of 

Audit 
Committee’s 
resolutions 

4th meeting in 
2023 
August 10, 2023 

1. Proposal for consolidated financial statements of Q2 2023 
2. Proposal for profit distribution of Q2 2023 Approved N/A 

5th meeting in 
2023 
November 3, 2023 

1. Proposal for Consolidated Financial Statements of Q3 2023 
2. Proposal for profit distribution of Q3 2023 
3. Proposal for audit plan of 2023 
4. Proposal for lending funds to subsidiaries 

Approved N/A 



 

24 

1st Meeting in 
2024 
March 7, 2024 

1. Proposal for distribution of employee remuneration and director 
remuneration of 2023 

2. Proposal for Financial Statements and Consolidated Financial 
Statements of 2023 

3. Proposal for profit distribution of 2023 
4. Proposal for effectiveness assessment of internal control system of 

2023 and Declaration of Internal Control System 
5. Proposal for amendment to the corporate organizational structure 
6. Proposal for lending funds to subsidiaries 
7. Proposal for change of audit manager of the Company 

Approved N/A 

2nd Meeting in 
2024 
April 25, 2024 

1. Proposal for lending funds to subsidiaries 
2. Proposal for handling of capital decrease in cash of subsidiaries Approved N/A 

3rd Meeting in 
2024 
May 3, 2024 

1. Proposal for consolidated financial statements of Q1 2024 
2. Proposal for profit distribution of Q1 2024 
3. Proposal for waiver of stock of subsidiaries 

Approved N/A 

Resolution results  All attending committee members approved the proposals as submitted without any 
objection. 

(2) Other matters which were not approved by the Audit Committee but were approved by two-thirds 
or more of all directors: None. 

 
2. Regarding recusals of independent directors from voting due to conflicts of interests, the names of 

the independent directors, contents of motions, reasons for recusal, and results of the voting shall be 
specified: None. 
 

3. Communications between the independent directors, the Company’s chief internal auditor and CPAs 
(1) During internal audit, the audit report is submitted to each independent director for review, and 

major audit findings are also reported to the Board of Directors. 
(2) The Company summarizes and lists relevant information regarding the governance matters 

involved in the audit or review of its financial report, and then communicates it with the Audit 
Committee in writing every quarter; independent directors may attend relevant meetings of the 
Audit Committee as a nonvoting party to discuss and communicate relevant annual internal audit, 
audit results of financial report, key audit items, issues regarding the application of some 
accounting principles, and impact of newly amended laws and regulations. 
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 p
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 c
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l d
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 c
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 C
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 c
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 b
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fic

at
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 f
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re
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at
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 b
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 o
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 C
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 c
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m
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re
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 f
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 r
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at
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 d
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 C
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 c
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 o
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f D
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 m
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f D
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 p
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 d
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 d
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 d
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re
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 p
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 b
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r s
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 b
ut

 n
ot

 li
m

ite
d 

to
, 

sh
ar

eh
ol

de
rs

, 
em

pl
oy

ee
s, 

cu
st

om
er

s, 
an

d 
su

pp
lie

rs
) 

to
 r
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 p

ro
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r m
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at
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l c
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D
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 d
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 o
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ra
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. 

7.
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n 
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y 
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D
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C
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e 
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at
e 

w
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 b
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fin

an
ci

al
 s

ta
nd

in
gs

 a
nd

 th
e 

st
at

us
 

of
 c
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n 
di

sc
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 c
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 p
eo

pl
e 

to
 h

an
dl

e 
in

fo
rm

at
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, c
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 d
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w
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s o
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ye
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 d
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 m
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at
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t b
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at
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at
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 p
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re
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st
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de
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s’ 
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d 
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pe
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is

or
s’ 

tra
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in
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pl
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 r
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m

an
ag

em
en

t 
po

lic
ie

s 
an

d 
ris

k 
ev

al
ua

tio
n 

m
ea

su
re

s, 
th

e 
im

pl
em
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 c
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9.
 P
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ra
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 re
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 b
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 p
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t m
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 d
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 c
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ra
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4. Composition, duties and operations of the Remuneration Committee: 
1. To assist the Board of Directors in improving the performance remuneration system for directors, 

supervisors, and managers, and implement corporate governance, the Company established a 
Remuneration Committee in December 2021, and elected and selected persons with professional 
qualifications as members of this Remuneration Committee in accordance with the rules of 
organization for the Remuneration Committee. 

Qualification 
 

 
 

Name 
 

 
 

Title 

Professional qualification and 
experience Independence status (Note 1) 

Number of 
other public 
companies 
where the 
individual 

concurrently 
serves as a 

Remuneration 
Committee 

member 

Independent 
Director 

(Convener) 
LIN, TE-JUI 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the law professor of 
National Chung Cheng University, and 
not involved in any situation stipulated 
in Article 30 of the Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the 
Company held by director 
himself/herself, spouse, and relatives 
within the second degree of kinship 
(or in the name of others) as of April 
30, 2024: 180,626 shares and 0.29% 
Other conditions complying with 
independence principle are shown in 
Note 1. 

1 

Independent 
Director CHEN, WEI-YU 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as a CPA partner of 
JYH HER CPAs, and not involved in 
any situation stipulated in Article 30 of 
the Company Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the 
Company held by director 
himself/herself, spouse, and relatives 
within the second degree of kinship 
(or in the name of others) as of April 
30, 2024: 0 shares and 0.00% 
Other conditions complying with 
independence principle are shown in 
Note 1. 

1 

Independent 
Director CHEN, SU-LAN 

With over five years’ work experience 
required for corporate business, 
currently serving as the chairman of 
Business Next Publishing Corporation, 
and not involved in any situation 
stipulated in Article 30 of the Company 
Act. 

Number and ratio of shares of the 
Company held by director 
himself/herself, spouse, and relatives 
within the second degree of kinship 
(or in the name of others) as of April 
30, 2024: 0 shares and 0.00% 
Other conditions complying with 
independence principle are shown in 
Note 1. 

0 

Note 1: Compliance with independence status: All members of the Remuneration Committee comply with the independence 
status, including but not limited to the followings: Whether the director, his/her spouse, and relatives within the 
second degree of kinship have served as director, supervisor, or employee of the Company or its affiliated companies; 
number and ratio of shares held by the director, his/her spouse, and relatives within the second degree of kinship (or 
in the name of others); whether the director serves as director, supervisor, or employee of any company that has a 
specific relation with the Company (compliance with the provisions of subparagraphs 5~8, Article 3-1 of Regulations 
Governing Appointment of Independent Directors and Compliance Matters for Public Companies); amount of 
reward obtained from the Company or its affiliated companies in the last two years for the services provided to them, 
including commerce, legal affairs, finance, and accounting. 

 
2. Responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee: 

The functions of the Remuneration Committee are to evaluate and suggest on the remuneration 
policies and system adopted for the directors and managers of the Company in a professional and 
objective position so that the Board of Directors may use them as reference for decision-making. 
 

3. Operational status of the Remuneration Committee 
(1) The Company’s Remuneration Committee consists of 3 members. 
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(2) Term of office of members: From June 10, 2022 to June 9, 2025. The Remuneration Committee 
held 2 meetings (A) in the most recent year. The attendance of the members is as follows: 

Title Name Gender Attendance in 
Person (B) By Proxy Attendance rate (%) 

(B/A) Remark 

Convene
 

LIN, TE-JUI 2 0 100% - 
Member CHEN, WEI-YU 2 0 100% - 
Member CHEN, SU-LAN 2 0 100% - 
Other matters to be recorded: 
1. If the Board of Directors refuses to adopt or amend a recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the date of 

the meeting, session, the content of the motion, resolution of the Board of Directors, and the Company’s response to 
the Remuneration Committee’s opinion (e.g., if the remuneration passed by the Board of Directors exceeds the 
recommendation of the Remuneration Committee, the circumstances and reason for the difference) shall be specified: 
None. 

2. If there were resolutions of the Remuneration Committee to which members objected or expressed reservations, and 
for which there is a record or declaration in writing, the date of the meeting, session, the content of the motion, all 
members’ opinions and the response to members’ opinion shall be specified: None. 

3. Reasons for discussion by the Remuneration Committee and resolution results, as well as the Company’s response to 
committee members’ opinions: 

 

Date  
Content of proposal 

Remuneration 
Committee 

members’ opinion 
Response to the opinion 

1st Meeting in 
2024 
March 7, 2024 

1. Proposal for distribution of employee remuneration 
and director remuneration in 2022. 

2. Proposal for senior managers’ promotion and salary 
review 

Approved 
Submitted to the Board 

of Directors and 
approved by all 

attending directors 
2nd Meeting in 
2024 
May 3, 2024 

1. Proposal for distribution amount of employee 
remuneration and director remuneration in 2022 Approved 

Submitted to the Board 
of Directors and 
approved by all 

attending directors 
 

 

4. Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee 
(1) Responsibilities of the Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee: Set the standards 

for the diversity and independence of professional knowledge, technology, experience and 
gender required by the members of the Board of Directors, and find, review and nominate 
director candidates accordingly, and organize and review continuing education plans of 
directors every year. 

(2) The Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee of the Company consists of 3 members, 
including director, HSU, CHENG-CHIANG, independent director, LIN, TE-JUI, and 
independent director, CHEN, WEI-YU. 

(3) Term of office of members: November 3, 2023 to June 9, 2025. 
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ra
te

 
op

er
at

io
ns

 a
re

 re
ve

al
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e 

Be
st

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

, 
an

d 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 j

oi
ns

 h
an

ds
 w

ith
 a

ll 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 to

 c
re

at
e 

va
lu

e 
to

ge
th

er
. 

2.
 

So
ci

et
y 

an
d 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t: 

K
no

w
in

g 
th

at
 h

um
an

 r
es

ou
rc

es
 a

re
 t

he
 

fo
un

da
tio

n 
of

 a
n 

en
te

rp
ris

e,
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 c

re
at

es
 a

 h
ap

py
 w

or
kp

la
ce

, 
as

su
re

s 
a 

sa
fe

 w
or

k 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t, 
sa

fe
gu

ar
ds

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’ 

rig
ht

s 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
s 

w
ith

 c
om

pl
et

e 
sy

st
em

s, 
at

tra
ct

s 
an

d 
re

ta
in

s 
ta

le
nt

s, 
im

pr
ov

es
 

its
 c

or
po

ra
te

 c
om

pe
tit

iv
en

es
s, 

an
d 

su
pp

or
ts

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s t

o 
pa

rti
ci

pa
te

 in
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n 

ac
tiv

iti
es

, 
us

es
 

en
er

gy
 

an
d 

re
so

ur
ce

s 
ef

fic
ie

nt
ly

, l
ow

er
s 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
m

pa
ct

, m
ak

es
 s

oc
ia

l c
on

tri
bu

tio
ns

, 
pe

rfo
rm

s s
oc

ia
l r

es
po

ns
ib

ili
tie

s, 
an

d 
be

co
m

es
 a

 fr
ie

nd
ly

 c
iti

ze
n 

fo
r t

he
 

ea
rth

. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 

3.
 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l i
ss

ue
s 

(1
) 

H
as

 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

an
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
m

an
ag

em
en

t s
ys

te
m

 su
ita

bl
e f

or
 th

e i
nd

us
try

 in
 w

hi
ch

 
it 

op
er

at
es

? 

V
 

 
D

ue
 to

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s o
f t

he
 in

du
st

ry
 in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 o

pe
ra

te
s, 

it 
is

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

an
y 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
. B

ut
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
a 

ca
rb

on
 in

ve
nt

or
y 

w
or

k 
gr

ou
p 

to
 c

on
du

ct
 

re
le

va
nt

 in
ve

nt
or

y 
w

or
k,

 a
nd

 te
st

 th
e 

w
or

k 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l p

er
io

di
ca

lly
, w

ith
 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
to

 e
st

ab
lis

h 
a 

go
od

 e
nv

iro
nm

en
t t

ha
t i

s s
ui

ta
bl

e 
fo

r e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’ 

w
or

k.
 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 

(2
) 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 e

nd
ea

vo
r 

to
 u

til
iz

e 
al

l r
es

ou
rc

es
 

m
or

e e
ffi

ci
en

tly
 an

d 
us

e r
en

ew
ab

le
 m

at
er

ia
ls

 th
at

 h
av

e 
a 

lo
w

 im
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t?
 

V
 

 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

pr
om

ot
es

 e
ac

h 
en

er
gy

 c
on

su
m

pt
io

n 
re

du
ct

io
n 

m
ea

su
re

 to
 re

du
ce

 re
so

ur
ce

 w
as

te
 a

nd
 lo

w
er

 th
e 

en
er

gy
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

of
 th

e 
en

te
rp

ris
e 

an
d 

its
 p

ro
du

ct
s. 

A
ls

o,
 it

 e
xp

an
ds

 th
e 

us
e 

of
 r

en
ew

ab
le

 e
ne

rg
y 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 
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re
so

ur
ce

s t
o 

op
tim

iz
e 

th
e 

en
er

gy
 u

til
iz

at
io

n 
ef

fic
ie

nc
y.

 
Li

st
ed

 C
om

pa
ni

es
. 

(3
) 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 e

va
lu

at
e 

th
e 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
ris

ks
 a

nd
 

op
po

rtu
ni

tie
s 

in
 c

lim
at

e 
ch

an
ge

 w
ith

 r
eg

ar
d 

to
 t

he
 

pr
es

en
t a

nd
 fu

tu
re

 o
f i

ts
 b

us
in

es
s, 

an
d 

ta
ke

 ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

ac
tio

n 
to

 c
ou

nt
er

 c
lim

at
e 

ch
an

ge
 is

su
es

? 

V
 

 
D

ue
 to

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s 
of

 th
e 

in
du

st
ry

, t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 d
oe

s 
no

t g
en

er
at

e 
an

y 
w

as
te

, 
an

d 
im

po
se

 o
n 

si
gn

ifi
ca

nt
 i

m
pa

ct
 o

n 
th

e 
po

te
nt

ia
l 

ris
ks

 a
nd

 
op

po
rtu

ni
tie

s i
n 

cl
im

at
e 

ch
an

ge
. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 
(4

) 
H

as
 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 
ca

lc
ul

at
ed

 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 
ga

s 
em

is
si

on
s, 

w
at

er
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n,

 a
nd

 th
e 

to
ta

l w
ei

gh
t o

f 
w

as
te

 in
 th

e l
as

t t
w

o 
ye

ar
s, 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

po
lic

ie
s o

n 
en

er
gy

 
co

ns
er

va
tio

n 
an

d 
ca

rb
on

 
re

du
ct

io
n,

 
gr

ee
nh

ou
se

 g
as

 r
ed

uc
tio

n,
 w

at
er

 r
ed

uc
tio

n,
 o

r 
w

as
te

 
m

an
ag

em
en

t?
 

V
 

 
D

ue
 to

 th
e 

ch
ar

ac
te

ris
tic

s o
f t

he
 in

du
st

ry
 in

 w
hi

ch
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 o

pe
ra

te
s, 

it 
is

 n
ot

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 e

st
ab

lis
h 

an
y 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l m
an

ag
em

en
t s

ys
te

m
. B

ut
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 p

ay
s 

at
te

nt
io

n 
to

 e
ne

rg
y 

co
ns

er
va

tio
n 

al
l y

ea
r 

lo
ng

, e
.g

., 
w

at
er

 
sa

vi
ng

, t
ur

ni
ng

 o
ff 

lig
ht

s w
he

n 
le

av
in

g,
 e

tc
., 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

ffe
ct

iv
el

y 
ap

pl
y 

th
e 

lim
ite

d 
re

so
ur

ce
s, 

an
d 

re
du

ce
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

th
e 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 

4.
 

So
ci

al
 is

su
es

 
(1

) 
D

oe
s 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 
fo

rm
ul

at
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 a

cc
or

di
ng

 t
o 

re
le

va
nt

 r
eg

ul
at

io
ns

 a
nd

 t
he

 I
nt

er
na

tio
na

l 
Bi

ll 
of

 
H

um
an

 R
ig

ht
s?

 

V
 

 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 f

ol
lo

w
s 

re
le

va
nt

 l
ab

or
 r

eg
ul

at
io

ns
 i

nc
lu

di
ng

 t
he

 L
ab

or
 

St
an

da
rd

s 
A

ct
 a

s 
w

el
l 

as
 t

he
 I

nt
er

na
tio

na
l 

Bi
ll 

of
 H

um
an

 R
ig

ht
s, 

an
d 

es
ta

bl
is

he
s 

hu
m

an
 ri

gh
ts

 p
ol

ic
ie

s 
to

 s
af

eg
ua

rd
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

s’ 
le

gi
tim

at
e 

rig
ht

s 
an

d 
in

te
re

st
s. 

Th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 r
ev

ie
w

s 
pe

rio
di

ca
lly

 t
he

 l
eg

al
ly

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

re
le

va
nt

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
 b

y 
pa

yi
ng

 
at

te
nt

io
n 

to
 m

aj
or

 so
ci

al
 is

su
es

, c
he

ck
in

g 
re

le
va

nt
 d

at
a,

 e
tc

. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 

(2
) 

H
as

 t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

an
d 

of
fe

re
d 

pr
op

er
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 b
en

ef
its

 (
in

cl
ud

in
g 

co
m

pe
ns

at
io

n,
 l

ea
ve

, 
an

d 
ot

he
r 

be
ne

fit
s)

 
an

d 
re

fle
ct

ed
 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 o
r r

es
ul

ts
 in

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 c

om
pe

ns
at

io
n 

as
 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
? 

V
 

 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
w

or
k 

ru
le

s 
an

d 
pe

rs
on

ne
l m

an
ag

em
en

t r
ul

es
 

ac
co

rd
in

g 
to

 t
he

 L
ab

or
 S

ta
nd

ar
ds

 A
ct

, 
an

d 
ta

ke
n 

re
as

on
ab

le
 e

m
pl

oy
ee

 
be

ne
fit

 m
ea

su
re

s. 
Fo

r 
em

pl
oy

ee
 r

em
un

er
at

io
n,

 t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 u
se

s 
th

e 
in

co
m

e 
be

fo
re

 
ta

x 
ob

ta
in

ed
 

in
 

cu
rr

en
t 

ye
ar

 
ex

cl
us

iv
e 

of
 

em
pl

oy
ee

 
re

m
un

er
at

io
n 

an
d 

di
re

ct
or

 r
em

un
er

at
io

n 
to

 m
ak

e 
up

 lo
ss

es
 f

irs
t, 

an
d 

th
en

 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

s 
4%

-1
1%

 o
f 

th
e 

re
m

ai
ni

ng
 a

m
ou

nt
 a

s 
em

pl
oy

ee
 r

em
un

er
at

io
n 

to
 p

ro
pe

rly
 r

ef
le

ct
 it

s 
op

er
at

in
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
 r

em
un

er
at

io
n 

in
 

ac
co

rd
an

ce
 w

ith
 th

e 
A

rti
cl

es
 o

f A
ss

oc
ia

tio
n.

 T
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 h
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

an
 E

m
pl

oy
ee

 W
el

fa
re

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 p
la

n 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
hi

gh
-q

ua
lit

y 
be

ne
fit

s 
fo

r c
ol

le
ag

ue
s, 

e.
g.

, e
m

pl
oy

ee
 to

ur
is

m
 s

ub
si

dy
, b

irt
hd

ay
 c

ou
po

ns
, w

ed
di

ng
 

al
lo

w
an

ce
, c

hi
ld

bi
rth

 a
llo

w
an

ce
, f

un
er

al
 a

llo
w

an
ce

, e
tc

. A
dd

iti
on

al
ly

, t
he

 
C

om
pa

ny
 a

ls
o 

pr
ov

id
es

 c
ol

le
ag

ue
s 

w
ith

 b
en

ef
its

 s
uc

h 
as

 f
re

e 
he

al
th

 
ch

ec
ku

ps
. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 

(3
) 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 s
af

e 
an

d 
he

al
th

y 
w

or
k 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t, 

an
d 

do
es

 it
 o

rg
an

iz
e 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y 
tra

in
in

g 
fo

r i
ts

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s o

n 
a 

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

? 

V
 

 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 fo

llo
w

s t
he

 O
cc

up
at

io
na

l S
af

et
y 

an
d 

H
ea

lth
 A

ct
, r

es
pe

ct
s t

he
 

re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 o
f 

re
le

va
nt

 i
nt

er
es

te
d 

gr
ou

ps
 f

or
 o

cc
up

at
io

na
l 

sa
fe

ty
 a

nd
 

he
al

th
, b

ui
ld

s a
 h

ea
lth

y 
w

or
kp

la
ce

, o
rg

an
iz

es
 h

ea
lth

 ch
ec

ku
ps

 fo
r e

m
pl

oy
ee

s 
pe

rio
di

ca
lly

, 
an

d 
ho

st
 d

iff
er

en
t 

ac
tiv

iti
es

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r 
ba

si
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

Em
pl

oy
ee

 W
el

fa
re

 C
om

m
itt

ee
 to

 b
al

an
ce

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s’ 

ph
ys

ic
al

 a
nd

 m
en

ta
l 

he
al

th
. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 
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(4
) 

H
as

 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 

es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
ca

re
er

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t a
nd

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 p
la

ns
 fo

r i
ts

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s?

 
V

 
 

Th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 p
ro

vi
de

s 
di

ve
rs

ifi
ed

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

on
 e

du
ca

tio
n 

an
d 

tra
in

in
g,

 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r 

ne
w

 e
m

pl
oy

ee
s, 

pr
of

es
si

on
al

 a
dv

an
ce

d 
tra

in
in

g,
 

tra
in

in
g 

fo
r 

ch
ie

fs
, 

et
c.

 A
ls

o,
 t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 e

nc
ou

ra
ge

s 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

to
 

pa
rti

ci
pa

te
 in

 ex
te

rn
al

 ed
uc

at
io

n 
an

d 
tra

in
in

g,
 an

d 
pr

ov
id

es
 th

em
 w

ith
 ca

re
er

 
pl

an
ni

ng
, t

o 
gi

ve
 fu

ll 
pl

ay
 to

 th
ei

r t
al

en
ts

 a
nd

 im
pr

ov
e 

w
or

ki
ng

 e
ffi

ci
en

cy
. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 

(5
) 

D
o 

th
e C

om
pa

ny
’s

 p
ro

du
ct

s a
nd

 se
rv

ic
es

 co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 
re

la
te

d 
re

gu
la

tio
ns

 
an

d 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

ru
le

s 
fo

r 
cu

st
om

er
s’ 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 s

af
et

y,
 p

riv
ac

y,
 s

al
es

, l
ab

el
in

g 
an

d 
se

t 
po

lic
ie

s 
to

 p
ro

te
ct

 c
on

su
m

er
s’ 

rig
ht

s 
an

d 
co

ns
um

er
 a

pp
ea

l p
ro

ce
du

re
s?

 

V
 

 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 p

ro
vi

de
s 

pr
od

uc
ts

 a
nd

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
ac

co
rd

in
g 

to
 r

el
ev

an
t 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, r

en
de

rs
 se

rv
ic

es
 in

 p
rin

ci
pl

es
 o

f s
er

vi
ce

 fo
re

m
os

t a
nd

 c
on

tin
ua

l 
cu

st
om

er
 s

at
is

fa
ct

io
n,

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
na

te
s 

a 
de

di
ca

te
d 

de
pa

rtm
en

t t
o 

de
al

 w
ith

 
cu

st
om

er
s’ 

ap
pe

al
s a

nd
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s, 
an

d 
sa

fe
gu

ar
d 

th
ei

r r
ig

ht
s a

nd
 in

te
re

st
s. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 

(6
) 

H
as

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

su
pp

lie
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

po
lic

ie
s t

ha
t r

eq
ui

re
 su

pp
lie

rs
 to

 co
m

pl
y 

w
ith

 re
le

va
nt

 
la

w
s 

an
d 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
 

re
la

te
d 

to
 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l 
pr

ot
ec

tio
n,

 o
cc

up
at

io
na

l 
he

al
th

 a
nd

 s
af

et
y 

or
 l

ab
or

 
rig

ht
s a

nd
 su

pe
rv

is
ed

 it
s i

m
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n?
 

V
 

 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h

as
 a

lre
ad

y 
es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
a 

co
de

 o
f 

co
nd

uc
t 

fo
r 

su
pp

lie
rs

. 
Be

fo
re

 c
oo

pe
ra

tin
g 

w
ith

 a
 s

up
pl

ie
r, 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 w
ou

ld
 e

va
lu

at
e 

if 
it 

is
 a

n 
el

ig
ib

le
 su

pp
lie

r t
ha

t c
om

pl
ie

s w
ith

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

 a
nd

 e
xp

ec
ta

tio
ns

 in
 te

rm
s 

of
 e

nv
iro

nm
en

t, 
sa

fe
ty

, 
an

d 
he

al
th

 r
is

ks
, 

w
or

ke
r 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

m
or

al
 

st
an

da
rd

s, 
et

hi
ca

l 
co

rp
or

at
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t, 

an
d 

ot
he

r 
re

le
va

nt
 a

sp
ec

ts
. 

In
 

ad
di

tio
n,

 th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 e
m

ph
as

iz
es

 su
pp

ly
 q

ua
lit

y 
an

d 
pr

od
uc

t s
af

et
y.

 If
 a

ny
 

su
pp

lie
r 

im
po

se
s 

a 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l p
ro

te
ct

io
n,

 w
or

ki
ng

 
co

nd
iti

on
s, 

hu
m

an
 r

ig
ht

s, 
an

d 
so

ci
et

y,
 t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 w

ill
 p

ro
po

se
 t

he
 

te
rm

in
at

io
n 

or
 re

sc
is

si
on

 o
f c

on
tra

ct
s w

ith
 th

is
 su

pp
lie

r. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 

5.
 

H
as

 t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

, 
re

fe
rri

ng
 t

o 
th

e 
in

te
rn

at
io

na
l 

st
an

da
rd

s o
r g

ui
de

lin
es

 fo
r t

he
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
of

 re
po

rts
, 

pr
ep

ar
ed

 C
SR

 r
ep

or
ts

 t
o 

di
sc

lo
se

 n
on

- 
fin

an
ci

al
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 th

e C
om

pa
ny

? A
re

 th
e r

ep
or

ts
 ce

rti
fie

d 
or

 a
ss

ur
ed

 b
y 

a 
th

ird
-p

ar
ty

 a
cc

re
di

ta
tio

n 
in

st
itu

tio
n?

 

V
 

 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h

as
 n

ot
 p

re
pa

re
d 

a 
C

SR
 re

po
rt 

so
 fa

r, 
bu

t i
t p

ay
s 

at
te

nt
io

n 
at

 
an

y 
tim

e.
 

In
 

th
e 

fu
tu

re
, 

th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 
w

ill
 

pr
ep

ar
e 

su
ch

 
re

po
rt 

in
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n 
of

 i
ts

 o
pe

ra
tin

g 
po

si
tio

n.
 A

ls
o,

 i
ss

ue
s 

in
cl

ud
in

g 
co

rp
or

at
e 

go
ve

rn
an

ce
, d

ev
el

op
m

en
t o

f a
 su

st
ai

na
bl

e e
nv

iro
nm

en
t, 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 p
ub

lic
 w

el
fa

re
 h

av
e 

be
en

 h
an

dl
ed

 in
 a

cc
or

da
nc

e 
w

ith
 re

le
va

nt
 st

an
da

rd
s. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
C

or
po

ra
te

 S
oc

ia
l 

R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 

B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

. 

6.
 

If 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 h

as
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
co

rp
or

at
e 

so
ci

al
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 b

as
ed

 o
n 

th
e 

C
or

po
ra

te
 S

oc
ia

l R
es

po
ns

ib
ili

ty
 B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
 fo

r T
W

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

, 
de

sc
rib

e 
th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

an
y 

di
sc

re
pa

nc
y:

 
Th

e C
om

pa
ny

 h
as

 n
ot

 es
ta

bl
is

he
d 

“C
or

po
ra

te
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e P

rin
ci

pl
es

 fo
r T

W
SE

/T
PE

x 
Li

st
ed

 C
om

pa
ni

es
” 

ye
t. 

Bu
t t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 es

ta
bl

is
he

d 
its

 “C
or

po
ra

te
 

So
ci

al
 R

es
po

ns
ib

ili
ty

 B
es

t P
ra

ct
ic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

” 
ba

se
d 

on
 a

 c
or

re
sp

on
di

ng
 re

so
lu

tio
n 

m
ad

e 
by

 th
e 

B
oa

rd
 o

f D
ire

ct
or

s i
n 

20
14

, w
ith

 th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
to

 st
re

ng
th

en
 th

e 
im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

its
 c

or
po

ra
te

 so
ci

al
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
ie

s. 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 re

vi
ew

s t
he

 im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
st

at
us

 a
nd

 m
ak

es
 c

or
re

sp
on

di
ng

 im
pr

ov
em

en
ts

 p
er

io
di

ca
lly

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
th

is
 d

oc
um

en
t. 

N
o 

di
sc

re
pa

nc
y 

ha
s b

ee
n 

fo
un

d 
so

 fa
r. 

7.
 

O
th

er
 im

po
rta

nt
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
to

 fa
ci

lit
at

e 
a 

be
tte

r u
nd

er
st

an
di

ng
 o

f t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

’s
 c

or
po

ra
te

 so
ci

al
 re

sp
on

si
bi

lit
y 

pr
ac

tic
es

: 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 c

on
tin

ua
lly

 p
ro

m
ot

es
 r

el
ev

an
t i

ss
ue

s 
in

cl
ud

in
g 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l p
ro

te
ct

io
n,

 s
af

et
y 

an
d 

he
al

th
 o

f w
or

k 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t, 
co

ns
um

er
s’ 

rig
ht

s, 
an

d 
hu

m
an

 ri
gh

ts
, a

nd
 s

ha
re

s 
op

er
at

in
g 

re
su

lts
 w

ith
 c

ol
le

ag
ue

s t
o 

sh
ar

e 
co

m
m

on
 p

ro
sp

er
ity

. 
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6.
 

Et
hi

ca
l c

or
po

ra
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 d

ev
ia

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

Et
hi

ca
l C

or
po

ra
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
 fo

r T
W

SE
/T

PE
x 

Li
st

ed
 C

om
pa

ni
es

 
an

d 
re

as
on

s t
he

re
of

 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
ite

m
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
st

at
us

 
D

ev
ia

tio
ns

 fr
om

 th
e 

Et
hi

ca
l C

or
po

ra
te

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t B
es

t 
Pr

ac
tic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 fo
r 

TW
SE

/T
PE

x 
Li

st
ed

 
C

om
pa

ni
es

 a
nd

 

Ye
s 

N
o 

D
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

1.
 

Es
ta

bl
is

hm
en

t o
f e

th
ic

al
 c

or
po

ra
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t p

ol
ic

ie
s a

nd
 p

ro
gr

am
s 

(1
) 

H
as

 t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

et
hi

ca
l 

co
rp

or
at

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t 
po

lic
ie

s 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
Bo

ar
d 

of
 D

ire
ct

or
s 

an
d 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 it

s 
ru

le
s 

an
d 

ex
te

rn
al

 
do

cu
m

en
ts

 th
e e

th
ic

al
 co

rp
or

at
e m

an
ag

em
en

t p
ol

ic
ie

s a
nd

 p
ra

ct
ic

es
 an

d 
th

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t o
f t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s a

nd
 se

ni
or

 m
an

ag
em

en
t t

o 
rig

or
ou

s 
an

d 
th

or
ou

gh
 im

pl
em

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 su

ch
 p

ol
ic

ie
s?

 
(2

) 
H

as
 t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
a 

ris
k 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
 a

ga
in

st
 

un
et

hi
ca

l c
on

du
ct

, a
nd

 a
na

ly
ze

 a
nd

 a
ss

es
s 

on
 a

 re
gu

la
r b

as
is

 th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
ac

tiv
ity

 w
ith

in
 it

s b
us

in
es

s s
co

pe
 w

hi
ch

 is
 at

 a 
hi

gh
er

 ri
sk

 o
f b

ei
ng

 in
vo

lv
ed

 
in

 u
ne

th
ic

al
 co

nd
uc

t, 
an

d 
es

ta
bl

is
h 

pr
ev

en
tio

n 
pr

og
ra

m
s a

cc
or

di
ng

ly
, w

hi
ch

 
sh

al
l a

t l
ea

st
 in

cl
ud

e 
th

os
e 

sp
ec

ifi
ed

 in
 P

ar
ag

ra
ph

 2
, A

rti
cl

e 
7 

of
 th

e 
Et

hi
ca

l 
C

or
po

ra
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t B

es
t P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Pr
in

ci
pl

es
 fo

r T
W

SE
/G

TS
M

 L
is

te
d 

C
om

pa
ni

es
? 

(3
) 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

ny
 s

ol
ut

io
ns

 t
o 

pr
ev

en
t 

un
et

hi
ca

l 
co

nd
uc

t, 
st

ip
ul

at
e 

pr
oc

ed
ur

es
, c

on
du

ct
 g

ui
de

lin
es

, p
un

is
hm

en
t f

or
 v

io
la

tio
n 

as
 w

el
l 

as
 a

pp
ea

ls
 a

nd
 p

ut
 in

to
 p

ra
ct

ic
e,

 re
vi

ew
 a

nd
 re

vi
se

 o
n 

a 
re

gu
la

r b
as

is
 th

e 
af

or
es

ai
d 

so
lu

tio
ns

? 

 V
     V
       V
 

  (1
) 

Th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 h
as

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

et
hi

ca
l c

or
po

ra
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

po
lic

ie
s 

w
hi

ch
 a

re
 a

ct
iv

el
y 

im
pl

em
en

te
d 

by
 t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
an

d 
th

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t. 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 a

ls
o 

fo
llo

w
s 

et
hi

ca
l c

or
po

ra
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t. 

 
(2

) 
Th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 a

dv
oc

at
es

 i
ts

 e
th

ic
al

 c
or

po
ra

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
po

lic
ie

s t
o 

th
e 

em
pl

oy
ee

s u
po

n 
th

ei
r e

nt
ry

. 
 

(3
) 

Th
e 

C
om

pa
ny

 h
as

 i
ts

 l
eg

al
 a

ffa
irs

 u
ni

t 
to

 s
ig

n 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

un
ifo

rm
ly

 t
o 

pr
ev

en
t 

th
e 

ris
k 

of
 l

aw
 v

io
la

tio
n 

du
e 

to
 t

he
 

co
nt

en
ts

 s
ig

ne
d,

 a
nd

 d
es

ig
na

te
s 

th
e 

au
di

t 
un

it 
to

 p
er

fo
rm

 
au

di
ts

 o
n 

an
 ir

re
gu

la
r b

as
is

. 

In
 li

ne
 w

ith
 th

e 
Et

hi
ca

l 
C

or
po

ra
te

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

Be
st

 P
ra

ct
ic

e 
Pr

in
ci

pl
es

 
fo

r 
TW

SE
/G

TS
M

 
Li

st
ed

 C
om

pa
ni

es
. 

2.
 

Fu
lfi

llm
en

t o
f e

th
ic

al
 c

or
po

ra
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t 

(1
) 

D
oe

s t
he

 C
om

pa
ny

 e
va

lu
at

e 
bu

si
ne

ss
 p

ar
tn

er
s’ 

et
hi

ca
l r

ec
or

ds
 a

nd
 in

cl
ud

e 
et

hi
cs

-re
la

te
d 

cl
au

se
s 

in
 

th
e 

bu
si

ne
ss

 
co

nt
ra

ct
s 

si
gn

ed
 

w
ith

 
th

e 
co

un
te

rp
ar

tie
s?

 
(2

) 
H

as
 th

e 
C

om
pa

ny
 s

et
 u

p 
a 

de
di

ca
te

d 
un

it 
un

de
r t

he
 B

oa
rd

 o
f D

ire
ct

or
s 

to
 

pr
om

ot
e 

et
hi

ca
l c

or
po

ra
te

 m
an

ag
em

en
t a

nd
 re

gu
la

rly
 (a

t l
ea

st
 o

nc
e 

ev
er

y 
ye

ar
) 

re
po

rt 
to

 t
he

 B
oa

rd
 o

f 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

th
e 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 e
th

ic
al

 
co

rp
or

at
e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

po
lic

ie
s 

an
d 

un
et

hi
ca

l 
co

nd
uc

t 
pr

ev
en

tio
n 

pr
og

ra
m

s?
 

(3
) 

H
as

 th
e 

Co
m

pa
ny

 e
sta

bl
ish

ed
 p

ol
ic

ie
s t

o 
pr

ev
en

t c
on

fli
ct

s o
f i

nt
er

es
t, 

pr
ov

id
e 

ap
pr

op
ria

te
 co

m
m

un
ic

at
io

n 
ch

an
ne

ls,
 an

d 
im

pl
em

en
t t

he
m

 ac
co

rd
in

gl
y?

 
(4

) 
H

as
 t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 e

st
ab

lis
he

d 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

ac
co

un
tin

g 
an

d 
in

te
rn

al
 c

on
tro

l 
sy

st
em

s 
to

 im
pl

em
en

t e
th

ic
al

 c
or

po
ra

te
 m

an
ag

em
en

t a
nd

 h
av

e 
its

 in
te

rn
al

 
au

di
t 

de
pa

rtm
en

t, 
ba

se
d 

on
 t

he
 r

es
ul

ts
 o

f 
th

e 
as

se
ss

m
en

t 
of

 t
he

 r
is

k 
of

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
in

 
un

et
hi

ca
l 

co
nd

uc
t, 

fo
rm

ul
at

e 
au

di
t 

pl
an

s 
an

d 
au

di
t 

co
m

pl
ia

nc
e 

w
ith

 p
re

ve
nt

io
n 

pr
og

ra
m

s 
ac

co
rd

in
gl

y 
or

 e
nt

ru
st

ed
 a

 C
PA

 to
 

co
nd

uc
t t

he
 a

ud
it?

 
(5

) 
D

oe
s t

he
 C

om
pa

ny
 re

gu
la

rly
 h

ol
d 

in
te
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7. If the Company has adopted corporate governance policies or related bylaws, the inquiry method shall 
be disclosed: 
Relevant bylaws of the Company are detailed on the Company’s website (http://www.grandtech.com). 

8. Other important information to facilitate a better understanding of the Company’s corporate 
governance: The Company continually engages resources in strengthening the corporate governance 
and discloses major information in a real-time way, to safeguard the rights of investors and shareholders. 

9. Implementation status of the internal control system 
1. For the Declaration of Internal Control System, please refer to page 26. 
2. For those who commit CPAs to review the internal control system, the CPA audit report shall be 

disclosed: None. 
10. If the results of legal penalties to the Company and its internal personnel, or penalties of the Company 

to the internal personnel for the violation of the provisions of the internal control system in the most 
recent fiscal year and as of the publication date of the annual report may have a material impact on the 
shareholders’ equity or securities price, the contents of such punishments, principal deficiencies and 
improvements shall be specified: None.  

11. Major resolutions of Shareholders’ Meetings and Board Meetings during the most recent fiscal year up 
to the date of publication of the annual report 
Material resolutions of Shareholders’ Meetings are summarized as follows: 

Acknowledgement/discussion/election 
matters Implementation status 

Acknowledgement of proposal for 
closing statements of 2022 
Resolution: This proposal was voted and 
acknowledged as submitted. 

The Company handled this proposal in accordance with the Procedures for 
Announcement and Declaration of Major Information. Please refer to relevant 
content in MOPS. 

Acknowledgement of proposal for profit 
distribution of 2022 
Resolution: This proposal was voted and 
acknowledged as submitted. 

The total amount of NT$5.1 of cash dividends of 2022 was paid on January 24, 
2023 and July 14, 2023 respectively. 

Discussion of proposal for amendment to 
some provisions of “Procedures for 
Acquisition or Disposal of Assets” of the 
Company 
Resolution: This proposal was voted and 
passed as submitted. 

It was announced on the Company’s website and MOPS on June 14, 2023, and 
handled according to the amended procedures. 

Proposal for amendment to some 
provisions of “Procedures for Loaning of 
Funds and Making of 
Endorsements/Guarantees” 
Resolution: This proposal was voted and 
passed as submitted. 

It was announced on the Company’s website and MOPS on June 14, 2023, and 
handled according to the amended procedures. 

Discussion of proposal for the handling 
of share dilution work of a subsidiary and 
waiver of participation in the cash capital 
increase plan of this subsidiary by the 
Company and companies controlled by or 
subordinate to the Company to 
coordinate with this subsidiary’s 
application for TPEx stock listing plan in 
the future 
Resolution: This proposal was voted and 
passed as submitted. 

It was announced on the Company’s website and MOPS on June 14, 2023, and 
handled according to the amended procedures. 

Major resolutions of Board Meetings are summarized as follows: 
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Date Major resolutions 
4th and 5th 
meetings in 2023 
August 10, 2023 

1. Proposal for consolidated financial statements of Q2 2023 
2. Proposal for profit distribution of Q2 2023 

6th meeting in 
2023 
 
November 3, 2023 
 

1. Proposal for consolidated financial statements of Q3 2023 
2. Proposal for profit distribution of Q3 2023 
3. Proposal for liability insurance of directors and important employees  
4. Proposal for audit plan of 2023 
5. Proposal for appointment of the Company’s information security manager 
6. Proposal for appointment of Corporate Governance and Nomination Committee Members 
7. Proposal for lending funds to subsidiaries 

1st meeting in 2024 
 
March 7, 2024 

1. Proposal for distribution of employee remuneration and director remuneration of 2023 
2. Proposal for financial statements and consolidated financial statements of 2023 
3. Proposal for profit distribution of 2023 
4. Proposal for effectiveness assessment of internal control system of 2023 and Declaration of 

Internal Control System 
5. Proposal for the handling of share dilution work of a subsidiary and waiver of participation in 

the cash capital increase plan of this subsidiary by the Company and companies controlled by 
or subordinate to the Company to coordinate with this subsidiary’s application for TPEx stock 
listing plan in the future 

6. Proposal for amendment to the corporate organizational structure 
7. Proposal for lending funds to subsidiaries 
8. Proposal for change of audit manager of the Company 

2nd meeting in 
2024 
April 25, 2024 

1. Proposal for lending funds to subsidiaries 
2. Proposal for handling of capital decrease in cash of subsidiaries 

3rd meeting in 
2024 
May 3, 2024 

1. Proposal for consolidated financial statements of Q1 2024 
2. Proposal for profit distribution of Q1 2024 
3. Proposal for waiver of stock of subsidiaries 

 
12. Any dissenting opinion expressed by a director or supervisor with respect to a major resolution passed by 

the Board of Directors during the most recent fiscal year and up to the date of publication of the annual 
report, where said dissenting opinion has been recorded or prepared as a written declaration: None. 

 
13. Resignation or dismissal of the company’s key individuals, including the chairman, CEO, chief accountant, 

heads of finance, internal audit manager, corporate governance manager and R & D manager: 
Title Name Date of appointment Date of dismissal Reason for resignation or 

dismissal 
Internal audit 
manager 

YANG, CHIH-YAO January 7, 2022 March 7, 2024 Posotion transition 
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GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.  

Declaration on Internal Control 
Date: March 03, 2023 

 

On grounds of findings yielded by our autonomous evaluation, we hereby declare our internal control 
system during the period beginning January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022 as follows: 
I. We are firmly aware that establishment, enforcement and maintenance of internal control systems are 

bounden duties of our board of directors and management. We have thus satisfactorily established such 
systems for the purposes of firmly safeguarding effects and efficiency of our business operation 
(including profitability, performance and asset security), reliability of financial statements and 
observance of laws concerned. 

II. Internal control system is subject to inherent restrictions. No matter how sound and comprehensive we 
design, internal control systems could only secure three aforementioned targets. Amidst the varied 
environments and situations, the performance of internal control systems varies accordingly. Thanks to 
the sound self-monitoring systems established inside our Company, we are in a position to take 
immediate corrective actions as soon as a shortcoming is identified. 

III. On grounds of the “Guidelines for Enforcement of Internal Control Systems by Public Offering 
Companies” promulgated by the Securities & Futures Commission, Ministry of Finance (Hereinafter 
referred to as the Guidelines), we have established items for effective judgement of internal control 
systems to accurately tell whether or not the designed internal control systems are effectively designed 
and enforced. The judgement items adopted in the “Guidelines” divide the internal control systems into 
five components: 1. Control environments. 2. Risk evaluation. 3. Control operation. 4. Information and 
communications and 5. Supervision. Each and every component includes certain items. Please refer to 
the Enforcement Regulations for more details. 

IV. We have already adopted the aforementioned items to judge internal control systems to confirm the 
effectiveness of the design and enforcement of the internal control systems. 

V. On grounds of results of the aforementioned evaluations, we hereby confirm the aforementioned 
internal control systems (including supervision over the subsidiaries) established on 31 December 2022 
can achieve the following goals, including the level of goal achievement related to business operations 
and efficiency, reliable, timely and transparent financial statements which fulfilled the relevant laws 
and regulations related to the design and execution of internal control systems. 

VI. This Declaration forms an integral part of our Annual Report and Prospectus and is hereby officially 
made public. We further declare subject to all legal responsibilities under Articles 20, 32, 171, 174 
of Securities and Exchange Law that the aforementioned contents made public are absolutely free of 
misrepresentation, concealment or irregularities otherwise. 

VII. This Declaration was officially resolved by GrandTech’s board of directors on March 03, 202307. In 
that event, a total of Nine present directors extended full agreement to the contents of this Declaration 
with zero voicing on the contrary. 

 
 
 

GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. 
 

Chairman HSU, CHENG-CHIANG  

General Manager NGOI, MIEW- HUAT  
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(IV) Information on CPA professional fees: 
Information on CPA professional fees 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 
Name of 

accounting firm Name of CPA CPA audit period Audit fee Non-audit 
fee Total Remark 

Ernst &Young, 
Taiwan 

HSU, HSIN-
MIN 2023.01.01 ~ 2023.12.31 

2,615  0 2,615  
YU, CHIEN-JU 2023.01.01 ~ 2023.12.31 

 
 

Name of accounting 

firm 

Name of CPA CPA Audit period Remark 

Ernst &Young, Taiwan HSU, HSIN-MIN YU, CHIEN-JU 2023.01.01 ~ 2023.12.31  
 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Fee 

Range of amount 
Audit fee Non-audit fee Total 

1 Under NT$2,000,000    
2 NT$2,000,000 (inclusive) ~ 4,000,000 2,615 0 2,615 
3 NT$4,000,000 (inclusive) ~ 6,000,000    
4 NT$6,000,000 (inclusive) ~ 8,000,000    
5 NT$8,000,000 (inclusive) ~ 10,000,000    
6 Above NT$10,000,000    

Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Name of 
accounting 

firm 

Name of 
CPA Audit fee 

Non-audit fee 

CPA Audit 
period Remark System 

design 

Industrial 
and 

commercial 
registration 

Human 
resources Others (Note 2) Subtotal 

Ernst 
&Young, 
Taiwan 

HSU, HSIN-
MIN 2,615 

 
0 0 0 0 0 

2023.01.01  

YU, CHIEN-
JU 

2023.12.31 

 
A. If the non-audit fee accounts for more than one quarter of the audit fee paid to the CPAs, their 

accounting firm, and its affiliated companies, the amount and of audit fee and non-audit fee as 
well as non-audit service content shall be disclosed: None. 

B. When the Company changes its accounting firm and the audit fees paid for the fiscal year in 
which such change took place are lower than those for the previous fiscal year, the amounts of 
the audit fees before and after the change and the reasons shall be disclosed: None. 

C. When the audit fees paid for the current fiscal year are lower than those for the previous fiscal 
year by 15% or more, the reduction in the amount of audit fees, reduction percentage, and 
reason(s) thereof shall be disclosed: None. 
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(V) Information on the replacement of CPAs: None. 
(VI) The Company’s chairman, president, or any managerial officer in charge of finance or accounting 

matters in the most recent year held a position at the accounting firm of its certified public 
accountant or at an affiliated enterprise of such accounting firm: None. 
 

(VII) Any transfer of equity interests and pledge of, or change in, equity interests by a director, 
supervisor, managerial officer, or shareholder with a stake of more than 10% 

A. Equity changes of directors, supervisors, managers, and major shareholders: 

Title 
 

Name 
Equity changes in 2023 

Remark Increase (decrease) of shares 
held 

Increase (decrease) of 
shares pledged 

Director  HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 - 
Director  NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 - 
Director  Longwei Co., Ltd. 0 0 - 
Director representative  CHUANG, TZU-HUA 0 0 - 
Director representative  YANG, JUNG-KUNG 0 0 - 
Director  HUANG, LI-AN 0 0 - 
Director  LIU, YAO-YUAN 0 0 - 
Independent director  LIN, TE-JUI 0 0 - 
Independent director  CHE-YU CHEN 0 0 - 
Independent director  CHEN, SU-LAN 0 0 - 
Vice-president  HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 - 
Vice-president  LO, CHANG-HUA 0 0 - 

Title 
 

Name 
Equity changes of current year 

Remark Increase (decrease) of shares 
held 

Increase (decrease) of 
shares pledged 

Director  HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0  
Director  NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0  
Director  Longwei Co., Ltd. 0 0  
Director representative  CHUANG, TZU-HUA 0 0  
Director  LIU, YAO-YUAN 0 0  
Director representative  YANG, JUNG-KUNG 0 0  
Director  HUANG, LI-AN 0 0  
Independent director  LIN, TE-JUI 0 0  
Independent director  CHE-YU CHEN 0 0  
Independent director  CHEN, SU-LAN 0 0  
Vice-president  HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0  

Vice-president 
 

LO, CHANG-HUA 0 0 
Resigned on 
February 2, 

2024 

Assistant vice-president  CHENG-LUNG HSIEH 0 0 Appointed on 
March 7, 2024 

Assistant vice-president  HSING-YING LIN 0 0 Appointed on 
March 7, 2024 

B. Information on the counterparty of an equity transfer being a related party of the Company’s directors, 
supervisors, managers and major shareholders: None. 

C. Information on the counterparty of an equity pledge of directors, supervisors, managers, and major 
shareholders who are an affiliate: None. 
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(VIII)Information on the relationship between the top ten shareholders who are related parties as 
defined in the Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 6 

Relationship among the top ten shareholders 

Name 
Current shareholding Spouse & minor 

shareholding 
Shareholding 
by nominees 

Information on relationship 
among the top ten shareholders, 

who are related parties or spouses, 
relatives within the 

second degree of kinship of 
another shareholder 

Shares % Shares % Shares % Designation (or 
Name) Relation 

Minerva Capital Inc. 6,070,383 9.78% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 
Minerva Capital Inc. 
Representative: CHENG, 
CHING-HSIN 

0 0% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 

Cana Investment Co., Ltd. 3,076,480 4.95% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 
Cana Investment Co., Ltd. 
Representative: HUANG, 
SHIH-YU 

0 0% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 

Hsin Chin Investment Co., Ltd. 3,029,370 4.88% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA. 
Hsin Chin Investment Co., Ltd. 
Representative: CHENG, 
CHIA-HSING 

10,792 0.02% 2,009,622 3.24% 0 0% HSU, CHENG-
CHIANG 

With second-degree 
relative, HSU, 

CHENG-CHIANG 
CHUANG, TZU-HUA 2,740,464 4.41% 10,500 0.02% 0 0% NA NA 
Longwei Co., Ltd. 2,739,738 4.41% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 
Longwei Co., Ltd. 
Representative: CHUANG, 
TZU-HUA 

2,740,464 4.41% 10,500 0.02% 0 0% NA NA 

HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 2,009,622 3.24% 10,792 0.02% 0 0% Hsin Chin 
Hsin Hsiang 

Second-degree 
relative with the 
representative of 

Hsin Chin and Hsin 
Hsiang 

WU, CHIEN-HSIEN 1,862,000 3% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 
Hsin Hsiang Investment Co., 
Ltd. 1,247,483 2.01% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 

Hsin Hsiang Investment Co., 
Ltd. 
Representative: HUANG, 
CHIN-SHU 

1,459 0.002% 0 0% 0 0% HSU, CHENG-
CHIANG 

With second-degree 
relative, HSU, 

CHENG-CHIANG 

YEH, MENG-YI 780,000 1.26% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 
Syscore Corporation 600,000 0.97% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 
Syscore Corporation 
Representative: CHUNG, 
CHIH-CHUN 

0 0% 0 0% 0 0% NA NA 
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(IX) Consolidated number of shares owned by the Company, directors, supervisors, managerial officers, 
and business controlled directly or indirectly by the Company:  

Unit: Share; % 

Invested Company 
Investment by the Company 

Investment by 
directors/supervisors/ managers 

and by companies directly or 
indirectly controlled by the 

Company 

Total Investment 

Shares % Shares % Shares % 

GrandTech (B.V.I) Inc. 4,000,000 100% 0 0 4,000,000 100% 

GrandTech (Cayman)Inc. 1,922,000 100% 0 0 1,922,000 100% 

DeepStone Technology Co., Ltd. 2,447,440 81% 0 0 4,958,439 81% 
Abico Digital Imaging 
Technology Co., Ltd. 100,000 100% 0 0 100,000 100% 

Cogate Co., Ltd. 1,377,000 51% 0 0 1,275,000 51% 

GrandTech Cloud Services Inc. 15,148,113 74.33% 1,088,140 5.34% 16,236,253 79.67% 

Goldsun Application Technology 
Co., Ltd. 2,000,000 100% 0 0 2,000,000 100% 
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IV. Capital Overview 

(I) Capital and Shares 
A. Sources of Capital 

Year/Month 
Issue 
Price 
(NT$) 

Authorized Capital Share capital Remark 

Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of capital 
(NT$) 

Capital Increased 
by Assets Other 

than Cash 
Other 

2010.07 10 105,000 1,050,000 49,547 495,473 Private placement of 
70,000,000 None 

Approval document number passed by the 
Shareholders’ Meeting of 2010 on August 
16, 2010: F.C.Y.S.Zi No. 09986739100 

2011.07 10 105,000 1,050,000 48,260 482,603 
Capital decrease of 
treasury stock of 
12,870,000 

None 
Approval document number passed by the 
Board of Directors of 2011 on August 15, 
2011: F.C.Y.S.Zi No. 10084975010 

2013.06 10 105,000 1,050,000 54,260 542,603 Cash capital increase of 
60,000,000 None 

Approval document number passed by the 
Board of Directors of 2013 on February 
27, 2013: J.G.Z.F.Zi No. 1020017007 

2014.02 10 105,000 1,050,000 58,748 587,483 Share exchange of 
44,880,000 

Share swap 
11,220 thousand 

shares 

Approval document number passed by the 
Board of Directors of 2013 on July 16, 
2013: J.G.Z.F.Zi No. 1020040924 

2014.12 10 105,000 1,050,000 56,518 565,183 
Capital decrease of 
treasury stock of 
22,300,000 

None 
Approval document number passed by the 
Board of Directors of 2014 on December 
3, 2014: J.S.S.Zi No. 10301245350 

2015.02 10 105,000 1,050,000 55,143 551,433 
Capital decrease of 
treasury stock of 
13,750,000 

None 
Approval document number passed by the 
Board of Directors of 2015 on January 20, 
2015: J.S.S.Zi No. 10401046970 

2017.08 10 105,000 1,050,000 57,825 578,250 
Conversion of surplus 
to increase capital of 
26,817,000 

None 
Approval document number passed by the 
Shareholders’ Meeting of 2017 on August 
25, 2017: J.S.S.Zi No. 10601117680 

2018.12 10 105,000 1,050,000 56,316 563,160 
Capital decrease of 
treasury stock of 
15,090,000 

None 
Approval document number passed by the 
Board of Directors of 2018 on December 
4, 2018: J.S.S.Zi No. 10701148990 

2019.08 10 105,000 1,050,000 59,037 590,374 
Conversion of surplus 
to increase capital of 
27,214,000 

None 
Approval document number passed by the 
Shareholders’ Meeting of 2018 on August 
14, 2019: J.S.S.Zi No. 10801103500 

2021.12 10 105,000 1,050,000 57,589 575,894 
Capital decrease of 
treasury stock of 
14,480,000 

None 
Approval document number passed by the 
Board of Directors of 2021 on December 
7, 2021: J.S.S.Zi No. 11001219700 

2022.11 10 105,000 1,050,000 62,089 620,894 Cash capital increase of 
45,000,000 None 

Approval document number passed by the 
Board of Directors of 2022 on September 
23, 2022: J.G.Z.F.Zi No. 1110356641 

 

Type of stock 
Authorized capital 

Remark 
Issued shares Unissued shares Total 

Common stock 62,089,430 42,910,570 105,000,000 TPEx listed stock 

Reporting system: None. 
 

B. Shareholder Structure 
April 12, 2024 

S h a r e h o l d e r  
s t r u c t u r e  

 
N u m b e r  

 
G o v e r n m e n t  

a g e n c i e s  

 
F i n a n c i a l  

i n s t i t u t i o n s  

O t h e r  
i n s t i t u t i o n a l  
s h a r e h o l d e r s  

D o m e s t i c  
n a t u r a l  
p e r s o n s  

Fo r e i gn  
i n s t i t u t i o n s  &  

n a t u r a l  p e r s o n s  
To t a l  

N u m b e r  o f  
s h a r e h o l d e r s  0 0 198 10,264 29 10,491 
N u m b e r  o f  
s h a r e s  0 0 20,975,135 39,577,756 1 , 5 3 6 , 5 3 9  62,089,430 

P e r c e n t a g e  ( % )  0 0 33.79 63.74 2.47 100 
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C. Shareholding distribution status 
Common stock  Face value per share: NT$ 10  April 12, 2024 

Range of shares Number of 
shareholders Current shareholding Shareholding (%) 

1-999 5588 422,491 0.68 
1000-5000 3851 7,512,984 12.1 
5001-10000 502 3,667,019 5.91 
10001-15000 187 2,301,419 3.71 
15001-20000 72 1,301,869 2.1 
20001-30000 92 2,243,843 3.61 
30001-40000 51 1,794,249 2.89 
40001-50000 30 1,353,489 2.18 
50001-100000 48 3,461,413 5.57 
100001-200000 33 4,755,735 7.66 
200001-400000 18 4,921,942 7.93 
400001-600000 10 4,797,437 7.73 
600001-800000 1 780,000 1.26 
800001-1000000 0 0 0 
Above 1000001 8 22,775,540 36.67 

Total: 10,491 62,089,430 100 
Preferred stock: The Company hasn’t issued preferred stock. 

 
D. List of major shareholders 

Names, shareholding, and ratio of shareholders with shareholding ratio above 5% or 
top-10 shareholders in terms of shareholding ratio.  

April 12, 2024 
Shares 

Name of Major Shareholders Current shareholding Shareholding (%) 

Minerva Capital Inc. 6,070,383 9.78% 

Cana Investment Co., Ltd. 
 

3,076,480 4.95% 
Hsin Chin Investment Co., Ltd. 3,029,370 4.88% 
CHUANG, TZU-HUA 2,740,464 4.41% 
Longwei Co., Ltd. 2,739,738 4.41% 
HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 2,009,622 3.24% 
WU, CHIEN-HSIEN 1,862,000 3% 
Hsin Hsiang Investment Co., Ltd. 1,247,483 2.01% 
YEH, MENG-YI 780,000 1.26% 
Syscore Corporation 600,000 0.97% 

 
E. Market price, net worth, earnings, dividend and related information over the last two years 

Year 
Item 2022 2023 As of March 31, 

2024 

Market price 
per share 

Highest 61.2 76.3 70.7 
Lowest 49.7 53.2 65.6 
Average 53.71 67.27 68.15 

Net worth per 
share 

Before distribution 23.13 22.15 20.94 
After distribution 23.13 22.15 20.94 
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Year 
Item 2022 2023 As of March 31, 

2024 
Earnings per 

share 
Weighted Average Shares 58,305 62,089 62,089 
Earnings per share 5.49 3.95 0.84 

Dividends per 
share 

Cash dividends 5.00215726 4 - 

Stock 
dividends 

Dividends from 
retained earnings 

0 0 - 

Dividends from 
capital surplus 

- - - 

Cumulative unpaid dividends - - - 

Return on 
investment 

Price/Earnings ratio 10.22 17.15 - 
Price/Dividend ratio 10.74 16.93 - 
Cash dividend yield rate (%) 9.31 5.91 - 

 
F. Dividend Policy and Implementation 

1. Dividend policy in the Articles of Incorporation 
The implementation method of the dividend policy of the Company shall be 
determined in accordance with relevant factors including the Company’s future capital 
budget planning, satisfaction with shareholders’ requirements for cash inflows, and 
assurance of market competitiveness. The cash dividends shall not be lower than 10% 
of the total shareholders’ dividends, and shall be paid in accordance with Articles 24 
of the Articles of Association. With reference to the policy for dividends paid by the 
Company in the last five years, at least 80% of the earnings annually distributed shall 
be set aside to distribute shareholders’ dividends. If the Company makes profits or has 
abundant capital in the future, at least 80% of the earnings annually distributed will be 
distributed as shareholders’ dividends every year according to the previous actual 
dividend distribution policy given the objective of maintaining stable dividends, and 
the cash dividends shall not be lower than 10% of total dividends. 

2. Implementation status: 
During the profit distribution in 2023, the Company distributed cash dividends of 
NT$248,357,720, and cash of NT$4 was distributed as earnings per share. 

 
G. Impact on the operating performance and earnings per share of the Company resulting from 

stock dividend distribution proposed at the Shareholders’ Meeting: Not applicable since 
the Company is not required to disclose its financial forecast information as stipulated. 

 
H. Compensation of employees and directors: 

1. If there is a remaining amount after the income before tax obtained by the Company 
in current year exclusive of employee remuneration and director remuneration is used 
to make up the losses, no more than 3% of this amount shall be set aside as director 
remuneration, while 4%-11% of this amount shall be set aside as employee 
remuneration respectively. The objects to whom the preceding employee remuneration 
is paid, either in stock or cash, include employees of subordinate companies who 
comply with certain conditions. The certain conditions are established by the Board of 
Directors. The employee remuneration shall be distributed in stock or cash, with the 
attendance of more than two thirds of directors of the Board of Directors and the 
resolution of more than half number of attending directors, and then reported to the 
Shareholders’ Meeting. 

2. Where there is a discrepancy between the amount distributed and the amount estimated 
with the estimated amount of employee remuneration and director remuneration 
estimated in current period as the estimation basis and the calculation basis of number 
of shares corresponding to stock dividends, it shall be recognized as profit or loss in 
the year of distribution. 

3. Approval of compensation distribution by the Board of Directors: 
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(1) Amount of employee remuneration and director remuneration distributed in cash or 
stock: 

a. The Company set aside 0.8% of the aforesaid amount, i.e., NT$2,388,430, and 
4% of the aforesaid amount, i.e., NT$11,997,155, as director remuneration and 
employee remuneration respectively based on a corresponding resolution 
passed by the Board of Directors on March 7, 2023. 

b. The discrepancy between the recognized expense and the annually estimated 
amount shall be disclosed if any, together with reason thereof and how it is 
being handled: Not involved. 

(2) Amount of employee remuneration distributed in stock, and ratio in the total amount 
of net profit after tax and total employee remuneration indicated in current 
individual or separate financial report: Not applicable. 

4. Where there is a discrepancy between the actual distribution of employee remuneration 
and director remuneration in the previous year (including number of shares distributed, 
amount, and share price), and the recognized employee remuneration and director 
remuneration, the discrepancy, reason thereof, and how it is being handled shall be 
described: 
(1) The actual distribution of employee remuneration and director remuneration of 

the Company for the year 2022 is as follows: 
a. Cash dividends for employees: NT$14,262,684; b. Director remuneration: 

NT$2,852,537 
(2) Where there is a discrepancy between the aforesaid amount and the recognized 

employee remuneration and director remuneration, the discrepancy, reason thereof, 
and how it is being handled shall be described: The employee remuneration and 
director remuneration of the Company for the year 2022 were consistent with the 
estimated amount. 

 
I. Share repurchases: None. 

 
(II) Corporate Bonds: None. 

(III)Preferred Shares: None. 
(IV)Global Depository Receipts: None. 
(V)Employee Stock Options: None. 
(VI)Issuance of New Shares in Connection with Mergers and Acquisitions: None. 
(VII)Financing Plans and Implementation: None 
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V. Operational Highlights 
(I) Business Scope 

A. 2023 Group Revenue Mix 
Unit: NT$ Million 

Business Category Rev. 2023 Proportion Rev. 2022 Proportion 

Cloud Services for IaaS and 

SaaS distribution 
          2,039 39%           1,771 34% 

Products and Services for 

Enterprise 
          2,758 53%           2,933 55% 

Digital Printing Equipment 

and Services 
           414 8%            583 11% 

 
 

B. New Products (Services) Development 

Digital industrial 
printing equipment 
& services 
Large format 
printers 
Digital lamination 
machine 
3D additive 
manufacturing 
equipment 

SaaS products 
Creative graphic 
software and 
hardware products 
for professional 
designer and office 
use 

Network 
communication 
software and 
hardware IT 
integration services 
For manufacturing, 
R&D, and design use 
CAD/CAM/CAE/PD 
M/PLM software 

Cloud hosting and 
managing Service 
with Consulting & 
Advisory services for 
startups and 
enterprises 

SaaS & 
Distribution 

Business 

Intelligent 
Printing Service 

Enterprise 
Business 

Cloud Service 
Business 

Attributes of Key Customers 

Brand owners/manufacturers 
/Production suppliers/Internet 

business clients 

Enterprises/Education 
market Resellers 

Taiwan/Hong Kong/Mainland China/Southeast Asia 
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New Products New Services 

 The products (Services) for 
Software as a Service (SaaS) and 
Infrastructure as a Service (IaaS) 

 The related products and services 
for printing requirement 

Continue to optimize the value‐added 
service platform system of Armin for 
enterprise use, as well as cloud hosting and 
managing services and cost optimization 
services for Infrastructure as a Service 
(IaaS) 

 
C. Industry overview 

1. The Current Condition and Development of the Industry 
(1) The Overview of the Cloud Service Industry 

According to calculations by Synergy Research Group, the market share of 

Amazon in the cloud industry is 31% in Q4 2023, a slight decrease from 33% in 

the last year. At the same time, Amazon’s main competitor, Microsoft, is gradually 

approaching and its market share set a record of 24% in Q4 2023. Coupled with 

Google’s market share of 11%, the “Three Giants” now account for two-thirds of 

the market share of the market, while other competitors’ market share remains in 

single figures (see Graph 1). The reason for the change is likely to be: the rise of 

AI technology. 

(Graph 1) Q4 2023 The Market Share Rankings of Global Cloud Service Providers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Statista 2024 Feb. 

 

Although the market size is already huge, the growth of the market is also rising rapidly. 

In Q4 2023, the global cloud service infrastructure expenditure increased by US$12 

billion compared with Q4 2022, and the total expenditure in Q4 2023 reached US$73.7 

billion, an annual growth rate of more than 20%. Not only the “growth rate”, but also 
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the “expenditure scale” is increasing at the same time. For the whole year of 2023, the 

expenditure of global enterprises on cloud service infrastructure reached US$270 

billion. The total expenditure in this category grew by 19% throughout 2023, and the 

annual growth rate reached 20% in Q4 2023. It is remarkable that the expenditure grew 

by US $5.6 billion from Q3 to Q4 2023, which is 8.2% by quarter. This market has 

expanded and its quarterly growth rate is the highest in recent years. 

According to the forecast of another research institution, Gartner (see Graph 2), cloud 

services (the entire market) are expected to experience growth rates of up to 20% in 

2024. 

 

(Graph 2) 2024 Growth Rate Forecast of the Cloud Market 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: Gartner Research Institute 2023 Nov. 

 

These data prove that the scale of the cloud service market is so large that its growth 

rate has reached as high as 19-20%. This growth speed may naturally drive changes in 

the global financial market. As a result of the global investment boom in AI and data 

centers, a solid foundation has been established according to the statistics, and the 

biggest beneficiary is Microsoft, which is perceivable from its financial performance. 

The growth (and the profitability) in its Q4 2023 financial report can further prove that 

the changes brought by AI are not imaginative. Microsoft benefited the most from the 

rise of AI technology. The scope of Microsoft Azure was only half of Amazon AWS 5 

years ago and is now estimated to be about three-quarters of AWS. Azure’s revenue 

grew by 30% in the quarter, with an annual growth of 20% in the overall Intelligence 

Cloud division (including Azure revenue), compared to an annual growth rate of 13% 

for AWS. The Intelligence Cloud division including Azure generated 46% of 
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Microsoft’s total operating profit, which is a significant increase from approximately 

27% in 2016. 

 

Amazon AWS spent several months launching models that compete with GPT-4, and 

besides offering its own models, it also offered some other models, including 

Anthropic models supported by Amazon. AWS provides the “widest range of Nvidia 

chip computing applications”, and customers such as Airbnb and Snap are using its 

own AI processors.  AWS also expects that the bionic AI will bring hundreds of 

millions of US dollars to Amazon in the next few years, equivalent to more than one 

hundred million New Taiwan dollars of a new revenue scale. At present, the leading 

market share of AWS still brings advantages to Amazon, including the capacities that 

can be invested in the future. 

From Graph 3, Microsoft’s capital expenditure in 2023 was US$28.1 billion, while the 

one of Amazon was US$52.7 billion. According to LSEG statistics, Wall Street 

analysts estimated that Microsoft’s capital expenditure would increase to US$34.7 

billion by 2028, with a CAGR of 4.3%, while Amazon would grow to US$65.7 billion, 

a CAGR of 4.5%. 

(Graph 3) Capital Expenditure Forecast of the World’s Two Major Cloud Service Providers 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Source: LSEG February 13, 2024 

 

Although not all of these amounts are only invested in the construction of data centers, 

it is still remarkable how large its scale is. It has been large enough to grow at a rate 

higher than the global GDP growth for at least 5 years, which will certainly attract the 

attention of global analysts. This is still the current expectation; however, in the future, 

if the two companies decide to compete in capital expenditure, the Total Addressable 

Market will expand, and the entire supply chain will certainly benefit from it, but the 
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profit that each enterprise may gain depends on their own skills. 
 

(2) The Overview of the Digital Printing Industry 
The Overview of the Global Digital Printing Packaging Industry  
According to a report published by Smithers in 2022, “The Future of Digital Printing 
to 2032”, the key to the global printing market development is the future development 
of digital printing technology. The digital printing market will continue to grow 
strongly in the next few years and is expected to reach US$108 billion by 2032, 
representing a CAGR of 8.5%. 
The advancement and widespread application of digital printing technology will bring 
about several important changes within the industry: 
1) Improved production efficiency: Through the integration of automation technology 

and continual enhancements in production efficiency, digital printing technology is 
gradually replacing traditional printing methods. 

2) Adoption of new materials: The progress and application of digital printing 
technology will also drive the development and utilization of new materials, 
expanding the range of applications in the printing field. 

3) Focus on green printing: The adoption of digital printing technology is further 
propelling the development of environmentally friendly and sustainable printing 
practices. 

 
 

i. Breakthrough of the Digital technology in existing packaging boundaries 
Emerging technologies such as big data, customer relationship management (CRM), 
artificial intelligence (AI), automation, and virtual/augmented reality (VR/AR) 
have become increasingly important and influential, driving the need for 
advancements in packaging and printing technology. To meet these demands, 
various areas of packaging and printing technology are undergoing improvements. 
This includes the development of manufacturing automation, inkjet technology, IT 
and cloud technology, intelligent packaging solutions, and online platform services. 
Simultaneously, there is a growing emphasis on enhancing customer service and 
improving production efficiency. Additionally, the expanded utilization of 
technologies like QR codes, RFID, NFC, and AR, coupled with advancements in 
active intelligent packaging systems, serialized monitoring codes, thermochromic 
ink, and multitracking systems, further accelerate the mining and development of 
big data. Intelligent packaging aims to cater to consumer preferences, supply chain 
models, short production cycles, rapid marketing launches, personalization, and 
high‐end development. It also addresses important considerations such as brand 
protection and sustainable development. These factors collectively contribute to the 
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gradual transformation of traditional single‐product packaging into multifunctional 
media. 

 
ii. Creation of a new cross-field consumption ecosystem 

Digital printing technology continues to evolve, and investing in it can drive 
business innovation and enhance customer service. By embracing the concept of 
Print as a Service and adopting a supply chain approach, businesses can offer 
comprehensive one‐stop printing services that cater to customer needs. 
Collaborating with strategic partners, they can establish a complete printing service 
process. Moreover, the business model in the printing market is expanding beyond 
regional and industry boundaries. Print manufacturers are transforming into brand 
and product manufacturers, creating a new type of consumption circle. This shift 
aims to reduce the manufacturing time of products and integrate them with AR/VR 
technologies and the Internet of Things (IoT). 

 
iii. Product packaging as an Extension of Consumers 

Social media has had a profound impact on consumer behavior. Consumers now 
play a vital role in co‐creating personalized products with brand manufacturers. The 
emergence of digital printing and Print-on-Demand services allows consumers to 
actively participate in the customization process. This not only enhances their 
consumption intentions but also shortens the gap between online platforms and 
offline production processes. The marketing costs associated with digital printing 
and customization have significantly decreased compared to traditional media, 
while the effectiveness has increased by approximately 30%. In the fiercely 
competitive global packaging market, market differentiation is a crucial factor in 
distancing oneself from competitors. Product content and the customization and 
personalization of outer packaging are key elements in winning over customers. For 
example, in the saturated U.S. cereal flakes market, Mymuesli, a brand 
manufacturer, positions its product as “the extension of consumers.” Using digital 
printing technology, they have created 30 different customized designs for their 
packaging to captivate consumers’ attention. They recognize packaging as a crucial 
medium for communicating with consumers. By offering a wide variety of 
customized packaging designs, Mymuesli not only increases consumer engagement 
but also strengthens the connection between the brand and its customers.  

Source: Using digital innovations to create personalized packaging at scale 
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Graph 4: The customization service allows consumers to choose and design the outer packaging on their own Source: 

Mymuesli Official website 

 

In general, the digital printing industry is poised for continuous growth due to the 
ongoing advancement and application of technology. This growth presents various 
business opportunities and avenues for development. Specifically, when 
considering the applications of labels and flexible packaging on products, the key 
to maintaining competitiveness and market share lies in enhancing technological 
innovation and achieving product differentiation. 

 
 
 
 
 

(3) Relationships with Suppliers in the Industry’s Supply Chain 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Graph 5: The relationship Graph of sales channels between upstream and downstream of 

Information and Communications Technology Industry 

Vendors of 
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Regarding the existing sales channels within the Information and Communications 
Technology (ICT) industry, in the upstream area, well‐known international 
hardware and software manufacturers dominate the market. They typically operate 
through regional management mechanisms, authorizing local agents (such as 
general distributors or value‐added distributors) to handle channel management at 
the regional level. Moving downstream, the sales of information‐related products 
are managed by system integrators, distributors, specialty stores, and information 
consulting agencies. Upstream manufacturers primarily focus on research and 
development, as well as distributing and selling ICT products to end‐users. Within 
this ecosystem, midstream suppliers, known as value‐added distributors, play a key 
role. Their primary business is to promote the market and establish marketing 
channels. Value‐added distributors differ from logistics distributors. 
At the beginning of the Company, we were a value-added distributor, providing 
value-added marketing services for the upstream SaaS cloud software and related 
distributed products, so that the professional services of downstream partners could 
provide more diversified sales and services for market users. Unlike logistics 
distributors who only focus on product sales, there are not too many related 
professional services provided. 
As the cloud service industry continues to grow, the traditional boundaries of sales 
channels are gradually breaking down regional restrictions. Enterprises’ increasing 
demand for digital transformation requires them to rely on distributors and agencies 
to provide consulting and installation services for procuring or establishing various 
information software and hardware. To meet this demand, channels are being 
integrated, combining value‐added distributors with system distributors. This 
integration aims to provide comprehensive professional services for end‐enterprise 
users, ensuring their needs are met throughout the digital transformation journey. 
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Graph 6: The correlation between upstream and downstream channels of cloud service industry 

 
GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. has embraced the changing times and transformed into 
a comprehensive business operator. In 2017, the company ventured into the cloud 
service business, obtaining the qualification of a cloud-managed service provider 
(MSP) as indicated in the channel correlation graph. Leveraging its core 
competitiveness in cloud services, the company has expanded its presence in the 
external market. It has invested in professional technical capabilities and enhanced 
its value‐added marketing services to create business advantages. 
Based on the IaaS (Infrastructure as a Service) products of upstream manufacturers, 
the Company has capitalized on its strengths and increased investments in cloud 
services. It has developed its value‐added operation platform to provide multi‐cloud 
services to clients. Additionally, the company conducts real‐time monitoring and 
analysis of public clouds from different suppliers, setting itself apart from 
competitors in the market.  

 
(4) Product Trends and Competition 

With the growing trend of cloud applications and the booming development of the 
Internet of Things (IoT), international industry leaders with mature market shares are 
utilizing cloud‐based business service models to directly provide products and 
services to end‐users. However, the promotion of products and services still relies on 
existing partner businesses to jointly operate in regional markets. 
The cloud computing environment is gradually changing the deployment model and 
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procurement methods for enterprise software and hardware. Enterprises no longer 
need to spend a significant amount of money to purchase software licenses outright. 
Instead, they can subscribe to or rent services, acquiring software usage rights 
through online downloads. 
The global supply chain restructuring resulting from the China-US trade war and the 
COVID-19 pandemic in 2020 has led countries worldwide to recognize and re-
evaluate Taiwan’s position in the global supply chain. The application of information 
products in 5G, AI, and electric vehicles is on the rise. Furthermore, the time 
efficiency of digital packaging and intelligent manufacturing is crucial for meeting 
the demands of mass production. Local value-added distributors play a vital role in 
providing professional services, including marketing and promotion, technical 
support, consulting, and customized business solutions. Companies must cater to the 
needs of various businesses and local enterprises while collaborating with local 
distributors to cultivate the market and generate profits. Only a forward‐thinking and 
transformative multi‐digital service operator like GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. can 
shoulder the responsibility of creating a marketing model that aligns with the local 
market while creating greater business opportunities for the Information Industry. 

 
D. Research and Development 

1. Research and development expenses in the most recent year and as of the publication date 
of the annual report 
Our company, as a leading position, has long been engaged in distributing and marketing 
renowned professional software and hardware products in the fields of digital, imaging, 
multimedia, and cybersecurity networks. As the cloud services industry experienced rapid 
growth, our company transformed in 2016 to become a value-added service provider of IaaS 
and SaaS cloud services. We also made significant investments in the research and 
development of professional service platforms tailored to enterprise clients. To ensure our 
competitive advantage, we established an R&D unit dedicated to the development of a 
forward-looking and cost-effective transnational multi-cloud service platform system. This 
platform intelligently calculates data usage for cloud service users. Moving forward, we will 
continue to invest in R&D for cloud service-related technologies. The estimated R&D 
expenses are carefully planned and allocated based on the progress of each development 
project. 
 

2. Successfully developed technologies or products  
One of our notable achievements is the successful development of a transnational multi-
cloud service platform for commercial use by enterprises. This platform not only allows 
enterprise users from around the world to monitor and analyze the usage status of public 
clouds from various brands, such as AWS and Google Cloud, on a single platform but also 
provides real-time insights into sales trends and client consumption habits. Regular data 
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analysis enables us to offer value-added services and seize new opportunities for business 
development. 
 

E. Long-term and Short-term Business Development Plans 
1. The Overview of Short-term Plans 

(1) We are dedicated to the growth and expansion of our cloud service business, aiming to 
become the leading platform that empowers the startup ecosystem. Our focus spans 
various sectors, including mobile applications, gaming, new retailing, e-learning 
platforms, and other cloud-native startups. As a cloud service provider, we offer 
customers a comprehensive integrated billing system, ensuring a professional and 
seamless experience. Our platform assists global enterprises in their digital 
transformation journey and facilitates cross‐industry collaborations. By fostering strong 
customer relationships, we ensure stable company growth, specifically in terms of 
annual recurring revenue (ARR). 

 
(2) We have established a strong foothold in the digital printing market and forged strategic 

partnerships with customers, actively seeking new regional and global clients. By 
harnessing the synergies of digital printing, MarTech, and anti‐counterfeiting 
technologies, we offer innovative printing solutions that cater to the needs of enterprises. 
Our focus is on nurturing the digital transformation of traditional printing companies 
and equipping them with digital printing capabilities to compete effectively in the global 
market. Through our efforts, we assist corporate clients in unlocking greater market 
opportunities, resulting in a mutually beneficial win‐win situation. 

 
(3) We are strategically positioning ourselves in the 3D printing and additive manufacturing 

application market to capitalize on the leading opportunities in smart manufacturing. 
The advancements in 3D additive manufacturing technology and its applications are 
synchronized with the global impact of the pandemic, creating an impetus for the 
comprehensive deployment of smart manufacturing amid the industry’s “chain‐
breaking” crisis. As the market evolves, production processes have become 
decentralized, leading to a significant increase in demand for production volume and 
post‐sales service flexibility, making the adoption of smart manufacturing a necessity. 
The key advantages of 3D printing in smart manufacturing lie in its ability to offer high 
customization and flexible production capabilities. By integrating digital design, cloud 
computing technology, additive layer manufacturing processes, and high‐quality 
application materials, we not only provide innovative integrated solutions but also assist 
the manufacturing industry in overcoming challenges and undergoing transformative 
value-added changes. The potential business opportunities it brings are crucial to our 
deployment and development strategies. 
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(4) We are intensifying our business development efforts in the Hong Kong regional market, 
aiming to increase our market penetration in cloud and agency businesses (SaaS & 
Distribution) and expand our presence in the local enterprise commercial and education 
markets. With over 30 years of deeply rooted local presence, our Hong Kong subsidiary 
has built an excellent reputation and service track record. We will continue expanding 
the availability of SaaS software and professional agency software and hardware 
products in the commercial market, further enhancing customer loyalty and driving the 
growth of recurring revenue. 

 
(5) Our objective is to achieve steady growth in the enterprise user markets in both Taiwan 

and Hong Kong while enhancing operational efficiency. Under the umbrella of the 
Upstream Asia Pacific value‐added service platform, our subsidiary companies such as 
Hong Kong Senco Masslink, NetCore, and GSA consistently deliver professional IT 
integration services to cater to the needs of local commercial and education market users. 
Our goal is to increase market share and achieve significant growth in these regions. 

 
2. The Overview of Long-term Plans 

(1) Cultivating Value-added Business in Asia 
GrandTech has transformed into a comprehensive multi-digital service operator, 
expanding our presence in Taiwan, Hong Kong, China, Singapore, Malaysia, and 
Indonesia. Our primary focus is on regional development and aligning regional 
resources to establish a complete value-added marketing platform in the Asia-Pacific 
region. By leveraging the strengths of our value-added services, we aim to grow in the 
Asian market and expand our business territory. Through our Asia-Pacific marketing 
platform and staying abreast of the latest trends, we strive to have a positive impact on 
various sectors such as cloud services, digital printing, creative content, education, and 
startups. This approach allows us to harness the expertise and capabilities of local 
professional enterprises within the Group to drive our business forward. 

(2) Emphasizing Cloud Service and Digital Printing Businesses 
GrandTech will continue to prioritize the growth of our cloud service and digital printing 
businesses, always striving for customer success. As a service operator, our core 
business model revolves around developing a cloud service accounting platform to meet 
the market’s demand for integrated multi-cloud services. Concurrently, we aim to 
expand our market share in the digital printing market and leverage digital printing 
solutions to drive enterprise innovation and fuel business growth. 
Throughout the years, GrandTech has established itself as a leading operator and 
marketer, offering a diverse range of products, including drawing, video, and 
multimedia software and hardware, SaaS, IaaS, and network communication software 
and hardware. We collaborate with renowned international brands such as Adobe, AWS, 
GCP, Microsoft Azure, WACOM, Google Workspace, Microsoft M365, Corel, Quark, 
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Celsys, Filemaker, HP, OKI, Juniper, A10, Peplink, Pulse Secure, and Mist, to provide 
integrated solutions. Additionally, we offer digital printing equipment products and 
services from industry-leading manufacturers like HP Indigo, Scodix, Esko, and Roland, 
catering to various business needs. By integrating our products and services, leveraging 
our existing Asia-Pacific marketing platform, and expanding our value‐added marketing 
network with strong product lines, we aim to introduce market‐leading solution products 
that generate new demand. We also seek to form alliances with international partners to 
solidify our position as the premier Asia-Pacific cloud value-added service provider. 

 
(II) Market and Industry Outlook 

A. Market Analysis 
1. Sales Area of Main Products 

Unit: NT$ million 

  

2023 2022 

Revenue 
Percentage of 
current sales Revenue 

Revenue 

Net % Net % 
Domestic 1,300 25% 1,455 28% 
Overseas 3,910 75% 3,832 72% 

total 5210 100% 5287 100% 
2. Product Positioning 

(1) Cloud services 
Forover 30 years, GrandTech has firmly established itself as a leading provider of 
sales and marketing services for professional graphic, gaming, and multimedia 
software and hardware products, along with their associated creative applications. 
As the cloud services landscape continues to evolve, we have experienced 
substantial growth in recurring revenue from SaaS cloud service subscriptions, 
which encompass offerings from industry giants such as Adobe, Microsoft M365, 
and Google Workspace. Our company plays a pivotal role in the commercial and 
education markets of Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macau. 

 
With the rapid advancements in cloud computing, the innovative IaaS cloud model 
has gained significant traction within the native cloud industry and start‐up 
businesses. GrandTech has also achieved remarkable progress in this realm. 
GrandTech Cloud Services (GCS), an important cloud service business unit of 
GrandTech group, we have developed a cutting‐edge business model with a multi‐
cloud billing system for cloud services customers. It is a value‐added platform with 
the advantage of cost optimization and almost real‐time monitoring usage, along 
with comprehensive data analysis, optimization, and consulting services. GCS 
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business category now covers the region including Taiwan, Hong Kong, and 
Southeast Asia, and proudly holds the esteemed status of an AWS Advanced 
Consulting Partner (APN) and a Managed Service Partner (MSP) of Amazon Web 
Services (AWS). Moreover, GCS is a Solution Provider Program (SPP) partner and 
obtained ISO 27001 Information Security Management System certification (ISMS) 
in January 2019. It is also recognized as a trusted business partner of Google Cloud 
Service. 

 
 
 
 
 

(2) Digital printing and intelligent packaging integration services 
The digitalization of the global printing industry is an ongoing and growing trend. 
There is a rising demand for digital printing equipment and services. Traditional 
printing processes are often characterized by large quantities, long lead times, and 
limited flexibility. In contrast, digital printing offers convenience and time 
efficiency. Integrating digital printing into current production processes, 
particularly in the initial and final phases, is crucial for driving growth. Leading 
international manufacturers such as HP Indigo, Heidelberg, Man Roland, Koenig & 
Bauer, Xerox, Mitsubishi Press, Komori Press, and Canon have established their 
presence in the printing industry with their unique strengths and advantages. Each 
brand offers different digital printing solutions to meet customization needs and so 
on. Other reputable digital printing solution provider such as Scodix, Topix, and 
Esko also develop their specialized solutions for various stages of the printing 
process. 
Recognizing the trend and increasing demand, our company has placed a strong 
focus on intelligent high‐speed printing and has adopted HP Indigo as our core 
product solution for the market’s needs. We have successfully built a solid 
reputation based on our cutting‐edge technology and top‐notch services. Our 
dedicated technical team is committed to providing excellent customer assistance, 
maintenance, warranty services, and a reliable supply of consumables. We prioritize 
the training of our technical teams, ensuring they receive professional training and 
certifications from original equipment manufacturers. This ensures that our team is 
equipped with the necessary expertise to deliver exceptional support to our valued 
customers. 
In order to facilitate a broader understanding and utilization of HP Indigo digital 
printing technology, we have developed tailored solutions that are well‐suited for 
printing production and transformation. Our unwavering commitment to 
accelerating the digitalization process is exemplified by our significant investments 
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in establishing the state‐of‐the‐art GrandTech Indigo Center of Excellence (GT 
Indigo COE) in Taiwan. This exceptional facility serves as a showcase for HP 
Indigo equipment and product applications and functions as an authorized training 
center in collaboration with HP to nurture and cultivate professional technical talent. 
We can offer comprehensive services with HP indigo printing applications and 
solutions that provide distinct advantages in customization, making it suitable for 
both small‐scale and large‐scale production requirements. By harnessing the 
capabilities of HP Smart Stream Mosaic software, for example, customers can 
achieve randomized, customized and highly effective color and pattern variations. 
Moreover, our expertise allows us to transfer images onto a diverse range of special 
materials, enabling the creation of customized products to personalized products 
tailored to individual preferences. 
At the heart of our approach lies the use of environmentally friendly electronic ink, 
which is a hallmark of HP Indigo. This ink not only ensures the highest level of 
color coverage but also minimizes ink consumption, thereby enhancing color 
accuracy while reducing environmental impact. Additionally, we leverage 
innovative techniques such as fluorescent ink and invisible ink to elevate corporate 
recognition and provide robust anti‐counterfeiting measures, thus safeguarding 
product authenticity and security. 

 
(3) Professional networking communication software and hardware products as well 

as integration services 
The enterprise business group of GrandTech has been actively engaged in the 
markets of Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Macao for over 30 years. Our primary focus 
is on delivering a comprehensive range of creative software and hardware tools, as 
well as IT Networking Communication products that are essential for the local 
commercial and education sectors. In pursuit of providing high‐quality solutions, 
we maintain close partnerships with internationally renowned brands including 
Adobe, Apple, IBM, HP, DELL, Juniper, FireMon, A10, Peplink, and Pulse Secure. 
These brands are widely recognized and trusted within the telecommunications 
industry, government institutions, educational establishments, as well as small and 
medium enterprises. 
As the manufacturing industry progresses towards Industry 4.0 and aligns with the 
European and U.S. markets, there is a growing demand for intelligent 
manufacturing solutions. In response to this emerging trend, 3D digital application‐
related products play a crucial role in meeting the evolving needs of the industry. 
To cater to this demand, our subsidiary, Goldsun Application Technology Co., Ltd., 
specializes in offering value‐added product services. They focus on selling and 
marketing Siemens Taiwan’s manufacturing R&D design software and 
CAD/CAM/CAE/PDM/PLM solutions. Through this subsidiary, we aim to 
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contribute to the advancement of intelligent manufacturing and support the overall 
growth of the industry. 

 
3. The Future supply and demand situation and growth potential of the market 

(1) Cloud services and information and communications market integration 
According to Dell’Oro’s recent survey, Hybrid Cloud solutions are driving the 
growth of the superscale and enterprise‐level data center market. Global data center 
capital expenditures are projected to reach $400 billion by 2027, an increase of 11%, 
with half of the investment coming from superscale cloud service providers. On‐
premises services also present significant business opportunities. The survey 
highlights ongoing technology innovation in data centers, including advancements 
in server architecture, computing speed optimization, and equipment stability. 
Although short‐term economic factors have slowed data center investment, the 
revitalization of data center architecture is expected to drive long‐term market 
growth. Capital expenditure for edge computing is projected to increase, reaching 
8% by 2027. 

According to Gartner’s forecast, although the growth rate of the cloud service 

industry in 2023 is not as expected due to the slowdown in the global economy, the 

CAGR in 2024-2026 will be adjusted upward by 21%, and the Asia-Pacific region 

and Taiwan region will also be adjusted upward by 28% and 34%, respectively. 

Taiwan’s cloud service market will enter a high-speed growth period of more than 

30% from 2024 to 2026, mainly because Taiwan’s public cloud expenditure in the 

past fell behind the global average. Loosened regulations and geographic advantages 

contributed also to the implementation of the 3 major public clouds and the 

willingness to use the cloud with bio-AI, which will drive enterprises, the 

government, and financial industries to use cloud-based network resources, its 

computing capabilities and storage services.  Multiple engines will drive Taiwan’s 

cloud services to grow rapidly in 3-5 years: (1) In the past, Taiwan’s public cloud 

expenditure fell significantly behind the global average, and the focus of enterprise 

IT expenditure gradually shifted from on-premises optimization and single cloud to 

multi-cloud and hybrid cloud; (2) The loosened regulations in Q3 2023 during the 

Financial Supervisory Commission opened a new page, so the government, financial 

and medical industries will tend to adopt more cloud services. The government and 

the financial industry are large-scale, but the proportion of cloud adoption is 

averagely low. The loosened regulations will create more opportunities for Taiwan’s 

managed cloud service provider (MSP) and software. (3) Geographical advantages 
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attract the implementation of three major cloud service providers. Following 

Google’s first data center, Amazon AWS and Microsoft Azure have started to pay 

more attention to Taiwan’s geographic advantages in the East Asian network hub and 

accelerate the establishment of data centers in Taiwan; (4) The popularization of 

information security software and bionic AI will bring a large demand for computing 

and software services, which will arouse enterprises’ willingness to cloud adoption 

and purchase of value-added services and software, and will rely more on managed 

cloud service providers (MSPs).  
 

(2) The application trends of labels and flexible packaging materials in digital printing 
In recent years, there has been an increasing demand for small-quantity printing and 
customized products, leading to significant growth in the label and flexible packaging 
printing markets. According to MarketsandMarkets, label and flexible packaging are 
expected to contribute the most to this growth. The rise of e‐commerce has further 
fueled the demand for customized packaging and small-quantity printing. The global 
label printing market was valued at $35.9 billion in 2020 and is projected to reach 
$42.6 billion by 2025, with a Compound Annual Growth Rate (CAGR) of 3.5% during 
this period, as reported by Smithers Pira. The use of flexible packaging materials in 
digital printing is also on the rise. Flexible packaging offers advantages such as cost‐
effectiveness, lightweight, and sustainability. According to Allied Market Research, 
the flexible packaging market is estimated to reach $358.7 billion by 2028, with a 
CAGR of 6.2% from 2021 to 2028. 
The report on the global packaging industry by international research institutions, 
StartUs Insights and IDC, respectively summarizes the future development of 
packaging printing. The 10 major packaging-related industry trends include the 
Internet of packaging, biodegradable packaging, digital printing, packaging 
automation, active packaging, customized packaging, recyclable packaging, edible 
packaging, 3D printing, and nanotechnology. Among them, 5 packaging categories that 
can directly or indirectly use digital printing to provide value-added services, which 
shows the wide use of digital printing (see Graph). 
In terms of packaging influence, the ranking of the top three from high to low is 
Internet of packaging > biodegradable packaging > digital printing, and the influence 
of complete digital printing is only 10%. If we add other 5 packaging that is edible 
with digital printing, its influence has reached 72%, which is more important than any 
category.  The ranking of the impact of smart packaging from high to low is food and 
beverage > manufacturing > logistics > marketing technology > retail > electronics > 
pharmaceutical products. These industries that need smart packaging can be 
interpreted as requiring digital printing packaging. Whether it concerns simple data 
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change, advanced tracking and traceability, or high-end anti-counterfeit labels, all rely 
on digital printing. 

(Graph) Top 10 Packaging Industry Trends and Startup Companies 

 

Source: StartUs Insights and IDC 

 
According to the research report of Various research firms, the global market value 
of the labels and flexible packaging industry is estimated to reach US$270 billion by 
2025, of which the market value of digitalization is about US$12 billion, which is 
nearly double from the US$6.67 billion in 2021. The growth is not only rapid, and 
the blue ocean is also boundless. 

 
At present, according to the number of installations and the printing volume of 
customers of digital printing “labels” and “flexible packaging” in Taiwan, the 
production value in these two digital markets is about NT$1.5 billion and NT$420 
million, respectively, compared with the overall market value of the industry, which 
only accounts for 16% and 1.5%, respectively. In either case, the digital market is 
full of infinite possibilities, and these are also the two key markets of GrandTech’s 
continuous operation and innovation. 

 
As companies continue to seek efficient and cost‐effective ways to produce high‐
quality customized packaging, the label and flexible packaging printing market is 
expected to experience continuous growth. 
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Digital printing continues to have 
breakthroughs in the application of 
labels and flexible packaging, driving 
innovation with cross-border thinking, 

integrating the key roles of the industrial chain 
such as creative distributors, brands, and 
suppliers, and even further cooperating with 
startup companies to stimulate the application 
of innovative technologies and conduct long-

term development. With the rise of Printing 4.0, networking, technology, and 
automation have reshaped the perspectives of clients from different industries, leading 
to the transformation of digital printing and redefining packaging concepts. These 
changes have fostered creative ideas and spurred the need for production process 
improvements, new materials, customization, eco‐friendly solutions, and connected 
packaging. Furthermore, disruptive and innovative changes are driving faster and more 
service‐oriented printing workflows. Digital printing, with its advantages in artificial 
intelligence (AI), IoT integration, and the platform economy, takes the spotlight. By 
utilizing AI to collect and analyze big data, valuable insights can be applied to 
manufacturing processes and marketing strategies. For example, data detection can 
extend the lifespan of printing machines, machine parameters can be adjusted for 
efficient production planning, and material usage and logistics efficiency can be 
optimized. At the same time, digital printing enables extensive customization of 
printed items, reducing labor costs and meeting customer demands and trends. The era 
of IoT and digitalization has brought about significant shifts in both the printing 
process and customer expectations. With innovative personalized and profitable 
business models (see Graph 6), we are working with consumers to create a lifestyle 
under the e-commerce structure (see Graph 7). 

 
Currently, printing service providers (PSPs) are adopting this business model to 
accelerate digital transformation and gain a competitive edge. By offering unique and 
exclusive solutions, PSPs can differentiate themselves and enhance the 
competitiveness of product packaging and the manufacturing process. They can also 
leverage intelligent packaging advertising (i‐packvertising), where brand 

Graph 7: Intelligent packaging incorporates QR Codes for 
personalized one‐to‐one marketing. 

Graph 6: Developing a new business model that 

incorporates innovative production processes.
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manufacturers integrate product information with QR codes or electronic devices. 
Consumers can scan the package and access related information using AR/VR 
technology (see Graph 8). This approach simplifies the outer package while providing 
abundant digital information. It offers greater flexibility and adaptability to marketing 
strategies, allowing customers to update product marketing plans without disrupting 
the packaging manufacturing process. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Source: Bemo Café, GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc., SMY Internet Of 

Package Co., Ltd., Design Impression Magazine 

 
 

4. Competitive Niche 
(1) Business Focus 
 Each business group is managed by dedicated professionals who focus on operations 

and collaborate closely within their respective industries and ecosystems. 
 With 30 years of international brand marketing experience, we have accumulated a 

wealth of professional know‐how and expertise. This enables us to stay ahead of the 
curve, seize opportunities, and strategize effectively. 

 Our experienced executives have industry expertise and a deep understanding of 
information and communication products and services. They are leaders in leveraging 
cloud and value‐added services, staying ahead of industry trends and opportunities. 

 We have received recognition and affirmation from our business partners. 
(2) Market Integration and Development Capability 
 We can integrate the professional resources of each business group to provide 

consumers with comprehensive information products and service packages. 
 We strengthen distributor relationships, understand consumer needs, provide 

marketing advice, and align with manufacturers for comprehensive product offerings. 
(3) Strong Marketing and Support-Oriented Team 
 Our elite team specializes in product and application integration and marketing 

planning within their respective industries. 

Graph 8: Innovative packaging integrated with QR Codes adds a 

personal touch to product consumption. 
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 We lead the way in grasping industry development trends, organizing promotional 
events, and providing users with the latest industry knowledge. 

 We continuously improve customer service, ensuring sustainable business 
operations and unique marketing promotions. 

(4) Regional Marketing Platform in Asia 
 Scale up the business and raise entry barriers to create a competitive advantage. 
 Leverage market development experience to generate business synergy. 
 Effectively reduce intangible and tangible operational barriers for vendors. 
 Form a valuable ecosystem with industry development. 
 Gain access to local business connections and resources. 

5. Favorable and Unfavorable Factors of Future Development 
(1) Favorable Factors 
 Professional value‐added marketing platform across the Asia‐Pacific region: 

GrandTech has built a comprehensive and mature value‐added marketing platform and 
channel for selling information software and hardware products in the Asian market. 
With headquarters in Taiwan and branch offices in China, Hong Kong, Singapore, 
Malaysia, and Indonesia, we provide a wide regional presence. Additionally, our 
management platform, “Entrepreneur Paradise”, is led by entrepreneurs, enabling 
partners with an entrepreneurial spirit to join and expand their multinational business 
territory with confidence. 

 
 Professional marketing team and replication of successful experience: 

With over 30 years of experience as an agent selling value‐added professional software 
and hardware products, GrandTech introduces professional management teams in 
Taiwan, Hong Kong, and Malaysia. These teams, led by experienced executive officers, 
establish connections with original equipment manufacturers, distributors, and end‐
users, serving as the best partners in the industry. By replicating our accumulated 
successful experience in other regions and countries, we create win‐win situations with 
local professional business partners, enhancing competitiveness and increasing profits. 

 
 Cultivation of the enterprise user market and provision of professional and high‐ 

quality services to bridge the digitalization gap: 
The development of cloud services has increased the demand for professional 
consulting services and technical guidance among enterprise clients for SaaS, IaaS, 
and IT information and communication software and hardware product procurement. 
To address this, GrandTech has established a professional Managed Service Provider 
(MSP) team. This team assists enterprises in strategically procuring and applying 
various products and services. We stay ahead of industry trends and provide insights 
alongside our consulting services, enabling clients to capitalize on business 
opportunities. By satisfying end‐customers’ needs with convenience and helping to 
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reduce procurement costs and time, we empower our customers to succeed and gain a 
competitive advantage in the market. 

(2) Unfavorable Factors 
 Price determined by manufacturers, small profit margin: 

Countermeasures: Offer diversified value‐added services to generate advantages. 
 Aside from industry competition, the value of services and low profitability are not 

fully recognized: 
Countermeasures: Actively collaborate with vendors and distribution partners to create 
a win‐win ecosystem, promote integrated product procurement, and scale profitability. 

 Economic fluctuations and conservative IT product purchases affect profitability: 
Countermeasures: Strengthen enterprise services, diversify marketing channels, and 
form alliances to mitigate business risks and foster growth. 

 
6. Key Product Application and Manufacturing Process 

(1) Key product line‐up 
 

Product line Products and Services Main purpose 

Professional 
Creative 
design SaaS 

Creative design tools: 
1. Layout design, video 

editing,illustration drawing, audio 
and video editing, animation 
production, web design, 3D 
image/character production.  

2. Asset management, document 
workflow, and website/mobile 
applications related to prototype 
creation and sharing. 

1. Design tools for professional 
creative designers, which can be 
used in campuses, government 
institutions, and 
large/medium/small enterprises.  

2. Online applications, such as 
electronic document 
management and electronic 
signatures, that can completely 
replace hard copy documents to 
fulfill digitalization; electronic 
signatures can replace 
traditional handwritten 
signatures by signing electronic 
documents easily and be 
transmitted through a web 
browser or mobile device; 
assisting enterprises, campuses, 
and government institutions 
with complete digitalization. 

Peripheral 
hardware 
products 
specifically for 
designers 

1. Computer graphic drawing related 
hardware, such as digital graphic 
boards. 

2. Professional image output software 
and hardware. 

Drawing tools for creative design. 

Infrastructure 
as a Service 
(IaaS) 

Cloud Hosting Service 
Cloud Managing Service  
Cloud Architectural Service  
Multi‐cloud billing service platform 
for monitoring and cost optimization 

1.Provide a borderless cloud 
architecture service and 
customized cloud solutions with 
benefit evaluation for enterprise 
users at the best price. 

2. Professional consulting and 
cloud managed services. 

3. Provide B2B accounting systems 
which can integrate complex 
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information of original 
equipment manufacturers; and 
provide enterprises with 
accounting services that are 
simpler and easier to understand 
to improve management 
efficiency. 

Information 
and 
communication 
software and 
hardware 
products for 
enterprises 

Provide services including the 
establishment of internal and external 
networks, infrastructure, and 
information security and Internet 
communication related software and 
hardware products for enterprises. 

Provide enterprises with integrated 
solutions for network environment 
setup and information security, 
including professional consultations 
and setup; and provide holistic 
technical installation and follow‐up 
services for campuses, government 
institutions, and enterprise users in 
various industries. 

Intelligent and 
high‐speed 
digital printing 
equipment and 
service 

Provide digital printing related 
equipment, including commercial 
printing machines, industrial printing 
machines, and post‐processing 
equipment. 
 
Provide digital output software, cloud 
architecture software and services for 
e‐commerce, and 3D additive 
manufacturing equipment. 

1. Provide digital printing 
equipment with leading 
technology that can integrate 
upstream and downstream 
processes; and assist and 
introduce suppliers of label and 
flexible packaging as well as 
enterprise users to digital 
printing production processes. 

2. Provide training and integrated 
courses to cultivate talent with 
international and digital skills. 

3. Ensure equipment adopts 
environmentally friendly 
electronic ink technology that 
can cover 97% of Pantone 
extended gamut. 

4. Ensure equipment can be used in 
multi‐tasking production 
process and is suitable for 
various printing tasks and 
materials. 

5. Combine HP Smart Stream 
Mosaic software technology to 
allow customization for both 
small quantity and mass 
production. 

6. The application of 3D printing 
processes provides the function 
of reshaping parts quality, 
increases productivity, and 
improves economic production 

efficiency. 
 

(2) Manufacturing process: Our company focuses on the distribution and sale of information 
and communication related software and hardware products and services. We do not 
engage in any manufacturing or production processes. Our primary role is to provide 
comprehensive solutions and services to meet the needs of our customers.  
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7. Supply of Essential Raw Materials: 
We sell products and services from renowned international brand manufacturers. Our selling 
rights are stable, and we focus on providing long‐term professional services by training talents. 
We have a certified technical service team for local enterprises and offer cloud IaaS services 
for manufacturers’ review. We are certified advanced partners as well as managed service 
providers (MSP), and the professionalism of our managed services is recognized globally. 

D. List of top-10 major suppliers and customers in the past two years 
1. Suppliers that account for 10% or more total purchases in any one of the past two years 

and the amount and proportion of purchases (sales), as well as the reason for change: 
  Unit: NT$ Thousand 

The customers of the Group are scattered, and therefore there was no customer with sales revenue 
accounting for 10% or more of the total sales in 2023 and 2022. 

 

2. Name of customers that account for 10% or more total sales in any one of the past two 
years and the amount and proportion of sales, as well as the reason for change: 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Item 

2022 2023 As of 2024 Q1 

Name Amount 

Proportion of 
net purchase 
for the year 

(%) 

Relationship 
with the 
issuer 

Name Amount 

Proportion of 
net purchase 
for the year 

(%) 

Relationship 
with the 
issuer 

Name Amount 

Proportion 
of net 

purchase 
for the year 

(%) 

Relations
hip with 

the issuer 

1 A02 1,450,351 32.38 None A02 1,195,997 27.22 None A01 272,312 25.19 None 

2 A01 935,595 20.89 None A01 914,432 20.81 None A02 228,502 21.13 None 

3 Other 2,093,759 46.73 None Other 2,283,260 51.97 None Other 580,406 53.68 None 

 

Net 

purchasing 

amount 

4,479,705 100.00 

- 
Net 

Purchase 
4,393,689 100.00 - 

Net 

Purchase 
1,081,220 100.00 - 

Description of reason for increase or decrease: 

The operating revenue of the parent company and subsidiaries of the Group in 2023 decreased compared with 

that in 2022. In 2023, due to inflation and currency exchange rate in each country, although the overseas 

branches of the Group resumed normal economic communication locally compared with the pre-pandemic 

market, the overall operating performance of GrandTech slightly declined. The main suppliers of the Group 

remained stable in 2023 and 2022. 

Item 

2022 2023 As of 2024 Q1 

Name Amount 

Proportion of 
net purchase 
for the year 

(%) 

Relationship 
with the Issuer 

Name Amount 

Proportion of 
net purchase 
for the year 

(%) 

Relationship 
with the 
Issuer 

Company 
Name 

Amount 

Proportion of 
net purchase 
for the year 

(%) 

Relationship 

with the 

Issuer 

1 Other 5,286,819 100.00 None Other 5,210,306 100.00 None Other 1,304,372 100.00 None 

 
Net 

purchase 
5,286,819 100.00  

Net 

purchase 
5,210,306 100.00  

Net 

purchase 
1,304,372 100.00  
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E. Production volume and value in the past two years: Not applicable since the Company is not in 
the manufacturing industry. 

 

 

 

 

F. Sales volume and value in the past two years 
Year 

 

Main Products 

2023 2022 

Domestic sales Export sales Domestic sales Export sales 

Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value Volume Value 

Professional cloud software 

and services - 
740,251 

 
1,298,470 

- 
525,702 

 
1,245,457 

Products and services for 

corporate users - 
216,934 

 
2,540,943 

- 
406,928 

 
2,526,449 

Digital printing equipment 

and services - 
342,769 

 
70,939 

- 
521,261 

 
61,022 

Total - 1,299,954  3,910,352 - 1,453,891  3,832,928 

Note: Since the Group operated a variety of products, and the units of measurement of each product differed, the 
quantity was not presented. 

Description of change: The change was mainly resulted from the increase of professional cloud software and services 
as well as the decline of digital printing equipment and services of the parent company and 
subsidiaries of the Company in 2023 compared with those in 2022. 

(III)Employee information in the past two years 

Year 2022 2023 As of April 30, 2024 

Number of 

employees 

Managerial Positions 31 30 30 

Sales staff 90 92 81 

Marketing staff 36 36 29 

Others 138 112 112 

Total 295 267 252 

Average age 42.6 42.9 43.1 

Average experience 7.12 6.3 6.5 

Education (%) 

PhD 1% 0.0% 0.0% 

Graduate School 16% 7.6% 18.7% 

University/ College 69% 79.8% 74.4% 

Senior High School 14% 13.5% 15.7% 

Under Senior High School 0% 0.3% 0.0% 

Note: “Others” in the preceding table include finance, accounting, and administration personnel, assistants, etc. 

 

SalesVolume 

  

 



 

74 

(IV) Environmental protection expenditure 
The Company is mainly engaged in the sales of professional information software and hardware, cloud 
software services, and digital printing equipment and services, and it is also an agent instead of 
manufacturer. Therefore, the Company is not a company under the control of Restriction of Hazardous 
Substances (ROHS) of the EU. 

 
(V) Labor Relations 

A. Employee welfare measures, education, training, retirement mechanism and implementation, 
as well as agreements and measures to protect the rights of employees. 

1. Employee compensation 
The yearend bonus system of the Company guarantees one month’s salary to ensure that all 
colleagues strive for the Company’s objectives together. The employee remuneration is stipulated 
in the Articles of Association, and shall be calculated as at least 4% of the profits of the Company 
in current year. 

2. Employee welfare 
The Labor Standards Act is adopted as the blueprint for the establishment of management 
regulations and work rules of the Company, and all employees shall follow them. Also, the 
Company cares about employees’ life and welfare, and establishes reasonable salaries for them. 
With respect to employee welfare, the Company purchases all required labor insurance, and sets 
aside pension on a monthly basis in accordance with labor laws and regulations. Furthermore, the 
Company has established an Employee Welfare Committee to provide gift money on occasion of 
birthday, wedding, and funeral, as well as condolence payments for hospitalization. The welfare 
system is completed to guarantee employees’ stable life. 

3. Workplace diversity and equality 
The Company offers rewards and equal promotion opportunities to both male and female employees 
in principle of equal pay for equal work, and guarantees more than 20% of female officer positions, 
to promote the sustainable and inclusive economic growth. In 2023, the average ratio of female 
employees reached 40%, while that of female officers reached 33% respectively. 

4. Reflection of operating performance in employee compensation 
The Company participates in market compensation surveys every year, and adjusts employees’ 
salaries based on the market pay level, economic trends, and personal performance, to sustain the 
overall competitiveness of compensation. In 2023, the annual average salary adjustment range of 
the Company for officer and non-officer positions reached 2.3% in Taiwan, and that of individual 
employees reached as high as 10.5%. 

5. Measures assuring a safe and healthy work environment for employees, and education policies for 
employees, and implementation status 
Adhering to disaster prevention and control as the core concept, the Company uses appropriate 
management tools and mature technologies as well as resources available to summarize the 
occupational safety and health issues existing in the whole office area, and then comes up with 
effective countermeasures to promote occupational safety culture continually and effectively. In 
addition, the Company strengths the protection management of workers, and engages resources to 
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enhance occupational disease prevention, for the purpose of creating a zero- disaster environment. 
6. Number of employee occupational hazards in current year, number of employees involved in such 

events, and their ratio in the total number of employees, and relevant improving measures 
In 2022, the frequency of disabling injuries was 0; the frequency of personnel’s occupational 
hazards was 0. The Company attaches importance to corporate safety and lifesaving clauses, and 
facilitates officers to take care of and pay attention to colleagues’ mental and physical statuses, to 
ensure the safety of colleagues during work. 

7. Work safety education, training, and advocacy launched by the Company in the last two years 

Year Person-times in 
  

 

Man-hours in 
  

 

2022 36 72 
2023 28 56 

8. Education and training measures 
The Company provides diversified training and complete in-service training programs, 
including training for new employees, in-service learning and development courses, 
professional training, group training, as well as various overseas training courses related to 
work duties as well as training courses in local institutions. Through the teaching and training 
of professional talents and communication and interaction between employees, the Company 
cannot only improve employees’ professional quality and capabilities, but also better inspire 
employees’ potential ability and cultivate them to talents. 

Category of 
training 

Duration 
(hour) 

Person-times 
(person) 

Sessions Total cost (NT$) 

Internal 
training 

 

24 386 37  116,587 

External 
training 

 

508 17 10 1,583,820 

9. Retirement mechanism 
In accordance with the provisions of the Labor Pension Act, the Company sets aside 2% of the total 
monthly salaries to the pension reserve account opened at Bank of Account, and withholds 6% of 
employees’ salaries to the designated labor pension account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance 
respectively. 

10. Labor agreements: No labor dispute occurred. 
B. Losses arising from labor disputes in the most recent year and as of the publication date of this annual 

report, and disclosure of the potential estimated amount and countermeasures to date and in the future: 
1. Losses arising from labor disputes in the most recent fiscal year and as of the publication date of this 

annual report: No major labor dispute occurred. 

2. Potential estimated amount incurred at present and in the future as well as countermeasures: In 
addition to following the labor laws and regulations and strengthening welfare measures, the 
Company also enhances the establishment of interaction, communication, and appeal channels with 
the objective to create warm and harmonious corporate culture. The losses caused due to labor 
disputes in the future are extremely unlikely in the future.  
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(VI) Material Contracts 

Nature of 

contract 
Party concerned 

Starting and ending dates of 

contract 
Main content 

Restrictive 

clause 

Partner 

agreement 

Celsys, Inc. March 13, 2023- March 12, 

2024 

Agency of sales of products None 

 
(VII)Records of litigation cases: None. 

 

(VIII)Cybersecurity management: 
A. Describe the cybersecurity risk management framework, cybersecurity policies, concrete 

management programs, and investments in resources for cybersecurity management: 
1. Information security organization: The information security work of the Company is currently 

planned and executed by the Information Service Division. 
2. Cybersecurity policy: For the network structure of the Company, firewall is adopted for host 

protection, and domain separation setting is also employed to set up different services and 
networks to lower the risk of infection. For example, the server and user end are segmented 
using different segments. In addition, antivirus software at the central control end has also 
been installed for all hosts and user ends, and anti-virus codes are updated automatically. 
Furthermore, standby and backup settings are allocated for cloud hosts, and complete history 
records are reserved. The passwords of the domain accounts used by all colleagues must be 
updated once every three months, and setting specifications with high security performance 
shall be adopted to create all-around security information protection capacity, and cultivate 
colleagues’ good information security awareness. In the future, the information security 
governance system will be continuously improved, and the defense capabilities shall be 
strengthened. 

3. Specific management solutions: In order to protect the internal IT asset data of the Company 
from power abnormality or other possible natural disasters, the Company implements daily 
backup of the data in the database, and completes nonlocal storage at the same time. The 
Company also adopts weekly backup and completes nonlocal storage for program codes and 
important files. In addition, for virtual hosts, the backup of mapping files and nonlocal storage 
are also completed. With respect to database backup, the Company performs backup data 
recovery tests every quarter to ensure the correctness of the data backup. Also, relevant standby 
and backup settings are provided for the cloud hosts, and complete operation history records 
are preserved. The passwords of the domain accounts used by all colleagues must be updated 
once every three months, and setting specifications with high security performance shall be 
adopted to create all-around security information protection capacity, and cultivate colleagues’ 
good information security awareness. In the future, the information security governance 
system will be continuously improved, and the defense capabilities shall be strengthened. 

4. Resources engaged in cybersecurity management: For the network structure of the Company, 
firewall is adopted for host protection, and domain separation setting is also employed to set 
up different services and networks to lower the risk of infection. The Company chooses the 
IDC managed server provided by Chief Telecom, and has set up a 24h maintenance and 
operation center for monitoring. Also, the air-conditioning system has the temperature and 
humidity monitoring function, and other systems including 99.999% power standby system 
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and fire early warning and inhibition system are available, to ensure that the server equipment 
is stored in a high-quality environment that complies with ISO27001. 

B. List any losses suffered by the Company in the most recent fiscal year and up to the publication 
date of the annual report due to significant cybersecurity incidents, the possible impact therefrom, 
and measures being or to be taken. If a reasonable estimate cannot be made, an explanation of why 
shall be provided: None. 
 

VI. Financial Overview 

(I) Five-Year Financial Summary and External Auditor’s Opinion 

A. Five-Year Financial Summary 
1. Condensed Balance Sheets - International Financial Report Standards (Consolidated) 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 
Year 

 
 
 
 
Item 

Financial summary for the last five years 
Financial 

information as 

of March 31, 

2024 
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Current assets 2,017,523 2,201,593 2,146,728 2,553,625 2,546,933 2,648,309 

Property, plant and equipment 201,911 145,646 147,112 150,164 150,441 151,124 

Intangible assets 64,857 81,513 156,654 35,434 34,611 34,968 

Other assets 254,733 230,469 319,442 469,253 512,307 530,636 

Total assets 2,539,024 2,659,221 2,769,936 3,208,476 3,244,292 3,365,037 

Current 
liabilities 

Before distribution 1,274,385 1,359,663 1,407,176 1,409,303 1,541,724 1,725,810 

After distribution 1,374,911 1,544,113 1,568,478 1,719,884 (Note) (Note) 

Non-current liabilities 48,239 29,157 47,581 24,192 22,388 30,889 

Total 
liabilities 

Before distribution 1,322,624 1,388,820 1,454,757 1,433,495 1,564,112 1,756,699 

After distribution 1,423,150 1,573,270 1,616,059 1,744,076 (Note) (Note) 

Equity attributable to 
shareholders of the parent 
company 

1,019,100 1,023,479 1,042,868 1,436,263 1,375,320 1,300,209 

Share capital 590,374 590,374 575,894 620,894 620,894 620,894 

Capital surplus 240,005 193,311 145,448 242,213 242,213 242,213 

Retained 
earnings 

Before distribution 347,747 433,110 465,832 616,591 560,547 432,719 

After distribution 247,221 248,660 304,530 306,010 (Note) (Note) 

Other equity interest (70,088) (104,378) (144,306) (43,435) (48,334) 4,383 

Treasury stock (88,938) (88,938) 0 0 0 0 

Non-controlling interests 197,300 246,922 272,311 338,718 304,860 308,129 
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Total equity 
Before distribution 1,216,400 1,270,401 1,315,179 1,774,981 1,680,180 1,608,338 

After distribution 1,115,874 1,085,951 1,153,877 1,464,400 (Note) (Note) 

Source: Financial statements of 2019~2023 audited by CPAs, and those of Q1 2024 reviewed by CPAs. 
Note: The Company is expected to hold a regular Shareholders’ Meeting on June 13, 2024, and the figures after 

distributions are not disclosed in the preceding table. 

 

Condensed Balance Sheets - International Financial Report Standards (Parent Company Only) 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 
Year 

 
 
Item 

Financial summary for the last five years 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Current assets 557,944 500,585 326,947 366,088 216,693 

Property, plant and equipment 110,685 108,317 105,600 105,437 106,603 

Intangible assets 880 540 3,859 480 337 

Other assets 1,151,800 1,237,375 1,459,371 1,757,222 2,002,683 

Total assets 1,821,309 1,846,817 1,895,777 2,229,227 2,326,316 

Current 
liabilities 

Before distribution 800,202 812,223 849,978 789,529 947,561 

After distribution 900,728 996,672 1,011,280 1,100,110 (Note) 

Non-current liabilities 2,007 11,115 2,931 3,435 3,435 

Total 
liabilities 

Before distribution 802,209 823,338 852,909 792,964 950,996 

After distribution 902,735 1,007,788 1,014,211 1,103,545 (Note) 

Share capital 590,374 590,374 575,894 620,894 620,894 

Capital surplus 240,005 193,311 145,448 242,213 242,213 

Retained 
Surplus 

Before distribution 347,747 433,110 465,832 616,591 560,547 

After distribution 247,221 248,660 304,530 306,010 (Note) 

Other equity interest (70,088) (104,378) (144,306) (43,435) (48,334) 

Treasury stock (88,938) (88,938) 0 0 0 

Total equity 
Before distribution 1,019,100 1,023,479 1,042,868 1,436,263 1,375,320 

After distribution 918,574 839,029 881,566 1,125,682 (Note) 

Source: Financial reports of 2019~2023 audited by CPAs. 
Note: The Company is expected to hold a regular Shareholders’ Meeting on June 13, 2024, and the figures after 

distributions are not disclosed in the preceding table. 
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2. Condensed Comprehensive Income Statements - International Financial Report Standards 
(Consolidated) 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Year 
 
 
 
 
Item 

Financial summary for the last five years 

Financial 
information 
as of March 

31, 2024 
2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Operating income 5,257,393 5,048,591 4,935,845 5,286,819 5,210,306 1, 304,372 
Gross profit 769,826 746,248 854,965 878,826 827,392 197,542 
Operating profit 
(loss) 307,585 306,733 412,508 427,561 361,302 84,413 

Non-operating 
income and expenses 9,509 49,505 14,353 40,782 57,877 5,119 

Net income before 
tax 317,094 356,238 426,861 468,343 419,179 89,532 

Net income from 
continuing operations 257,455 289,889 351,923 389,412 313,360 67,662 

Loss from 
discontinued 
operations 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

Net income (loss) 257,455 289,889 351,923 389,412 313,360 67,662 
Other comprehensive 
income (net value 
after tax) 

(29,330) (46,356) (55,708) 114,962 (6,338) 64,879 

Total comprehensive 
income 228,125 243,533 296,215 504,374 307,022 132,541 

Net income 
attributable to 
shareholders of the 
parent company 

211,502 243,011 279,937 320,201 245,089 52,231 

Net income 
attributable to non-
controlling interests 

45,953 46,878 71,986 69,211 68,271 15,431 

Total comprehensive 
income attributable 
to owners of the 
parent company 

178,841 208,748 239,111 421,571 240,190 104,948 

Total comprehensive 
income attributable 
to non-controlling 
interests 

49,284 34,785 57,104 82,803 66,832 27,593 

Earnings per share 3.70 4.25 4.87 5.49 3.95 0.84 

Source: Financial statements of 2019~2023 audited by CPAs, and those of Q1 2024 reviewed by CPAs. 
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Comprehensive Income Statements - International Financial Report Standards (Parent 
Company Only) 

Unit: NT$ Thousand  

Year 
 
 
 
Item 

Financial summary for the last five years 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Operating income 1,147,913 1,141,753 587,800 620,433 412,362 

Gross profit 222,836 227,738 178,201 187,012 124,988 

Operating profit (loss) 110,235 130,375 84,000 96,575 47,252 

Non-operating income 
and expenses 

126,270 139,193 212,253 242,877 238,280 

Net income before tax 236,505 269,568 296,253 339,452 285,532 

Net income from 
continuing operations 

211,502 243,011 279,937 320,201 245,089 

Loss from discontinued 
operations 

0 0 0 0 0 

Net income (loss) 211,502 243,011 279,937 320,201 245,089 

Other comprehensive 
income (net value after 
tax) 

(32,661) (34,263) (40,826) 101,370 (4,899) 

Total comprehensive 
income 

178,841 208,748 239,111 421,571 240,190 

Earnings per share 3.70 4.25 4.87 5.49 3.95 

Source: Financial statements of 2019~2023 audited by CPAs. 
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B. Names and Auditing Opinions of CPAs for the Past Five Fiscal Years 
1. Names and Auditing Opinions of CPAs for the Past Five Fiscal Years 

Year Name of CPAs Opinion 

2019 HSU, SHENG-CHUNG, WU, HAN-CHI Qualified opinion 

2020 WU, HAN-CHI, HSU, SHENG-CHUNG Qualified opinion 

2021 JUAN LU, MAN-YU, WU, HAN-CHI Qualified opinion 

2022 JUAN LU, MAN-YU, FENG, MIN-CHUAN Qualified opinion 

2023 HSU, HSIN-MIN, YU, CHIEN-JU Qualified opinion 

 
2. If the CPAs were replaced in the past five fiscal years, the descriptions of the reasons for 

replacement by the Company, and the former and succeeding CPAs shall be presented: 
PwC Taiwan has been responsible for the Company’s financial audit and tax compliance audit for 
15 fiscal years from the fourth quarter of 2007 to the fourth quarter of 2022. In order to implement 
corporate governance and improve the quality of financial reports, the Company sought for CPAs 
with the most professional services who could provide timely, complete, rigorous and professional 
advice and suggestions for operations in consideration of our future operational development and 
overall management needs. After careful evaluation of independence, professionalism and 
competence of CPAs, the Company voluntarily ceased the agreement with PwC Taiwan. Since 
the first quarter of 2023, various audits have been entrusted to Ernst &Young, Taiwan for handling. 
The replacement of CPAs is reasonable without abnormality. 
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(II) Financial analysis for the last five years 

Consolidated Financial Analyses - Adopted International Financial Report Standards 
Year 

 
Analysis item 

Financial analysis for the last five years As of 
March 31, 

2024 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Financial 
structure 

(%) 

Debt ratio 52.09 52.23 52.52 44.68 48.21 52.20 
Ratio of long-term capital to 
property, plant and equipment 

626.33 892.27 926.34 1,198.14 1,131.72 1,084.69 

Solvency 
% 

Current ratio 158.31 161.92 152.56 181.20 165.20 153.45 
Quick ratio 139.53 146.22 139.09 163.27 154.92 145.50 
Times interest earned ratio 59.61 21.39 37.78 25.17 33.99 25.09 

Operation 
performance 

Accounts receivable turnover rate 
(times) 

6.85 6.16 6.71 8.27 8.16 8.10 

Average days for cash receipts 53 59 54 44 45 45 
Inventory turnover rate (times) 16.12 16.93 18.22 17.96 19.84 29.99 
Payables turnover rate (times) 13.33 11.20 10.90 10.72 9.33 9.71 
Average days for sale of goods 23 22 20 20 18 12 
Turnover rate for property, plant 
and equipment (times) 

28.90 29.05 33.72 35.57 34.67 34.60 

Total asset turnover rate (times) 2.18 1.94 1.82 1.77 1.61 1.58 

Profitability 

Return on assets (%) 10.85 11.37 13.31 13.64 10.03 8.55 
Return on equity (%) 20.83 23.31 27.22 25.39 18.14 16.46 
Ratio of income before tax to 
paid-in capital (%) 

53.71 60.34 74.12 75.83 67.51 57.68 

Net profit margin (%) 4.90 5.74 7.13 7.42 6.01 5.19 
Earnings per share (NT$) 3.70 4.25 4.87 5.49 3.95 0.84 

Cash flow 
Cash flow ratio (%) 38.92 25.54 52.99 15.81 21.83 6.61 
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 130.83 151.96 179.07 167.01 118.79 93.44 
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 26.95 14.15 42.63 3.28 4.95 6.81 

Leverage Operating leverage 5.98 5.78 4.40 4.52 4.52 5.47 
Financial leverage 1.02 1.06 1.03 1.05 1.05 1.05 

Explain changes in financial ratios over the past two fiscal years. (Not required if the difference does not exceed 20%.) 
1. The increase of times interest earned ratio was mainly resulted from the decrease of interest expense of 2023 

compared with the previous period. 
2. The decrease of return on assets was mainly resulted from the decrease of net income and interest expense in the 

current period compared with 2022. 
3. The decrease of return on equity was mainly resulted from the decrease of net income in the current period. 
4. The decrease of earnings per share was mainly resulted from the decrease of net sales and net income in the 

current period. 
5. The increase of cash flow ratio (%) was mainly resulted from the increase of net cash flow from operating 

activities in 2023 compared with 2022. 
6. The decrease of cash flow adequacy ratio (%) was mainly resulted from the increase of capital expenditure and 

cash dividends in the five years compared with 2022. 
7. 7. The increase of cash reinvestment ratio (%) was mainly resulted from the increase of net cash flow from 

operating activities compared with 2022. 
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Parent company only Financial Analyses - Adopted International Financial Report Standards 

Year 

Analysis item 

Financial analysis for the last five years 

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 

Financial 
structure 

(%) 

Debt ratio 44.05 44.58 44.99 35.57 40.88 

Ratio of long-term capital to property, 
plant and equipment 

922.53 955.15 990.34 1,365.46 1,293.35 

Solvency 
% 

Current ratio 69.73 61.63 38.47 46.17 22.87 

Quick ratio 56.42 52.89 32.75 31.26 16.74 

Times interest earned ratio 51.68 52.98 53.91 40.49 26.97 

Operation 
performance 

Accounts receivable turnover rate (times) 3.61 3.46 2.14 3.21 2.84 

Average days for cash receipts 101 105 170 112 129 

Inventory turnover rate (times) 7.96 9.55 6.29 5.89 3.86 

Payables turnover rate (times) 9.89 9.78 9.37 8.27 5.30 

Average days for sale of goods 46 38 58 62 95 

Turnover rate for property, plant and 
equipment (times) 

10.30 10.43 5.50 5.88 3.89 

Total asset turnover rate (times) 0.66 0.62 0.31 0.30 0.18 

Profitability 

Return on assets (%) 12.32 13.48 15.20 15.86 11.15 

Return on equity (%) 20.29 23.79 27.09 25.83 17.43 

Ratio of income before tax to paid-in 
capital (%) 

40.06 45.66 51.44 54.67 45.99 

Net profit margin (%) 18.42 21.28 47.62 51.61 59.44 

Earnings per share (NT$) 3.70 4.25 4.87 5.49 3.95 

Cash flow 

Cash flow ratio (%) 26.45 9.05 21.36 17.23 8.33 

Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 41.28 38.98 48.70 63.70 58.06 

Cash reinvestment ratio (%) 6.33 (7.80) (0.26) (1.70) (16.58) 

Leverage 
Operating leverage 3.93 3.41 2.91 2.72 3.48 

Financial leverage 1.04 1.04 1.07 1.10 1.30 
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Explain changes in financial ratios over the past two fiscal years. (Not required if the difference does not exceed 
20%.) 
1. The decrease of current ratio was mainly resulted from the increase of short-term borrowings in the liabilities in 

current period compared with 2022. 
2. The decrease of quick ratio was mainly resulted from the increase of short-term borrowings in the liabilities in 

current period compared with 2022. 
3. The decrease of times interest earned ratio was mainly resulted from the decrease of net income in the current 

period compared with 2022. 
4. The decrease of inventory turnover rate was mainly resulted from the decrease of cost of sales in the current 

period compared with 2022. 
5. The decrease of payables turnover was mainly resulted from the decrease of cost of sales in the current period 

compared with 2022. 
6. The decrease of average days for sale of goods was mainly resulted from the decrease of cost of sales in the 

current period compared with 2022. 
7. The decrease of turnover rate for property, plant and equipment was mainly resulted from the decrease of net 

sales in the current period compared with 2022. 
8. The decrease of total asset turnover rate was mainly resulted from the decrease of revenue of sales in the 

current period compared with 2022. 
9. The decrease of return on assets was mainly resulted from the decrease of net income or loss in the current period 

compared with 2022. 
10. The decrease of return on equity for shareholders was mainly resulted from the decrease of net income or loss in 

the current period compared with 2022. 
11. The decrease of earnings per share was mainly resulted from the decrease of net sales in the current period 

compared with 2022. 
12. The decrease of cash flow ratio was mainly resulted from the decrease of net cash flow from operating activitie  

in the current period compared with 2022. 
13. The decrease of cash reinvestment ratio was mainly resulted from the decrease of net cash flow from operating 

activities in the current period compared with 2022. 
14. The increase of operating leverage was mainly resulted from the decrease of operating income or loss in the curren  

period compared with 2022. 
 

Note 1: The following calculation formulas shall be presented at the end of this table in the annual report: 

1. Financial structure 

(1) Debt ratio = Total liabilities/Total assets. 

(2) Ratio of long-term capital to property, plant and equipment = (Net shareholders’ equity + Long-term 

liabilities)/Net value of property, plant and equipment. 

2. Solvency 

(1) Current ratio = Current assets/Current liabilities. 

(2) Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventory - Prepaid expenses)/Current liabilities. 

(3) Times interest earned ratio= Income before income tax and interest expenses/Interest expenses. 

3. Operation performance 
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(1) Accounts receivable turnover rate (including accounts receivable and notes receivable from business 

operation) = Net sales/Average accounts receivable in each period (including accounts receivable and 

notes receivable from business operation). 

(2) Average days for cash receipts = 365/Accounts receivable turnover rate. 

(3) Inventory turnover rate = Cost of goods sold/Average inventory. 

(4) Payables turnover rate (including accounts payable and notes payable from business operation) = Cost 

of sales/Average accounts payable in each period (including accounts payable and notes payable from 

business operation). 

(5) Average days for sale of goods = 365/Inventory turnover rate. 

(6) Turnover rate for property, plant and equipment = Net sales/Average property, plant and equipment. 

(7) Total assets turnover rate = Net sales/Average total assets. 

4. Profitability 

(1) Return on assets (ROA) = [Profit or loss after tax + Interest expenses × (1 - Tax rate)]/Average total 

assets. 

(2) Return on equity (ROE) = Profit or loss after tax/Average net shareholder equity. 

(3) Net profit margin = Profit or loss after tax/Net sales. 

(4) Earnings per share = (Net income after tax - Preferred shares dividends)/Weighted average number of 

shares issued. (Note 4) 

5. Cash flows 

(1) Cash flow ratio = Net cash flows generated from operating activities/Current liabilities. 

(2) Cash flow adequacy ratio = Net cash flow from operating activities for the most recent five years/ 

(Capital expenditures + Inventory increment + Cash dividends) for the most recent five years. 

(3) Cash reinvestment ratio = (Net cash flow from operating activities - Cash dividends)/ (Gross fixed 

assets + Long-term investment + Other assets + Operating capital). (Note5) 

6. Leverage 

(1) Operating leverage = (Net operating revenue - Variable operating costs and expenses)/ Operating 

income (Note6) 

(2) Financial leverage = Operating income/ (Operating income - Interest expenses). 
Note 2: Special attention shall be paid to the following matters upon measurement using the preceding calculation 

formula of earnings per share: 

1. The weighted average number of common stocks issued is adopted as basis of number of shares already 

issued at the end of year. 

2. The weighted average number of shares shall be calculated during the circulation period of capital 

increase in cash or treasury stock trading. 

3. As for conversion of earnings or capital reserve to increase capital, during the calculation of earnings per 

share of previous years and half a year, retroactive adjustment shall be conducted per capital increase 

ratio. There is no need to consider the issue period of such capital increase. 

4. If preferred stock is non-convertible accumulated preferred stock, dividends in current year (issued or not) 

shall be deducted from net income after tax, or net loss after tax shall be increased. If the preferred stock 
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does not have an accumulated nature, preferred stock dividends shall be deducted from net income after 

tax in case of net income after tax; in case of loss, no adjustment is needed. 
Note 3: Special attention shall be paid to the following matters upon measurement in cash flow analysis: 

1. Net cash flows from operating activities refer to net cash inflows from operating activities in the cash 

flow statement. 

2. Capital expenditures refer to cash outflows from annual capital investments. 

3. The increased amount of inventories is included only when the ending balance exceeds the beginning 

balance. If the inventories are decreased at the end of year, they will be calculated as zero. 

4. Cash dividends include cash dividends of common stock and preferred stock. 

5. Gross amount of property, plant and equipment refers to total amount of property, plant and equipment 

before deduction of accumulated depreciation. 
Note 4: The issuer shall distinguish each operating cost and operating expense as fixed and variable per nature. If 

estimation or subjective judgment is involved, reasonableness shall be noticed and consistency shall be 

maintained. 

Note 5: If the corporate stock has no face value, or the face value per share is not NT$10, the preceding calculation of 

ratio in paid-in capital shall be changed to the calculation of the ratio of equity attributable to the owners of 

parent company in balance sheet.
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(III) Audit committee’s review report for the most recent fiscal year’s financial statement

GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. 
Audit Report by Audit Committee 

The business report, financial statement, and earnings distribution proposal of the year 

2023, which were prepared by the Company’s Board of Directors, have been certified by 

HSU, HSIN-MIN and YU, CHIEN-JU, CPAs of Ernst&Young Taiwan. The aforementioned 

reports, the business report, financial statements, and the earnings distribution proposal have been 

reviewed by the Committee and were found to be true and correct. The Committee hereby 

submits the aforementioned reports and proposal for approval in accordance with Article 14-4 of 

the Securities and Exchange Act and Article 219 of the Company Act. 

To 

2024 General Shareholders Meeting 

GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. 

Convener of the audit committee: CHEN, WEI-YU 

March 7, 2024 



 

88 

(IV)CPA’s review report for the most recentfiscal year’s financial statement 
Please refer to page 104. 

(V) Parent company only financial report audited and certified by CPA’s in the most recent 
fiscal year 

Please refer to page 192. 

(VI) Financial impact on the company where the company and its affiliated companies have 
incurred any financial or cash flow difficulties in the most recent year and as of the 
publication date of the annual report: none. 
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VII. Review and Analysis of the Company’s Financial Position, Performance, and Risk 
Management 

(I) Financial Position 

A. Comparative analysis 
Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Year 
 

Item 
2023 2022 

Difference 

Amount % 

Current assets 2,546,933 2,512,577 34,356 1.37% 

Property, plant and 
equipment 

150,441 150,164 277 0.18% 

Intangible assets 34,611 35,434 (823) (2.32%) 

Other non-current 
assets 

512,307 510,301 
2,006 0.39% 

Total assets 3,244,292 3,208,476 35,816 1.12% 

Current liabilities 1,541,724 1,409,303 132,421 9.40% 

Non-current liabilities 22,388 24,192 (1,804) (7.46%) 

Total liabilities 1,564,112 1,433,495 130,617 9.11% 

Equity attributable to 
the owners of parent 
company 

1,375,320 1,436,263 (60,943) (4.24%) 

Share capital of 
common stock 

620,894 620,894 
0 0% 

Capital surplus 242,213 242,213 0 0% 

Retained earnings 560,547 616,591 (56,044) (9.09%) 

Other equity interest (48,334) (43,435) (4,899) (11.28%) 

Treasury stock 0 0 0 0% 

Non-controlling 
interests 

304,860 338,718 (33,858) (10.00%) 

Total equity 1,680,180 1,774,981 (94,801) (5.34%) 
If the difference compared to the previous period exceeds 20% and the difference in amount exceeds 
NT$10 million, the main reason and impact are analyzed below: 
(1) Reasons for changes and influence: None. 
 
 
 
(2) Responsive plan: The aforesaid changes did not have a material influence on the Company. 
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(II) Financial Performance 

A. Comparative analysis of operating results 
Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Year 
Item 2023 2022 Amount % 

Operating income 5,210,306 5,286,819 (76,513) (1.45%% 

Gross profit 827,392 878,826 (51,434) (5.85%) 

Net operating income 361,302 427,561 (66,259) (15.50%) 

Non-operating income and 
expenses 

57,877 40,782 17,095 (Note 1)    41.92% 

Net income before tax 419,179 468,343 (49,164) (10.50%) 

Current net profit of units of 
going concern 

313,360 389,412 (76,052) (19.53%) 

Loss from discontinued 
operations 

0 0 0 0 

Net profit (loss) in current 
period 

313,360 389,412 (76,052) (19.53%) 

Other comprehensive 
income in current period (net 
amount after tax) 

(6,338) 114,962 (121,300) (Note 2)  (105.51%) 

Total comprehensive income 
in current period 

307,022 504,374 (197,352) (Note 3)   (39.13%) 

Net income attributable to 
owners of the parent 
company 

245,089 320,201 (75,112) (Note 4)   (23.46%) 

Net income attributable to 
non-controlling interests 

68,271 69,211 (940) (1.36%) 

Total comprehensive income 
attributable to owners of the 
parent company 

240,190 421,571 (181,381) (Note 5)   (43.03%) 

Total comprehensive income 
attributable to non-
controlling interests 

66,832 82,803 (15,971) (19.29%) 

Earnings per share 3.95 5.49 (-1.54) (Note 6)   (28.05%) 

1. Main reasons for major changes in operating income, net operating income, and net income 
before tax in the last two years: 

(1) (Note1) Non-operating income and expenses: Mainly resulted from the increase of interest 
income and other interests in current year 

(2) (Note 2) Other comprehensive income in current period: Mainly resulted from the decrease 
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of exchange difference converted from the financial statements of the foreign operating 
institutions in the current year. 

(3) (Note3) Total comprehensive income in current period: Mainly resulted from the decrease 
of exchange difference converted from the financial statements of the foreign operating 
institutions in the current year. 

(4) (Note 4) Total comprehensive income attributable to owners of the parent company: Mainly 
resulted from the decrease of net sales in the current year compared with last year. 

(5) (Note 5) Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests: Mainly 
resulted from the decrease of exchange difference converted from the financial statements 
of the foreign operating institutions in the current year. 

2. Analysis of change in gross profit: Not applicable (the change in gross profit rate not exceeding 
20%). 

3. GrandTech has always ceaselessly strengthened its core competitiveness, focused on 
advantaged growth strategies, developed the integrated growth of three major business groups, 
i.e., cloud value-added operation and technical service, digital printing business, and 
reinvestment business, continually improved the growth ratio of ARR (Annual Recurring 
Revenue), worked on the transformation to grow to an all-around comprehensive digital 
service operator, developed services and products in each business group to serve corporate 
users, and ensure the effective realization of customer success through the use of services and 
products provided by GrandTech, with the objective to improve customer lifetime value.  
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(III) Cash flow 
Consolidated financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries: 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Opening cash 
balance (1) 

Net cash flow 
from operating 

activities for the 
year (2) 

Net cash flow 
from other 

activities for the 
year (3) 

Cash surplus 
(shortfall) 

(1) + (2) - (3) 

Remedial measures for cash 
inadequacy 

Investment plan Financing plan 

1,395,488 336,621 321,477 1,410,632 － － 
A. Analysis of change in cash flows in current year 

The cash inflows from operating activities were approximately NT$336,621: Mainly resulted 
from net profit after tax. 
The cash inflows from investing activities were approximately NT$56,092,000: Mainly resulted 
from the purchasing of financial assets. 
The cash outflows from financing activities were approximately NT$ -254,868,000: Mainly 
resulted from the distribution of cash dividends and exchange influence. 

B. Plan for improvement of liquidity insufficiency and liquidity analysis: No insufficiency of cash 
liquidity was involved. 

C. Analysis of cash liquidity in the next year: Not applicable since the Company was not required to 
disclose its financial forecast information as stipulated.  

 
(IV)the effect of major capital expenditures on financials and the business during the most 

recent fiscal year 
A. Use of major capital expenditures and sources of funds: Not applicable since the Company 

didn’t have any major capital expenditure in 2023. 
B. Effect on finance and business: Not applicable. 

 
(V) Investment policy, the main reasons for profit or loss as well as the improvement plan over 

the past year, and an investment plan for next year: 
The reinvestment interests of the Company recognized in 2023were NT$237,976,000. The main 
reason was that all the reinvestments were long-term strategic investments which could effectively 
integrate resource from each place to reduce cost, and increase value-added benefits and enterprise 
competitiveness. The Group will still continuously and prudently evaluate investments to improve 
the overall profits of the Group in consideration of financial risks and return on investment. 

 
(VI) Risk Analysis and Assessment for the Most Recent Fiscal Year and as of the Publication 

Date of the Annual Report 
A. Impact of interest rate and exchange rate fluctuation and inflation on the Company’s profitability 

for the most recent fiscal year and as of the publication date of the annual report, and future 
countermeasures: 

1. Impact of interest rate and exchange rate fluctuation and inflation on the Company’s 
profitability, and future countermeasures: 
(1) Risk of exchange rate: The exchange gains of the Group reached NT$ 5,418,000 in 2023. 

Since the Group is engaged in transnational operations, it is subject to the risk of 
exchange rate resulting from multiple different currencies. Sticking to a principle of 
conservation and steadiness, the Group pays close attention to relevant information 
involving fluctuation of exchange rate, masters the trends of exchange rate in a real-
time way, and adjusts foreign currency assets and liabilities as appropriate according to 
global overall economy, exchange rate price, and future capital demand, with the 
objective to litigate the impact of the fluctuation of exchange rate in the operating 
income and profits of the Group. 

(2) Risk of interest rate: The interval of lending rate of the Company in 2023 was 1.4% ~ 



 

93 

1.83%. In the future, the Company will still observe the change in interest rate in the 
financial market at any time, adjusts the use of capital as appropriate, and continually 
maintain a favorable relationship with banks to acquire relatively preferential interest 
rate. Therefore, the change in interest rate would not have a material impact on the profit 
or loss of the Group. 

(3) Inflation: The inflation has not imposed a material impact on the profit or loss of the 
Group so far. In addition to paying close attention to the fluctuation of market prices, 
the Group also maintains favorable interactions with customers and suppliers to 
properly adjust the product selling prices and inventories. Supposedly, the impact of 
inflation on the Group can be lowered. 

B. Policies for engaging in high-risk and high-leverage investments, lending capital to others, 
endorsement guarantee, and derivatives trading, main reasons for profits or loss, and future 
responsive measures: 

1. The Group has not engaged in high-risk and high-leverage investments based on the principle 
of conservation and steadiness. The derivatives currently adopted by the Group are mainly 
RMB financing products. Also, the Group has established Procedures for Acquisition or 
Disposal of Assets for standardized management. 

2. The Group has engaged in lending capital to others and endorsement guarantee based on its 
operating demand. Also, it has established Procedures for Lending Capital to Others and 
Endorsement Guarantee for standardized management.  

C. Future R&D plans, and estimated expenditures: 
To strengthen service advantage, relevant R&D unit has been established in the reinvested 
subsidiary, i.e., GrandTech Cloud Services Inc. which is a cloud operation and value-added 
service supplier, to develop customer value-added service platform system, provide optimized 
management and analysis and other additional online services, etc. In the future, the Group will 
continually invest in the R&D and application of cloud related technologies. The R&D expenses 
invested are expected to be gradually prepared item by item in consideration of development 
progress, to ensure competitive advantages.  

D. Effect of important policies adopted on the Company’s financial operations and changes in the 
legal environment at home and abroad, and measures to be taken in response: 
The Group’s financial operations and business have not been influenced by the changes in 
important policies and laws at home and abroad in the most recent fiscal year and as of the 
publication date of the annual report. However, the Group will continually observe the changes 
in the operating environment, and consult relevant professionals to facilitate the adoption of 
responsive measures as appropriate. 

E. Effect of technological changes (including information security risks) and industrial changes on 
the Company’s financial performance and solutions: 
The Group adjusts its operating strategies at any time, and introduces relevant excellent talents 
as appropriate to improve its competitiveness for the power of lowering the effect of technical 
changes and industrial changes on the Group’s financial performance and business. 

F. Effect on the Company’s crisis management of changes to the Company’s corporate image, and 
measures to be taken in response: 
The Group sticks to the principle of steadiness and integrity as its business tenet, values 
corporate image and risk control, gives back its operating results to shareholders, and duly 
performs its corporate social responsibilities. 

G. Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any merger and acquisitions, and mitigation 
measures being or to be taken: None. 

H. Expected benefits and possible risks associated with any plant expansion, and mitigation 
measures being or to be taken: None.  

I. Risks associated with any consolidation of sales or purchasing operations, and mitigation 
measures being or to be taken. The Group didn’t face the risk of consolidation of sales or 
purchasing operations in the most recent fiscal year. (Detailed in Operational Highlights/list of 
top-10 customers and suppliers in the last two years.) 
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J. Effect upon and risk to the Company in the event a major quantity of shares belonging to a 
director, supervisor, or shareholder holding greater than a 10% stake in the Company is 
transferred or otherwise changes hands, and mitigation measures being or to be taken: None. 

K. Effect upon and risk to the Company associated with any change in governance personnel or 
top management, and mitigation measures being or to be taken: None. 

L. Litigation or non-litigation events: 
1. If the results of litigation, non-litigation, or administrative litigation events of the Company 

that have already been determined or currently under consideration in the last two years and 
as of the publication date of the annual report might have a material influence on the 
shareholders’ equity or securities price, the disputes facts, target amount, starting date of 
litigation, main parties involved in the litigation, and current handling status shall be 
disclosed: Not involved. 

2. Litigation, non-litigation, or administrative litigation events of the directors, supervisors, 
president, substantial principal, major shareholders with shareholding ratio exceeding 10%, 
and subordinate companies that have already been determined or currently under 
consideration in the last two years and as of the publication date of the annual report that 
might have a material influence on the shareholders’ equity or securities price: Not involved. 

3. Occurrence of situations stipulated in Article 157 of the Securities and Exchange Act to the 
directors, supervisors, managers, and major shareholders with shareholding ratio exceeding 
10% in the last two years and as of the publication date of the annual report: Not involved. 

N. Other important risks, and mitigation measures being or to be taken 
1. Risk management policies 

The Company improves the management of corporate risks in accordance with the 
requirements of the latest internal audit criteria, to realize the goal of risk control, and 
enhance the shareholders’ value. 

2. Risk management organization 

 

Important risk evaluation matters Risk control unit 
Risk deliberation 

and control 

Board of 
Directors and 

Auditing Office 
Changes in interest rate and 
exchange rate 

Corporate Strategic & New 
Business Management Dept. 

President 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Board of 
Directors: 
Final decision-
making unit 
 
 
 

High-risk and high-leverage 
investments, lending capital to 
others, endorsement guarantee, 
and derivatives trading 
Changes in important policies and laws 
at home and abroad 

Corporate Strategic & New 
Business Management Dept. 

Technological changes and 
industrial changes 

Chairman’s Office 

Change in corporate image Chairman’s Office 

Mergers and acquisitions 
Corporate Strategic & New 
Business Management Dept. President 

Consolidation of purchasing operations Corporate Strategic & New 

Name of organization Responsibilities 
Board of Directors and Risk 
Management Committee 

Establish risk management policies, ensure the effectiveness of the risk 
management mechanism, and conduct resource allocation. 

Senior management 
(President, vice- presidents, and 
associate managers) 

Execute the risk management decisions made by the Board of Directors, 
coordinate cross-department risk management communication, and plan 
operation decision-making. 

Auditing Office Verify whether each central unit practically executes the risk control 
according to the Company’s internal control and audit plans periodically, and 
prepare audit reports based on the actual audit results. 
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or sales Business Management Dept. Auditing Office: 
Risk tracking Equity transfer of directors, 

supervisors, or major shareholders 
Corporate Strategic & New 
Business Management Dept. 

President 
Change in managerial power 

Corporate Strategic & New 
Business Management Dept. 

Litigation or non-litigation events 
Corporate Strategic & New 
Business Management Dept. 

President 

 
(VII)Other Major Events: 

The evaluation basis and foundation for the drawing of asset and liability evaluation subjects of the 
Company are as follows: 

A. Allowance for doubtful debts 
This rule is to classify the conditions of customer credit rating of the Company based on its scale, 
financial capability, payment records, and status of collateral security, and set aside accounts and 
notes receivable as allowance for bad debt losses according to customer credit rating and the overdue 
aging. 
The drawing basis is as follows: 
1. Related parties’ accounts receivable: Allowance for doubtful debts is not drawn. 
2. Non-related parties’ accounts receivable: Overdue accounts receivable: The allowance for bad 

debt losses of the Company’s accounts receivable is evaluated and drawn in the following table 
according to the customer credit rating and payment conditions awarded, and based on the 
amount and duration of overdue accounts. 

Overdue days 
Not 

overdue 
1~30 
days 

31~60 
days 

61~90 
days 

91~180 
days 

Over 181 
days 

Average bad debt ratio 0.30% 3.00% 15.00% 28.00% 60.00% 93.00% 
 

Bad 
debt 
ratio 

Class A customer 0.00% 1.00% 5.00% 15.00% 40.00% 80.00% 
Class B customer 0.25% 2.00% 10.00% 20.00% 50.00% 90.00% 
Class C customer 0.35% 3.00% 15.00% 25.00% 60.00% 95.00% 
Class D customer 0.40% 4.00% 20.00% 30.00% 70.00% 100.00% 
Class E customer 0.50% 5.00% 25.00% 50.00% 80.00% 100.00% 

Notes receivable: For notes receivable, 0.3% of the balance of notes receivable shall be drawn as 
allowance for bad debt losses. 
Accounts receivable cashed with letter of credit: For accounts receivable with letter of credit and 
documentary credit, 0.1% of the unredeemed balance shall be drawn as allowance for bad debt losses 
before redemption. 
3. The Company shall periodically evaluate customers’ credit ratings, and draw allowance for 

doubtful debts based on the rising or decline of customers’ credit ratings. 
 

B. Inventories 
Inventories include software, hardware, and finished books. In addition to the appropriation of 
different ratios of amount of allowance for inventories according to the inventory aging (number of 
days), the inventories shall be valuated at cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Individual 
items are adopted as the basis during the comparison of cost with net realizable value. Net realizable 
value refers to the balance obtained by deducting selling expenses from estimated selling price under 
normal circumstances. 
Method of weighted mean is adopted for the calculation of inventory cost. 
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Inventory 
aging 

Over 181 
days 

Over 271 
days 

Over 361 
days 

Over 541 
days 

Over 721 
days 

Over 1081 
days 

Software 10% - 50% 100% - - 

Hardware 20% 50% 100% - - - 

Books - - 20% - 50% 100% 
C. Property, plant and equipment 

1. Acquired cost is adopted as basis for account entry of property, plant and equipment, and relevant 
interest incurred in the acquisition period is capitalized. 

2. Subsequent cost is included in the carrying amount of asset or recognized as a separate asset only 
when the future economic benefits related to this item are likely to flow into the Group, and the 
cost of this item can be reliably measured. The replaced carrying amount shall be derecognized. 
All other repair expenses are recognized as current profit or loss when incurred. 

3. Cost method is adopted for subsequent measurement of property, plant and equipment. Except 
land that is not appreciated, depreciation of other assets shall be accrued using straight-line 
method according to the estimated durable years. The durable years of each asset are as follows: 

Housing and building 15~50 years 

Leasing equipment 2~5 years 

Other equipment 2~5 years 
 

Information of Operating Departments 

A. General information 
Since the Group operates business and makes decisions from the perspective of sales per region, the 
management still follows this model to identify departments that need reporting. 
The Group has two departments to report: Taiwan, and Hong Kong/Macao, with the former referring to 
Taipei and Kaohsiung and the latter referring to Hong Kong. The main business items in each region 
include wholesale of office machinery equipment, retail sale, and wholesale and retail sale of computer 
software, etc. 

 
B. Information on department profit or loss and assets 

Information provided to main operation decision-makers regarding departments to report: 
 

 
2023                                Unit: NT$ Thousand 

  
Taiwan 

Hong Kong 
and Macau 

Other 
regions 

Consolidated 
write-off 

Total 

Revenue from customers 
outside the enterprise 1,299,721 3,525,984 384,601 0 5,210,306 
Revenue from parent 
company and consolidated 
subsidiaries 91,850 373,527 63,800 (529,177) 0 
Total revenue 1,391,571 3,899,511 448,401 (529,177) 5,210,306 
Departmental loss (profit) 397,967 223,547 206,467 (408,802) 419,179 
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Department loss or profit 
includes:           
Depreciation and 
amortization 14,215 28,765 2,234 (2,898)  42,316  
Interest income (6,202)  (5,136) (37,608) 1,646 (47,300)  
Interest expense 11,427 1,167 73 (143) 12,524 
Income tax expense 62,785 34,908 8,126       105,819 
Department total assets 3, 187,807 1,002,854 1,915,867 (2,862,236) 3,244,292 

 
 

 
2022                     Unit:  NT$ Thousand 

  
Taiwan 

Hong Kong 
and Macau 

Other 
regions 

Consolidated 
write-off 

Total 

Revenue from customers 
outside the enterprise 1,454,665 3,550.743 281,411  0  5,286,819 
Revenue from parent 
company and consolidated 
subsidiaries 113,528  310,438  20,129 (444,095)  0  
Total revenue 1,568,193 3,861,181 301,540 (444,095)  5,286,819 
Departmental (loss)profit 445,870  255,403 203,896 (436,826)  468,343  
Department loss or profit 
includes:           
Depreciation and 
amortization 14,319 26,675 3,745 (1,481)  43,258  
Interest income (4,628)  (1,349) (15,041) 518 (20,500)  
Interest expense 9,191 2,183  23 (22) 11,375 
Income tax expense 38,287 37,041 3,603       78,931 
Department total assets 3,030,085 1,154,597 1,721,405 (2,697,611) 3,208,476 

 
C. Information per product and per labor service 

The revenue from non-corporate customers mainly comes from professional information software and 
hardware sales and services, cloud software services, digital printing equipment and services, and other 
relevant business. 
The composition of details of revenue balance is as follows: 

Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Main product items 
Sales 

amount in 
2022 

Business ratio 
Sales 

amount in 
2021 

Business ratio 

Professional cloud software and services 2,038,721 39% 1,771,159 34% 

Corporate user products and services 2,757,877 53% 2,933,377 55% 
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Digital printing equipment and services 413,708 8% 582,283 11% 

Total 5,210,306 100% 5,286,819 100% 

 
D. Information per region 

 
Unit: NT$ Thousand 

Item 

2023 2022 

Revenue amount 
Percentage in net 

sales for the 
current period 

Revenue amount 
Percentage in net 

sales for the 
current period 

Taiwan 1,299,721 24.95% 1,454,665 27.52% 
Hong Kong 3,525,984 67.67% 3,550,743 67.16% 

Other 384,601 7.38% 281,411 5.32% 
Total 5,210,306 100.00% 5,286,819 100.00% 
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2. Basic information on affiliates 
Name of Affiliate Date of 

Incorporation Address Paid-in capital Primary Business and 
Production Projects 

GrandTech (B.V.I.) Inc. July 24, 1999 
P.O. Box 957 Offshore 
Incorporations Center, Road Town, Tortola, British 
Virgin Islands. 

US$4,000,000 Holding Company 

GrandTech (Cayman) Inc. August 17, 
2000 

Scotia Center, 4 th Floor, P. O. Box 2804, George 
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands US$1,922,000 Holding Company 

DeepStone Technology 
Co., Ltd. 

October 9, 
2009 

3F, No. 39, Ln. 76, Ruiguang Rd., Neihu Dist., 
Taipei City NT$30,215,300 

Publishing, wholesale and retail 
sale of magazines, and books. 
 

Abico Digital Imaging 
   

February 23, 
 

2F, No. 39, Ln. 76, Ruiguang Rd., Neihu Dist., 
  

NT$1,000,000 Wholesale and retail 
     

 
 

Netcore Network 
Communication 
Technology Corp. 

January 15, 
2009 4F, No. 49, Lane 76, Ruiguang Road, Neihu 

District, Taipei City NT$40,000,000 

Agency of trading and 
maintenance of 
telecommunication facilities and 
information software 

Goldsun Application 
Technology Co., Ltd. 
Technology Co., Ltd. 

October 2, 
2015 

2F, No. 33, Lane 76, Ruiguang Road, Neihu 
District, Taipei City NT$20,000,000 Agency of computer 

software and peripherals 

Xinqi Cloud Technology 
Co., Ltd. 

October 3, 
2017 

2F, No. 33, Lane 76, Ruiguang Road, Neihu 
District, Taipei City NT$234,040,000 Cloud-related services 

GrandTech Systems Ltd 
August 8, 1987 1907-11, 19F, Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663 

King’s Road, North Point HK HK$12,880,000 
Agency of mapping image 
related computer software and 
peripherals 

GrandTech (China) Ltd 
June 14, 1999 1907-11, 19F, Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663 

King’s Road, North Point HK HK$57,116,000 
Agency of mapping image 
related computer software and 
peripherals 

SENCO-MASSLINK 
TECHNOLOGY LTD. 

May 12, 1994 22 F, Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663 King’s Road, 
North Point. HK HK$7,200,001 

Agency of mapping image 
related computer software and 
peripherals 

GrandTech Systems Pte 
Ltd 

February 27, 
1993 10 Ubi Crescent, #02-02 Ubi Techpark Lobby A, 

Singapore 408564. SGD$2,677,615 
Agency of mapping image 
related computer software and 
peripherals 

GrandTech Systems Sdn. 
Bhd. 

January 11, 
2001 Suite E-09-17, Plaza Mont’Kiara No. 2 Jalan 1/70 

C, Mont’Kiara 50480 Kuala Lumpur RM$19,259,810 
Agency of mapping image 
related computer software and 
peripherals 

GTMY Sdn Bhd 
January 23, 
2015 Suite E-09-17, Plaza Mont’Kiara No. 2 Jalan 1/70 

C, Mont’Kiara 50480 Kuala Lumpur RM$800.000 
Agency of mapping image 
related computer software and 
peripherals 

PT GrandTech Systems 
Indonesia 

May 3, 2007 
GedungRanuzaLantai 2 Jl. Timor No. 10-
Menteng-Jakarta 10350 US$760,000 

Agency of mapping image 
related computer software and 
peripherals 

GrandTech India Private 
Ltd 

November 26, 
2007 1-c 26 (ld No 62) Green Haven Third Main Road 

Gandhi Naqar Adyar Tamil Nadu 600020 India RS$12,000,000 
Agency of mapping image 
related computer software and 
peripherals 

DPI Technology Sdn Bhd November 8, 
1995 

No. 19 Jalan 2/118 C Desa Tun Razak Kuala 
Lumpur Wilayah Persekutuan RM$600,000 Trading and services of 

computer peripherals 

DPI Technology Pte Ltd October 28, 
2011 

180, Apya Lebar Road #10-01 
Yi Guang Building Singapore SGD$300,000 Trading and services of 

computer peripherals 
Guangzhou GrandTech 
Co., Ltd. 

December 30, 
1999 

Room 2401, No. 140-148 Eastern Road RMB$2,000,000 Data processing and supply 
services 

GrandTech International 
Trading (Shanghai) Co., 
Ltd. 

September 12, 
2001 

Room 201-19, No. 160 Western Road Jiangchang, 
Shizu District, Shanghai US$5,200,000 Warehousing, wholesale and 

international trade 

Cogate (Stock) Company July 26, 1995 14F, No. 687, Mingcheng 3rd Road, Gushan 
District, Kaohsiung City NT$27,000,000 Trading and services of 

computer peripherals 
Chi Chiu Digital 
Technology (Shanghai) 
Ltd. 

October 23, 
2009 

Room 12G, No. 831, Xinzhuang Road, Jingan 
District, Shanghai RMB$4,587,770 Warehousing, wholesale and 

international trade 

GrandTech Cloud 
Services (HK) Ltd. 

March 17, 2014 1907-11, 19F, Prosperity Millennia Plaza, 663 
King’s Road, North Point HK 

HK$9,000,000 Cloud-related services 

Senco-Masslink Solutions 
Limited 

February 24, 
2017 

2/F, Sing Pao Building, 101 King’s Road, North 
Point, Hong Kong HK$100 Agency of computer 

software and peripherals 
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3. Where there is a controlled and subordinate relationship, the information of the shareholders shall be provided: 
None. 
 

4. Industries where the affiliated companies operate business as well as labor division of each affiliated company 
given their connection in business operated: The affiliated companies of the Company are mainly engaged in 
mapping, imaging, and multimedia software and hardware agency as well as cloud related services; they 
conduct sales in their respective regions. 

 

5. Information on directors, supervisors, and President of affiliates 

Name of Affiliate Title Name or representative 

Shareholding 

Number of Shares 
Percentage of 

Ownership 

GrandTech (B.V.I.) Inc. Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 
GrandTech (CAYMAN) Inc. Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

GrandTech Systems Ltd 
Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

GrandTech (China) Ltd 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Director CHEN, TING-TING 0 0 

Senco-Masslink Technology Ltd. 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Director HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 

Director YANG, TE-MING 0 0 

Director CHEN, LI-CHANG 0 0 

GrandTech Systems Pte Ltd 
 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Director Kam Yoke Eng 0 0 

GrandTech Systems Sdn.Bhd. 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Director Ling Wai Leng 0 0 

PT GrandTech Systems Indonesia 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director Melanie 0 0 

Supervisor NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

GrandTech India Private Ltd 
Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

GrandTech International(Shanghai) Ltd. 

Director HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Supervisor LIN, HSING-CHI 0 0 

Guangzhou GrandTech Co., Ltd. Legal representative LING, KANG 0 0 

DeepStone Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Chairman HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 
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Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director LIN, HSING-CHI 0 0 

Supervisor NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Cogate Co., Ltd. 

 

Chairman HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Director LO, CHANG-HUA 0 0 

Director CHU, HSIAO-TING 1,120,330 41.49% 

Director CHEN, CHIH-YUN 0 0 

Supervisor HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 

Chi Chiu Digital Technology (Shanghai) 
Ltd. 

Legal representative HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Director HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 

Supervisor LIN, HSING-CHI 0 0 

Abico Digital Imaging Inc. 

Chairman HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

 
Netcore Network Communication 

Technology Corp. 

Chairman HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director LI, CHENG-HSIUNG 30,000 0.75% 

Director HUANG, CHENG-HSIN 0 0 

Supervisor CHIANG, JO-CHEN 0 0 

GrandTech Cloud Services Inc. 

Chairman HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 996,370 4.13% 

Director LI, CHENG-HSIUNG 319,660 1.37% 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 180,169 0.77% 

Director LIN, HSING-CHI 68,643 0.29% 

Director CHIANG, JO-CHEN 111,376 0.48% 

Supervisor HUANG, SHU-CHEN 30,709 0.13% 

Supervisor HUANG, LI-JUNG 9,111 0.04% 

Goldsun Application Technology Co., Ltd. 

Chairman HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director LO, CHANG-HUA 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Supervisor HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 

GrandTech Cloud Services (HK) Ltd. 

Director LI, CHENG-HSIUNG 0 0 

Director CHIANG, JO-CHEN 0 0 

Director Vince Wong 0 0 

GTMY Sdn Bhd 
Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Director Ling Wai Leng 0 0 

DPI Technology Sdn Bhd 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 1 0 

Director HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 

Director Ling Wai Leng 0 0 

Director Chew Cheng Keong 96,000 16.0% 
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Director Chew Chin Hui 96,000 16.0% 

Director Chew Chin Yang 96,000 16.0% 

DPI Technology Pte Ltd 

Director Ngoi Miew Huat Guan Huat 0 0 

Director Kam Yoke Eng. 0 0 

Director Chew Chin Yang 0 0 

Senco-Masslink Solutions Ltd 

Director HSU, CHENG-CHIANG 0 0 

Director NGOI, MIEW-HUAT 0 0 

Director HUANG, SHU-CHEN 0 0 

Director YANG, TE-MING 0 0 

Director CHEN, LI-CHANG 0 0 

B. Consolidated financial statements of affiliates: Please refer to page 192. 
C. Business report of affiliates: N/A. 

 
(II) Private placement of securities in the most recent fiscal year and as of the publication date of the 

annual report: None 
(III)Holding or disposal of shares in the Company by the Company’s subsidiaries in the most recent fiscal 

year and as of the publication date of the annual report: None. 
(IV)Other necessary statements: None. 
(V)Events that have a material influence on the shareholders’ equity or securities price as determined in 

Article 36, paragraph 3, subparagraph 2 of the Securities and Exchange Act in the most recent fiscal 
year and as of the publication date of the annual report: None. 

 



Independent Auditors’ Report Translated from Chinese 

To GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.: 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying parent company only balance sheets of GrandTech C.G. Systems 
Inc. (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2023, and the related parent company only statements of 
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023, and 
notes to the parent company only financial statements, including the summary of material accounting 
policies (together “the parent company only financial statements”). 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of the other auditors (please refer to the Other 
Matter – Making Reference to the Audits of Other Auditors section of our report), the financial 
statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Company as of December 31, 2023, and its financial performance and cash flows for the year ended 
December 31, 2023, in conformity with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the 
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting 
Standards, International Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International 
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as 
endorsed and became effective by Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit 
and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the 
Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements section of our report. 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified 
Public Accountant of the Republic of China (the “Norm”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. Based on our audits and the reports of the other auditors, 
we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the parent company only financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. 
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent company only financial 
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion 
on these matters. 

104



Correctness of timing of sales revenue recognition 

The Company recognized net operating revenue in the amount of NT$412,362 thousand, of which 
revenue from information software and hardware products totaled NT$125,276 thousand, accounting 
for 30.38% of the operating revenue. As the revenue from information software and hardware 
products is diversified, including sales of goods, computer management and printing machine 
services, information service revenue, etc., with diverse types and different transaction terms, we 
believe that the correctness of the timing when performance obligations are met is considered material 
to the parent company only financial statements. Therefore,  the timing of recognition of revenue 
from information software and hardware products was determined to be a key audit matter. 

Our audit procedures include (but are not limited to): 

1. Understanding the revenue recognition method related to the revenue from information
software and hardware products, and assessing and testing the internal control related to the
relevant revenue recognition of information software and hardware products.

2. Conducting analytical procedures on product-specific gross margin to evaluate the
reasonableness of revenue recognition amounts.

3. Conducting tests of details on sales revenue transactions, including randomly selecting and
verifying relevant vouchers from the record of sales revenue to ensure that performance
obligations have been truly met.

4. Performing sales revenue cut-off tests for the period before and after the date of financial
statements, randomly selecting operating revenue transactions, and reviewing the relevant
vouchers to confirm that revenue is recognized in the correct period.

We also considered the appropriateness in disclosures of operating revenues in Note 6 to the parent 
company only financial statements. 

Other Matter – Making Reference to the Audits of Other Auditors 

We did not audit the financial statements of certain investees accounted for using the equity method 
in the parent company only financial statements of the Company. Therefore, our opinions expressed 
herein regarding the amounts recorded in the financial statements of certain companies are based 
solely on the reports of the other auditors. The investments in aforementioned companies accounted 
for using equity method as of December 31, 2023 amounted to NT$562,001 thousand, accounting for 
24.16% of total parent company only assets; the share of other comprehensive income of the 
aforementioned companies accounted for using equity method for the year ended December 31, 2023 
amounted to NT$82,977 thousand, accounting for 34.55% of the total parent company only 
comprehensive income. 
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Other Matter – Audits for Previous Periods of Other Auditors 

The parent company only financial statements of the Company for the year ended December 31, 2022 

were not audited by us, but were audited by other auditors, and an audit report with unqualified 

opinions including Other Matter Paragraphs was issued on March 3, 2023. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent 

Company Only Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the parent company only 

financial statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the 

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting 

Standards, International Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International 

Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as 

endorsed by Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China and for such internal control 

as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of parent company only financial 

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the parent company only financial statements, management is responsible for assessing 

the ability to continue as a going concern of the Company, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 

to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends 

to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 

financial reporting process of the Company. 

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Company Only Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the parent company only financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but 

is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the 

Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 

from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these parent 

company only financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we 

exercise professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
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1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the parent company only financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive

to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis

for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is

higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional

omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing

an opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Company.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a

going concern of the Company. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are

required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the parent

company only financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our

opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our

auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to

continue as a going concern. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to

the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the parent company only financial

statements, including the accompanying notes, and whether the parent company only

financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that

achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the

entities or business activities within the Company. to express an opinion on the parent

company only financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 
related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 
that were of most significance in the audit of the parent company only financial statements for the 
year ended December 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in 
our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report 
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public 
interest benefits of such communication. 

/S/ Hsu, Hsin-Min 

/S/ Yu, Chien-Ju 

Ernst & Young, Taiwan 
March 22, 2024 

Notice to Readers 
The accompanying parent company only financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results 
of operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic 
of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such parent company 
only financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China. 

Accordingly, the accompanying parent company only financial statements and report of independent accountants are not 
intended for use by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or Standards on Auditing of the Republic 
of China, and their applications in practice. As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, Ernst 
& Young cannot accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or 
misunderstandings that may derive from the translation. 
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English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese

GRANDTECH C.G. SYSTEMS INC.

PARENT COMPANY ONLY STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022

 (Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Amount % Amount %

Operating revenue 4, 6 and 7 $412,362 100 $620,433 100

Operating costs 6 and 7 (288,594) (70) (432,535) (70)

Gross profit 123,768 30 187,898 30

　Unrealized profit from sales (478) - (1,698) - 

　Realized profit from sales 1,698 - 812 - 

Gross profit, net 124,988 30 187,012 30

Operating expenses

　Selling expenses 6 (42,888) (10) (44,416) (7)

　Administrative expenses 6 (36,687) (9) (44,821) (7)

　Expected credit gains (losses) 4 and 6 1,839 - (1,200) - 

　Total operating expenses (77,736) (19) (90,437) (14)

Operating income 47,252 11 96,575 16

Non-operating income and expenses

　Interest income 6 2,675 1 3,299 - 

　Other income 6 and 7 8,757 2 9,683 2

　Other gains and losses 6 (134) - 3,023 - 

　Financial costs 6 (10,994) (3) (8,595) (1)

　Share of profit or loss of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
 accounted for using the equity method

237,976 58 235,467 38

　Total non-operating income and expenses 238,280 58 242,877 39

Profit before tax 285,532 69 339,452 55

Income tax expense 4 and 6 (40,443) (10) (19,251) (3)

Net income 245,089 59 320,201 52

Other comprehensive income 6

　Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

　Remeasurements of defined benefit plans - - 625 - 

　Unrealized gains (losses) from investment in equity instruments
 at fair value through other comprehensive income

- - (521) - 

　Income tax related to the items not to be reclassified to profit or loss - - (126) - 

　Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

　Exchange differences resulting from translating the financial statements
      of a foreign operation

(4,899) (1) 101,392 16

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (4,899) (1) 101,370 16

Total comprehensive income $240,190 58 $421,571 68

Basic earnings per share 6

　Basic earnings per share $3.95 $5.49

Diluted earnings per share 6

　Diluted earnings per share $3.93 $5.46

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent company only financial statements.

2023 2022

Accounts Notes For the years ended December 31,
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English Translation of Parent Company Only Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese 
GRANDTECH C.G. SYSTEMS INC. 

NOTES TO PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 

(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Specified) 

1. History and organization

GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in Taiwan. The Company 
mainly engages in wholesale of books, publishing, wholesale of computer software, other services 
(sales agent for computer programming), other consulting services (analysis and planning 
consulting services of computer management information and automatic system) and data 
processing services. The Company’s shares were listed and traded on the Taipei Exchange on 
January 23, 2002. 

2. Date and procedures of authorization of financial statements for issue

The parent company only financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 31, 
2023 and 2022 were authorized for issue by the Company’s board of directors (hereinafter the 
“Board of Directors”) on March 7, 2024. 

3. Newly issued or revised standards and interpretations

(1) Changes in accounting policies resulting from applying for the first-time certain standards and
amendments

The Company applied for the first time International Financial Reporting Standards, 
International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations issued, revised or amended which are 
recognized by Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”) and become effective for annual 
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. The adoption of these new standards and 
amendments had no material impact on the Company. 

(2) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by IASB which are not endorsed by
FSC, and not yet adopted by the Company as of the end of the reporting period are listed
below.

Items New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations 
Effective Date issued 

by IASB 

A Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current – 
Amendments to IAS 1 

January 1, 2024 

B Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback – Amendments to IFRS 16 January 1, 2024 

C Non-current Liabilities with Covenants – Amendments to IAS 1 January 1, 2024 

D Supplier Finance Arrangements – Amendments to IAS 7 and 
IFRS 7 

January 1, 2024 
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A. Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current – Amendments to IAS 1

These are the amendments to paragraphs 69-76 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 

statements and the amended paragraphs related to the classification of liabilities as current 

or non-current. 

B. Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback – Amendments to IFRS 16

The amendments add seller-lessee additional requirements for the sale and leaseback 

transactions in IFRS 16, thereby supporting the consistent application of the standard. 

C. Non-current Liabilities with Covenants – Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments improved the information companies provide about long-term debt with 

covenants. The amendments specify that covenants to be complied within twelve months 

after the reporting period do not affect the classification of debt as current or non-current 

at the end of the reporting period. 

D. Supplier Finance Arrangements – Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

The amendments introduced additional information of supplier finance arrangements and 

added disclosure requirements for such arrangements. 

The above-mentioned standards and interpretations were issued by IASB and endorsed by 

FSC so that they are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. The 

aforementioned standards and interpretations have no material impact on the Company. 

(3) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by IASB which are not endorsed by

FSC, and not yet adopted by the Company as of the end of the reporting period are listed

below.

Items New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations 
Effective Date issued 

by IASB 

A IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 

“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” — Sale or 

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or 

Joint Ventures 

To be determined by 

IASB 

B IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023 

C Lack of Exchangeability – Amendments to IAS 21 January 1, 2025 
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A. IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures” — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Ventures

The amendments address the inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 

Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint 

Ventures, in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is contributed to an 

associate or a joint venture. IAS 28 restricts gains and losses arising from contributions of 

non-monetary assets to an associate or a joint venture to the extent of the interest 

attributable to the other equity holders in the associate or joint ventures. IFRS 10 requires 

full profit or loss recognition on the loss of control of the subsidiary. IAS 28 was amended 

so that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a 

business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is 

recognized in full. 

IFRS 10 was also amended so that the gains or loss resulting from the sale or contribution 

of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor 

and its associate or joint venture is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ 

interests in the associate or joint venture. 

B. IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant 

accounting aspects (including recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 

requirements). The core of IFRS 17 is the General (building block) Model, under this 

model, on initial recognition, an entity shall measure a group of insurance contracts at the 

total of the fulfilment cash flows and the contractual service margin. The carrying amount 

of a group of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting period shall be the sum of the 

liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims. 

Other than the General Model, the standard also provides a specific adaptation for contracts 

with direct participation features (the Variable Fee Approach) and a simplified approach 

(Premium Allocation Approach) mainly for short-duration contracts. 

The amendments include deferral of the date of initial application of IFRS 17 by two years 

to annual beginning on or after January 1, 2023 (from the original effective date of January 

1, 2021); provide additional transition reliefs; simplify some requirements to reduce the 

costs of applying IFRS 17 and revise some requirements to make the results easier to 

explain. IFRS 17 replaces an interim Standard – IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – from annual 

reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. 
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C. Lack of Exchangeability – Amendments to IAS 21

These amendments specify whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and, 

when it is not, to determining the exchange rate to use and the disclosures to provide. The 

amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025. 

The above-mentioned standards and interpretations issued by IASB have not yet endorsed by 

FSC at the date when the Company’s financial statements were authorized for issue, the local 

effective dates are to be determined by FSC. The new or amended standards and 

interpretations have no material impact on the Company. 

4. Summary of material accounting policies

(1) Statement of compliance

The parent company only financial statements of the Company for the years ended December 

31, 2023 and 2022 have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the 

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (“the Regulations”) and International 

Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations 

developed by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former 

Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed and became effective by the FSC (“TIFRS”). 

(2) Basis of preparation

The parent company only financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, 

except for financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The parent company 

only financial statements are expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars (“NT$”) unless 

otherwise stated. 

(3) Foreign currency transactions

The Company’s parent company only financial statements are presented in NT$. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency 

rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in 

foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency closing rate of exchange ruling 

at the reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are 

translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. Non-

monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using 

the exchange rates as of the dates of the initial transactions. 
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All exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating 

monetary items are taken to profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for the 

following: 

A. Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings for an acquisition of a

qualifying asset to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs are

included in the borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalization.

B. Foreign currency items within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are accounted for

based on the accounting policy for financial instruments.

C. Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of a reporting entity’s net

investment in a foreign operation is recognized initially in other comprehensive income

and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive income, 

any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income. 

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or loss, any exchange 

component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. 

(4) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into New Taiwan Dollars at the 

closing rate of exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income and expenses are 

translated at an average rate for the period. The exchange differences arising on the translation 

are recognized in other comprehensive income. On the disposal of a foreign operation, the 

cumulative amount of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation, recognized 

in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate component of equity, is 

reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized. The 

following partial disposals are accounted for as disposals: (a) when the partial disposal 

involves the loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation; and (b) when the 

retained interest after the partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or a partial 

disposal of an interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation is a financial asset that 

includes a foreign operation. 

On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in 

a loss of control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences 

recognized in other comprehensive income is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in 

that foreign operation. In partial disposal of an associate or joint arrangement that includes a 

foreign operation that does not result in a loss of significant influence or joint control, only 

the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized in 

other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss. 
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Any goodwill and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 

arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the 

foreign operation and expressed in its functional currency. 

(5) Current and non-current distinction

An asset is classified as current when it meets one of the following conditions; otherwise, it 

will be classified as non-current: 

A. The Company expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal

operating cycle

B. The Company holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading

C. The Company expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period

D. The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or

used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current when it meets one of the following conditions; otherwise, it 

will be classified as non-current: 

A. The Company expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle

B. The Company holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading

C. The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period

D. The Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for

at least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the

option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not

affect its classification.

(6) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly 

liquid investment (including time deposits that have maturity within 3 months) that are readily 

convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 

in value. 

(7) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party 

to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 

Financial assets and financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are 

recognized initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of investments not at fair value 

through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 
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A. Recognition and Measurement of Financial assets

The Company accounts for regular way purchase or sales of financial assets on the trade 

date. 

The Company classified financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair 

value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss considering 

both factors below: 

(a) the Company’s business model for managing the financial assets and

(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met 

and presented as note receivables, trade receivables, financial assets measured at amortized 

cost and other receivables etc., on balance sheet as of the reporting date: 

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial

assets to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (the amount at which 

the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus 

or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference 

between the initial amount and the maturity amount and adjusted for any loss allowance) 

and is not part of a hedging relationship. A gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss when 

the financial asset is derecognized, through the amortization process or in order to 

recognize the impairment gains or losses. 

Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by 

applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except 

for: 

(a) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the

Company applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the

financial asset from initial recognition.

(b) financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but

subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets,

the Company applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial

asset in subsequent reporting periods.
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Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of 

the following conditions are met: 

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Recognition of gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income are described as below: 

(a) A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or

losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognized

or reclassified.

(b) When the financial asset is derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously

recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss

as a reclassification adjustment.

(c) Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated

by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset

except for:

(i) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial

assets, the Company applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the

amortized cost of the financial asset from initial recognition.

(ii) financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those

financial assets, the Company applies the effective interest rate to the amortized

cost of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Besides, for certain equity investments within the scope of IFRS 9 that is neither held for 

trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination 

to which IFRS 3 applies, the Company made an irrevocable election to present the changes 

of the fair value in other comprehensive income at initial recognition. Amounts presented 

in other comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred to profit or loss (when 

disposal of such equity instrument, its cumulated amount included in other components of 

equity is transferred directly to the retained earnings) and these investments should be 

presented as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

on the balance sheet. Dividends on such investment are recognized in profit or loss unless 

the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of investment. 

121



Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets were classified as measured at amortized cost or measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income based on aforementioned criteria. All other financial 
assets were measured at fair value through profit or loss and presented on the balance sheet 
as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Such financial assets are measured at fair value, the gains or losses resulting from 
remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss which includes any dividend or interest 
received on such financial assets. 

B. Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on debt instrument 
investments measured at financial assets measured at amortized cost. The loss allowance 
on debt instrument investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income is recognized in other comprehensive income and not reduce the carrying amount 
in the balance sheet. 

The Company measures expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that 
reflects: 

(a) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

(b) the time value of money; and
(c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort

at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

The loss allowance is measures as follows: 

(a) At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial
asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition or the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. In addition, the Company
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in
the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition is no
longer met.

(b) At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition or financial asset that is
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

(c) For trade receivables or contract assets arising from transactions within the scope of
IFRS 15, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

(d) For lease receivables arising from transactions within the scope of IFRS 16, the
Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.
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At each reporting date, the Company needs to assess whether the credit risk on a financial 
asset has been increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a 
default occurring at the reporting date and the risk of default occurring at initial recognition. 
Please refer to Note 12 for further details on credit risk. 

C. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when:

(a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
(b) The Company has transferred the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

the asset have been transferred
(c) The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and

rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying 
amount and the consideration received or receivable including any cumulative gain or loss 
that had been recognized in other comprehensive income, is recognized in profit or loss. 

D. Financial liabilities and equity

Classification of liabilities or equity

The Company classifies the instrument issued as a financial liability or an equity instrument
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a
financial liability, and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The transaction costs of an equity transaction are
accounted for as a deduction from equity to the extent they are incremental costs directly
attributable to the equity transaction that otherwise would have been avoided.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are classified as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or financial liabilities measured at
amortized cost upon initial recognition.

Financial liabilities at amortized cost

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include interest bearing loans and
borrowings that are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method after
initial recognition. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method amortization process.
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Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 
and fees or transaction costs. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged 
or cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified 
(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor), such an exchange or 
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 
new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts and the consideration 
paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit 
or loss. 

E. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

(8) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

A. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
B. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Company. 

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Company uses valuation techniques which are appropriate in the circumstances and for 
which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant 
observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

124



(9) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value item by item.

Costs incurred in bringing each inventory to its present condition and location that is available
for sale and production; Merchandise is valued at the actual cost of goods purchased and
accounted for weighted average method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(10) Investments accounted for using the equity method

The Company’s investment in its associates is accounted for using the equity method. An
associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. A joint venture is a
joint arrangement whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the arrangement.

Under the equity method, the investment in the associate or an investment in a joint venture
is carried in the balance sheet at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post-acquisition change
in the Company’s share of net assets of the associate or joint venture. After the interest in the
associate or joint venture is reduced to zero, additional losses are provided for, and a liability
is recognized, only to the extent that the Company has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate or joint venture. Unrealized gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Company and the associate or joint venture are
eliminated to the extent of the Company’s related interest in the associate or joint venture.

When changes in the net assets of an associate or a joint venture occur and not those that are
recognized in profit or loss or other comprehensive income and do not affect the Company’s
percentage of ownership interests in the associate or joint venture, the Company recognizes
such changes in equity based on its percentage of ownership interests. The resulting capital
surplus recognized will be reclassified to profit or loss at the time of disposing of the associate
or joint venture on a pro-rata basis.

When the associate or joint venture issues new shares, and the Company’s interest in an
associate or a joint venture is reduced or increased as the Company fails to acquire shares
newly issued in the associate or joint venture proportionately to its original ownership interest,
the increase or decrease in the interest in the associate or joint venture is recognized in capital
surplus and investments accounted for using the equity method. When the interest in the
associate or joint venture is reduced, the cumulative amounts previously recognized in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss or other appropriate items. The
aforementioned capital surplus recognized is reclassified to profit or loss on a pro-rata basis
when the Company disposes the associate or joint venture.
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The financial statements of the associate or joint venture are prepared for the same reporting 
period as the Company. Where necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting 
policies in line with those of the Company. 

The Company determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that 
the investment in the associate or an investment in a joint venture is impaired in accordance 
with IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures. If this is the case the Company 
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the 
associate or joint venture and its carrying value and recognizes the amount in the ‘share of 
profit or loss of an associate’ in the statement of comprehensive income in accordance with 
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. In determining the value in use of the investment, the Company 
estimates: 

A. Its share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be generated
by the associate, including the cash flows from the operations of the associate and the
proceeds on the ultimate disposal of the investment.

B. The present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be
received from the investment and from its ultimate disposal.

Because goodwill that forms part of the carrying amount of an investment in an associate or 
an investment in a joint venture is not separately recognized, it is not tested for impairment 
separately by applying the requirements for impairment testing goodwill in IAS 36 
Impairment of Assets. 

Upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint venture, the Company measures 
and recognizes any retaining investment at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying 
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss of significant influence and the fair value 
of the retaining investment and proceeds from disposal is recognized in profit or loss. 
Furthermore, if an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint venture or an 
investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an associate, the entity continues to 
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained interest. 

(11) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of dismantling and 
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located and borrowing costs for 
construction in progress if the recognition criteria are met. Each part of an item of property, 
plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required 
to be replaced in intervals, the Company recognizes such parts as individual assets with 
specific useful lives and depreciation, respectively. The carrying amount of those parts that 
are replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition provisions of IAS 16 
Property, plant and equipment. When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized 
in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria 
are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred. 
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Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the 

following assets: 

Buildings 5 to 50 years 

Other equipment 1 to 8 years 

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant component initially recognized 

is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 

or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognized in profit or 

loss. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 

are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

(12) Leases

The Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, 

a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 

time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 

the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Company assesses whether the contract, 

throughout the period of use, has both of the following: 

A. the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset;

and

B. the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

For a contract that is, or contains, a lease, the Company accounts for each lease component 

within the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract. For a 

contract that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease 

components, the Company allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component 

on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-

alone price of the non-lease components. The relative stand-alone price of lease and non-lease 

components shall be determined on the basis of the price the lessor, or a similar supplier, 

would charge the Company for that component, or a similar component, separately. If an 

observable stand-alone price is not readily available, the Company estimates the stand-alone 

price, maximizing the use of observable information. 

Company as a lessee 

Except for leases that meet and elect short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the 

Company recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability for all leases which the Company is 

the lessee of those lease contracts. 
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At the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of 
the lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate. At the commencement 
date, the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the 
following payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not 
paid at the commencement date: 

A. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

B. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as of the commencement date;

C. amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
D. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that

option; and
E. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee

exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability on an amortized cost 
basis, which is increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability by using 
an effective interest method; and reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments 
made. 

At the commencement date, the Company measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The cost of 
the right-of-use asset comprises: 

A. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
B. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;
C. any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and
D. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying

asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

For subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset, the Company measures the right-of-
use asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
That is, the Company measures the right-of-use applying a cost model. 

If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Company by the end of the lease 
term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Company will exercise a purchase 
option, the Company depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the 
end of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Company depreciates the right-
of-use asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the 
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. 
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The Company applies IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” to determine whether the right-of-use 
asset is impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified. 

Except for leases that meet and elect short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the 
Company presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the balance sheet and presents 
interest expense separately from the depreciation charge associated with those leases in the 
statement of comprehensive income. 

For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Company elects to recognize the lease 
payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the 
lease term or another systematic basis. 

Company as a lessor 

At inception of a contract, the Company classifies each of its leases as either an operating 
lease or a finance lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all 
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as 
an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of an underlying asset. At the commencement date, the Company recognizes assets 
held under a finance lease in its balance sheet and present them as a receivable at an amount 
equal to the net investment in the lease. 

For a contract that contains lease components and non-lease components, the Company 
allocates the consideration in the contract applying IFRS 15. 

The Company recognizes lease payments from operating leases as rental income on either a 
straight-line basis or another systematic basis. Variable lease payments for operating leases 
that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as rental income when incurred. 

(13) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of 
intangible assets acquired in a business entity is its fair value as of the date of acquisition. 
Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated 
amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible 
assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is 
reflected in profit or loss for the year in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for 
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful 
life is reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life 
or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is 
accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates. 
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment 
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite 
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. 
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are 
recognized in profit or loss when the asset is derecognized. 

Computer software 

The cost of computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
life (3 to 5 years). 

A summary of the policies information applied to the Company’s intangible assets is as 
follows: 

Computer software 

Useful lives  Finite 

Amortization method used  Amortized on a straight- line basis over the estimated useful life 
Internally generated or acquired  Acquired 

(14) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that 
an asset in the scope of IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” may be impaired. If any such indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the 
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined 
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. An asset’s recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the 
carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. 

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether 
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or 
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed 
only if there has been an increase in the estimated service potential of an asset which in turn 
increases the recoverable amount. However, the reversal is limited so that the carrying amount 
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for 
the asset in prior years. 
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A cash generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, to which goodwill has been 
allocated is tested for impairment annually at the same time, irrespective of whether there is 
any indication of impairment. If an impairment loss is to be recognized, it is first allocated to 
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit (group of 
units), then to the other assets of the unit (group of units) pro rata on the basis of the carrying 
amount of each asset in the unit (group of units). Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot 
be reversed in future periods for any reason. 

An impairment loss of continuing operations or a reversal of such impairment loss is 
recognized in profit or loss. 

(15) Revenue recognition

The Company’s revenue arising from contracts with customers are primarily related to sale of 
goods and rendering of services. The accounting policies are explained as follows: 

Sales of goods 

The Company sells and represents the original software and hardwares, and its sales revenue 
is recognized when control of a product is transferred to the customer, that is, when the product 
is delivered to the customer and the Company has no outstanding performance obligations 
that may influence the customer to accept the product. 

The Company’s sales revenue is recognized at the net revenue by contract prices deducting 
estimated sales discounts and allowances. The Company uses expected value method based 
on historical experience at the time of sales to estimate sales returns. The number of returned 
products has been stable over the years; therefore, the Company assessed that it is highly 
probable that there will be no significant reversal in the accumulated revenue recognized. 

Trade receivables are recognized when the goods are delivered to customers, as from this 
point, the Company has an unconditional right to the contract price, it only needs to collect 
consideration from customers over time. 

Computer management and printing machine services 

The Company offers services, including computer management information, and rotational 
speed and maintenance of printing machines. Service revenue is recognized at the time when 
the Company renders services to customers in the financial reporting period. 

Some customer contracts include multiple merchandise or services deliverable, such as 
inostallation of hardware and software. In most cases, the nature of installation is simple, it 
does not involve integrated services, and can be performed by other companies and 
manufacturers; therefore, installation is identified as a stand-alone performance obligation. 
The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation in the contract based on the 
relative stand-alone selling price. If the sales of hardware are stated in the contract, revenue 
from the sales of hardware is recognized when the hardware is delivered to the customer, the 
legal ownership of the hardware is transferred to the customer, and the customer accepts the 
hardware. 
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Revenue from information services 

The Company provides corporate integration services and recognizes related revenue during 

the financial reporting period when the information services are provided. 

For certain contracts, contract asset is recognized when the performance obligations are met 

but the unconditional right to collect consideration is not yet available. In addition, the contract 

asset still needs to be evaluated for loss allowances in accordance with IFRS 9 "Financial 

Instruments". In addition, for some other contracts, part of the consideration is collected from 

customers upon signing the contract, and the Company has the obligation to provide the 

services subsequently; accordingly, these amounts are recognized as contract liabilities. 

The period between the transfers of contract liabilities to revenue is usually within one year, 

thus, no significant financing component is arisen. 

(16) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset 

that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 

capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed 

in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity 

incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

(17) Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 

received, and all attached conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset, 

it is recognized as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected 

useful life of the related asset. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as 

income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it 

is intended to compensate. 

(18) Post-employment benefits

All regular employees of the Company are entitled to a pension plan that is managed by an 

independently administered pension fund committee. Fund assets are deposited under the 

committee’s name in the specific bank account and hence, not associated with the Company. 

Therefore, fund assets are not included in the Company’s parent company only financial 

statements. Pension benefits for employees of the overseas subsidiaries and the branches are 

provided in accordance with the respective local regulations. 
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For the defined contribution plan, the Company will make a monthly contribution of no less 

than 6% of the monthly wages of the employees subject to the plan. The Company recognizes 

expenses for the defined contribution plan in the period in which the contribution becomes 

due. Overseas subsidiaries and branches make contribution to the plan based on the 

requirements of local regulations. 

Post-employment benefit plan that is classified as a defined benefit plan uses the Projected 

Unit Credit Method to measure its obligations and costs based on actuarial assumptions. Re-

measurements, comprising of the effect of the actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset 

ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets, excluding net interest, are 

recognized as other comprehensive income with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 

earnings in the period in which they occur. Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss 

on the earlier of: 

A. the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and

B. the date that the Company recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or 

asset, both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking account of any 

changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution 

and benefit payment. 

(19) Share-based payment transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions between the Company and its employees is recognized 

based on the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value of the equity 

instruments is determined by using an appropriate pricing model. 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase 

in other capital reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service 

conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at 

each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has 

expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will 

ultimately vest. The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the movement 

in cumulative expense recognized as of the beginning and end of that period. 

No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled 

transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are 

treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is 

satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied. 
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Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense 
recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the 
award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the 
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the 
employee as measured at the date of modification. 

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of 
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. 
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity 
or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, 
and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new 
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the 
previous paragraph. 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the 
computation of diluted earnings per share. 

The cost of restricted shares issued is recognized as salary expense based on the fair value of 
the equity instruments on the grant date, together with a corresponding increase in other capital 
reserves in equity, over the vesting period. The Company recognizes unearned employee 
salary which is a transitional contra equity account; the balance in the account will be 
recognized as salary expense over the passage of vesting period. 

(20) Income tax

Income tax expense (income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit
or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss.

The income tax for undistributed earnings is recognized as income tax expense in the
subsequent year when the distribution proposal is approved by the Shareholders’ meeting.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.
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Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

A. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset

or liability in a transaction that is not a business entity and, at the time of the transaction,

affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

B. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

associates and interests in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the

temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of 

unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 

will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 

unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except: 

A. Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the

initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business entity, and,

at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

B. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,

associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the

extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future

and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 

the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws 

that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of 

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow 

from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover 

or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax relating to items 

recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are 

recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income 

or directly in equity. Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are 

recognized accordingly. 

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 

to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 

relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

According to the temporary exception in the International Tax Reform – Pillar Two Model 

Rules (Amendments to IAS 12), information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related 

to Pillar Two income tax will neither be recognized nor be disclosed. 
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5. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements require management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, 
uncertainty about these assumption and estimate could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 

(1) Trade receivables - estimation of impairment loss

The Company estimates the impairment loss of accounts receivables at an amount equal to 
lifetime expected credit losses. The credit loss is the present value of the difference between 
the contractual cash flows that are due under the contract (carrying amount) and the cash flows 
that expects to receive (evaluate forward looking information). However, as the impact from 
the discounting of short-term receivables is not material, the credit loss is measured by the 
undiscounted cash flows. Where the actual future cash flows are lower than expected, a 
material impairment loss may arise. Please refer to Note 6 for more details. Where the actual 
future cash flows are lower than expected, a material impairment loss may arise. Please refer 
to Note 6 for more details. 

(2) Inventories

Estimates of net realizable value of inventories take into consideration that inventories may 
be damaged, become wholly or partially obsolete, or their selling prices have declined. The 
estimates are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made. 
Please refer to Note 6 for more details. 

(3) Income tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the 
amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business 
relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, 
differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to 
such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 
recorded. The Company establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible 
consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which it operates. 
The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax 
audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible 
tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues 
depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective business’s domicile. 
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Deferred tax assets are recognized for all carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax 
credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available or there are sufficient taxable temporary differences against which the unused 
tax losses, unused tax credits or deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The amount 
of deferred tax assets determined to be recognized is based upon the likely timing and the 
level of future taxable profits and taxable temporary differences together with future tax 
planning strategies. 

6. Contents of significant accounts

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Cash on hand and revolving funds $37 $47 
Bank checks and demand deposits 79,590 111,817 
Total $79,627 $111,864 

(2) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss: 
Unlisted companies stocks $100,755 $100,755 

Current $- $- 
Non-current 100,755 100,755 
Total $100,755 $100,755 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were not pledged. 

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Equity instrument investments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income: 
Unlisted companies stocks $8,479 $8,479 

Current $- $- 
Non-current 8,479 8,479 
Total $8,479 $8,479 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income were not pledged. 
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The Company recovered the investment amount of NT$2,000 thousand due to the refund 

arising from capital reduction in equity investment in 2022. 

Please refer to Note 12 for more information on the price risk and fair value of financial assets 

measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

(4) Notes receivables

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Notes receivables arising from operating activities $15,075 $14,879 

Less: loss allowance (45) (65)

Total $15,030 $14,814 

Notes receivables were not pledged. 

The Company follows the requirement of IFRS 9 to assess the impairment. Please refer to 

Note 6 (16) for more details on loss allowance and Note 12 for details on credit risk. 

(5) Trade receivables

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Trade receivables $52,054 $100,282 

Trade receivables from related parties - 9

Less: loss allowance (168) (1,965)

Total $51,886 $98,326 

Trade receivables were not pledged. 

Accounts receivable are generally on 30 to 90 day terms. The total carrying amount as of 

December 31, 2023 and 2022 were NT$52,054 thousand and NT$100,291 thousand, 

respectively. Please refer to Note 6 (16) for more details on loss allowance of trade receivables 

for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. Please refer to Note 12 for more details on 

credit risk management. 

(6) Inventories

As of December 31, 2023 

Cost 

Allowance for 

inventory 

valuation 

losses 

Carrying 

Amount 

Inventories of software and hardware $56,081 $(1,713) $54,368 
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As of December 31, 2022 

Cost 

Allowance for 
inventory 
valuation 

losses 
Carrying 
Amount 

Inventories of software and hardware $92,968 $(15,948) $77,020 

Inventory cost recognized as loss: 
For the years ended 

December 31, 
2023 2022 

Cost of inventory sold $294,962 $426,102 
(Reversal gains) losses on market price decline and 
obsolete and slow-moving inventories (Note) 

(6,368) 6,433 

Total $288,594 $432,535 

Note: For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company eliminated some of its inventories 
that had been recorded as inventory valuation losses, resulting in reversal gains on 
inventories. 

No inventories were pledged. 

(7) Investments accounted for using the equity method

The following table lists the investments accounted for using the equity method of the
Company:

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Investees Amount  Shareholding Amount  Shareholding 
Investment in subsidiaries: 
GrandTech (B.V.I.) Inc. (Note 1) $1,088,526 100.00% $951,604 100.00% 
GrandTech (Cayman) Inc. 373,850 100.00% 325,268 100.00% 
DeepStone Digital Technology Co., Ltd. 

(Note 2) 
21,948 81.00% 27,481 81.00% 

Abico Digital Imaging Inc. (315) 100.00% (315) 100.00% 
Cogate Co., Ltd. 25,250 51.00% 22,080 51.00% 
GoldSun Application Technology Co., Ltd. 22,504 100.00% 24,820 100.00% 
GrandTech Cloud Services Inc. (Note 3) 312,401 75.14% 279,525 75.14% 
Subtotal 1,844,164 1,630,463 
Credit balance of investments accounted 

for using equity method recognized as 
other non-current liabilities 

315 315 
Total $1,844,479 $1,630,778 

Note 1: On September 14, 2022, GrandTech (B.V.I.) Inc. passed a resolution in the board 
meeting to proceed with cash capital reduction, refunding US$3,000 thousand 
(approximately NT$90,264 thousand) in total, the proportion of capital reduction 
approximated 42.86%, and the Company’s percentage of ownership remained the 
same. 
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Note 2: In July 2023, DeepStone Digital Technology Co., Ltd. proceeded with capital 
reduction to offset the deficit, the proportion of capital reduction approximated 
50.64%, and the Company’s percentage of ownership remained the same. 

Note 3: GrandTech Cloud Services Inc. proceeded with cash capital increase in June 2022, 
and reserved 10% of new shares for subscription by employees in accordance with 
the Company Act. The Company subscribed NT$40,000 thousand to this capital 
increase. The Company’s percentage of ownership dropped from 77.71% to 75.14% 
as it did not subscribe to its original shareholding ratio.  
In June 2023, GrandTech Cloud Services Inc. proceeded with capital increase 
through capitalization of retained earnings. The Company received 2,525 thousand 
shares, and its ercentage of ownership remained the same. 

(8) Property, plant and equipment

Owner occupied and leased property, plant and equipment 

Land Buildings 

Other 

equipment Total 

Cost: 

As of January 1, 2023 $90,581 $36,878 $25,203 $152,662 

Additions - 1,781 2,955 4,736 

Disposals - - (2,746) (2,746) 

As of December 31, 2023 $90,581 $38,659 $25,412 $154,652 

As of January 1, 2022 $90,581 $33,498 $25,508 $149,587 

Additions - 410 275 685 

Transfers - 2,970 - 2,970

Disposals - - (580) (580)

As of December 31, 2022 $90,581 $36,878 $25,203 $152,662 

Depreciation and 

impairment: 

As of January 1, 2023 $- $24,184 $23,041 $47,225 

Depreciations - 1,649 1,921 3,570 

Disposals - - (2,746) (2,746) 

As of December 31, 2023 $- $25,833 $22,216 $48,049 

As of January 1, 2022 $- $22,684 $21,303 $43,987 

Depreciations - 1,500 2,318 3,818 

Disposals - - (580) (580) 

As of December 31, 2022 $- $24,184 $23,041 $47,225 

Net carrying amounts as of: 

December 31, 2023 $90,581 $12,826 $3,196 $106,603 

December 31, 2022 $90,581 $12,694 $2,162 $105,437 

Please refer to Note 8 for more details on property, plant and equipment under pledge. 
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(9) Other non-current assets

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Refundable deposits $3,365 $3,631 
Prepaid pension cost 5,311 5,311 
Total $8,676 $8,942 

(10) Short-term borrowings

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Secured bank loans $170,000 $140,000 
Unsecured bank loans 580,000 400,000 
Total $750,000 $540,000 

Interest Rates (%) 
Secured bank loans 1.65%~1.83%  0.87%~1.83% 
Unsecured bank loans 1.4%~1.7%  0.85%~1.70% 

The Company’s unused short-term lines of credits amounted to NT$570,000 thousand and 
NT$780,000 thousand, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

Please refer to Note 8 for more details on financial assets measured at amortized cost pledged 
as security for short-term borrowings. 

(11) Other payables

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Dividends payable $68,298 $77,746 
Accrued salaries and bonuses 7,284 17,078 
Payables for employee compensation, and remuneration to 

directors and supervisors 
14,397 17,116 

Others 11,959 11,590 
Total $101,938 $123,530 

(12) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan 

The Company adopted a defined contribution plan in accordance with the Labor Pension Act 
of the R.O.C. Under the Labor Pension Act, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries would 
make monthly contributions to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the amounts not 
less than 6% of the employees’ monthly wages. The Company has made monthly 
contributions of 6% of each individual employee’s salaries or wages to employees’ pension 
accounts. 
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Expenses under the defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022 amounted to NT$2,495 thousand and NT$2,058 thousand, respectively. 

Defined benefits plan 

The Company adopt a defined benefit plan in accordance with the Labor Standards Act of the 
R.O.C. The pension benefits are disbursed based on the units of service years and the average 
salaries in the last month of the service year. Two units per year are awarded for the first 15 
years of services while one unit per year is awarded after the completion of the 15th year. The 
total units shall not exceed 45 units. Under the Labor Standards Act, the Company contribute 
an amount equivalent to 2% of the employees’ total salaries and wages on a monthly basis to 
the pension fund deposited at the Bank of Taiwan in the name of the administered pension 
fund committee. Before the end of each year, the Company assess the balance in the 
designated labor pension fund. If the amount is inadequate to pay pensions calculated for 
workers retiring in the same year, the Company will make up the difference in one 
appropriation before the end of March the following year. 

The Ministry of Labor is in charge of establishing and implementing the fund utilization plan 
in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of 
the Labor Retirement Fund. The pension fund is invested in-house or under a mandate, based 
on a passive-aggressive investment strategy for long-term profitability. The Ministry of Labor 
establishes checks and risk management mechanism based on the assessment of risk factors 
including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, in order to maintain adequate manager 
flexibility to achieve targeted return without over-exposure of risk. With regard to utilization 
of the pension fund, the minimum earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial 
statement shall not be less than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-
year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks. Treasury Funds can be used 
to cover the deficits after the approval of the competent authority. As the Company does not 
participate in the operation and management of the pension fund, no disclosure on the fair 
value of the plan assets categorized in different classes could be made in accordance with 
paragraph 142 of IAS 19. 

As of December 31, 2023, the defined benefit obligation relevant to the Company was settled. 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefits obligation is 11 years as of December 
31, 2022. 

Reconciliations of liabilities (assets) of the defined benefit obligation and plan assets at fair 
value are as follows: 

As of 
December 31, 

2023 
December 31, 

2022 
January 1, 

2022 
Defined benefit obligation $- $(1,357) $(1,380) 
Plan assets at fair value 5,311 6,668 6,031 
Net defined benefit (assets) liabilities $5,311 $5,311 $4,651 
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Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets) liabilities: 

Defined 
benefits 

obligation 
Plan assets 
Fair Value 

Net defined 
benefit 

(liabilities) 
assets 

As of January 1, 2022 $(1,380) $6,031 $4,651 
Interest (expenses) income (10) 45 35 

Subtotal (1,390) 6,076 4,686 
Remeasurements of defined benefit 

liabilities/assets: 
Return on plan assets 

(excluding the amounts of interest 
income or expenses) 

- 592 592 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from 
changes in financial assumptions 

91 - 91

Experience adjustments (58) - (58) 
Subtotal 33 592 625 

Benefits paid - - - 
Contributions by employer - - - 
As of December 31, 2022 (1,357) 6,668 5,311 
Benefits paid 1,357 (1,357) - 
Contributions by employer - - - 
As of December 31, 2023 $- $5,311 $5,311 

The principal assumptions used in determining the Company’s defined benefit plan are shown 
below: 

As of 
December 31, 

2022 
Discount rate 1.40% 
Expected rate of salary increases 2.00% 

Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is shown below: 

For the year ended 
December 31, 2022 

Defined 
benefits 

obligation 
increase 

Defined 
benefits 

obligation 
decrease 

Discount rate increases by 0.25% $- $74 
Discount rate decreases by 0.25% 77 - 
Rate of future salary increases by 0.25% 75 - 
Rate of future salary decreases by 0.25% - 73
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The sensitivity analysis above is based on a change in a significant assumption (for example: 
change in discount rate or future salary), keeping all other assumptions constant. The 
sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit 
obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another. 

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis 
compared to the previous period. 

(13) Equity

A. Common stock

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s authorize capital were both
NT$1,050,000 thousand, issued shares both amounted to NT$620,894 thousand, each at a
par value of NT$10, and both divided into 62,089 thousand shares. Each share has one
voting right and a right to receive dividends.

The Company passed a resolution in the board meeting held on August 4, 2022 to proceed
with cash capital increase and set November 4, 2022 as the reference date of capital
increase. The purpose of the cash capital increase was for increasing operating funds. The
actual number of shares issued was 4,500 thousand, at the actual subscription price of
NT$49 per share. This capital increase has raised NT$220,500 thousand, and the
registration of change was completed.

B. Capital surplus

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Additional paid-in capital $221,565 $221,565 
Increase (decrease) through changes in ownership 

interests in subsidiaries 
20,648 20,648 

Total $242,213 $242,213 

According to the Company Act, the capital reserve shall not be used except for making 
good the deficit of the company. When a company incurs no loss, it may distribute the 
capital reserves related to the income derived from the issuance of new shares at a premium 
or income from endowments received by the company. The distribution could be made in 
cash or in the form of dividend shares to its shareholders in proportion to the number of 
shares being held by each of them. 

A resolution was passed by the Board of Directors on March 3, 2022 to distribute cash 
from the capital reserves related to the income derived from the issuance of new shares at 
a premium in the amount of NT$97,850 thousand, at a par value of NT$1.6991 per share. 

144



C. Retained earnings and dividend policies

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, profit in the annual final accounts 

shall be used to cover the deficits in the previous fiscal year after all taxes and dues are 

paid, and legal reserve at 10% of net income after tax. However, this restriction does not 

apply in the event that the amount of the accumulated legal reserve equals or exceeds the 

Company’s total paid-in capital. When necessary, the special reserve may be appropriated 

or reversed in accordance with laws or regulations of the securities regulators. The 

remainder, if any, along with the undistributed earnings at the beginning of the same period, 

shall be resolved by the Board of Directors to be reserved or distributed as dividends paid 

to shareholders depending on the capital and economic development for the current year, 

and proposed to shareholders’ meeting for approval. The Company authorizes the Board 

of Directors to distribute cash dividends after passing a special resolution and report it to 

the shareholders’ meeting in accordance with laws and regulations. 

In addition, the Company may distribute earnings or offset losses after the end of each 

quarter in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation. Earnings distributed in cash shall 

be implemented after a resolution passed by the Board of Directors; when earnings are 

distributed by issuing new shares, it shall be implemented by a resolution passed in the 

shareholders’ meeting in accordance with regulations. 

The implementation method of the Company’s dividend policies requires considering the 

Company’s future capital budget planning, meeting shareholders’ needs for cash inflow, 

ensuring the Company’s competitiveness in the market, and other related factors. Cash 

dividends shall not be lower than 10% of the total dividends paid to shareholders. 

According to the Company Act, the Company needs to set aside amount to legal reserve 

unless where such legal reserve amounts to the total paid-in capital. The legal reserve can 

be used to make good the deficit of the Company. When the Company incurs no loss, it 

may distribute the portion of legal serve which exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital by 

issuing new shares or by cash in proportion to the number of shares being held by each of 

the shareholders. 

According to existing regulations, when the Company distributes distributable earnings, it 

shall set aside to special reserve, from the profit/loss of the current period and the 

undistributed earnings from the previous period, an amount equal to “other net deductions 

from shareholders’ equity for the current fiscal year, provided that if the company has 

already set aside special reserve in the first-time adoption of the IFRS, it shall set aside 

supplemental special reserve based on the difference between the amount already set aside 

and other net deductions from shareholders’ equity. For any subsequent reversal of other 

net deductions from shareholders’ equity, the amount reversed may be distributed from the 

special reserve. 
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Appropriation of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the cash dividend per 
share as resolved by the Board of Directors are as follows: 

For the three-months period ended 

June 30, 2023  December 31, 2023 Total 

Resolution date of the 
Board of Directors 

August 10, 2023 March 7, 2024 

Legal reserve $13,028 $11,481 $24,509 

Special reserve $- $4,898 $4,898 

Cash dividends $68,298 $180,059 $248,357 

Cash dividend per share $1.10 $2.90 $4.00 

Appropriation of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2022 and the cash dividend per 
share as resolved by the Board of Directors are as follows: 

For the three-months period ended 

June 30, 2022  December 31, 2022 Total 

Resolution date of the 
Board of Directors 

August 4, 2022 March 3, 2023 

Legal reserve $14,520 $17,550 $32,070 

Reversal of special reserve $- $(100,868) $(100,868) 

Cash dividends $77,746 $232,835 $310,581 

Cash dividend per share $1.35 $3.75 $5.10 

Please refer to Note 6 (18) for details on employees’ compensation and remuneration to 
directors and supervisors. 

(14) Share-based payment plans

Certain employees of the Company are entitled to share-based payments as part of their
remuneration. Services are provided by the employees in return for the equity instruments
granted. These plans are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions.

The Company’s share-based payment arrangement is as follows:

A. The Company’s share-based payment arrangement for the year ended December 31, 2022
is as follows:

Type of arrangement Grant date 

Number of shares 

granted Contract period  Vesting conditions 

Cash capital increase and retained 

employee subscription 

 November 4, 2022  36 thousand shares - Immediately vested
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B. Details of the above-mentioned share-based payment arrangement are as follows:

For the year ended 

December 31, 2022 

Number of 

stock option 

Weighted 

average 

exercise price 

of stock 

options (NT$) 

Outstanding at beginning of period - $-

Granted 36 49.0

Exercised (36) 49.0

Outstanding at end of period - - 

Exercisable at end of period - - 

C. The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of the

stock option for the share-based payment transaction on the grant date. The relevant

information is as follows:

Type of arrangement  Grant date 

Share 

price 

Exercise 

price 

Expected 

volatility 

Expected 

life 

Expected 

dividends 

Risk-free 

interest rate 

Fair value 

per unit 

Cash capital increase 

and retained 

employee 

subscription 

 November 4, 

2022 

53.3 49 10.48% 0.01 years - 0.78% NT$4.3038 

D. Details of the above-mentioned share-based payment arrangement are as follows:

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s expenses arising from 

the equity-settled share-based payment transaction amounted to NT$0 thousand and 

NT$155 thousand, respectively. 

(15) Operating revenue

For the years ended 

December 31, 

2023 2022 

Revenue from contracts with customers 

Revenue from information software and hardware products $125,276 $336,827 

Service revenue 287,086 283,606 

Total $412,362 $620,433 
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Analysis of revenue from contracts with customers for the years ended December 31, 2023 
and 2022, which could be classified into the following main regions: 

A. Disaggregation of revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

 Taiwan region 

Hong Kong 
and Macao 

regions Other regions Total 

Timing of revenue recognition: 
At a point in time $351,385 $3,833 $1,503 $356,721 
Over time 55,641 - - 55,641 

Total $407,026 $3,833 $1,503 $412,362 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

 Taiwan region 

Hong Kong 
and Macao 

regions Other regions Total 

Timing of revenue recognition: 
At a point in time $569,983 $3,675 $1,439 $575,097 
Over time 45,336 - - 45,336 

Total $615,319 $3,675 $1,439 $620,433 

B. Contract balances

Contract liabilities, current 
As of 

December 31, 
2023 

December 31, 
2022 

January 1, 
2022 

Sales of goods $14,444 $18,813 $20,958 

The significant changes in the Company’s balances of contract liabilities for the years 
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 

The opening balance transferred to revenue $7,207 $8,248 
Increase in receipts in advance during the period 

(excluding the amount incurred and transferred to 
revenue during the period) 

2,838 6,103 

The period between the transfers of contract liabilities to revenue is usually within one 
year, thus, there was no performance obligation that has not been met and no asset was 
recognized from costs to fulfill a contract with the customer. 
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(16) Expected credit losses (gains)

For the years ended 

December 31, 

2023 2022 

Operating expenses – Expected credit (gains) losses 

Notes receivables $(20) $(11) 

Trade receivables (1,797) 1,242 

Finance lease receivable and long-term finance lease 

receivable 

(22) (31)

Total $(1,839) $1,200 

Please refer to Note 12 for more details on credit risk. 

The credit risks for the Company’s financial assets measured at amortized cost as of December 

31, 2023 and 2022 are assessed as low (the same as the assessment result as of January 1, 

2022). Therefore, the loss allowance is both measured at an amount equal to 12-month 

expected credit losses (loss rate is 0%). 

The Company measures the loss allowance of its trade receivables (including note receivables, 

trade receivables, finance lease receivable and long-term finance lease receivable) at an 

amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The assessment of the Company’s loss 

allowance as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows: 

Not yet due 

Overdue 

0-90 days

Overdue 

91-180 days

Overdue 181 

Days Total 

As of December 31, 2023 

Expected loss rates 0.03%~0.16% 24.63% 53.75% 100.00% 

Total carrying amount 107,308 869 - - 108,177 

Loss allowance 33 214 - - 247 

Not yet due 

Overdue 

0-90 days

Overdue 

91-180 days

Overdue 181 

Days Total 

As of December 31, 2022 

Expected loss rates 0.03%~0.14% 14.20% 56.08% 100.00% 

Total carrying amount 164,028 13,094 255 - 177,377

Loss allowance 83 1,858 145 - 2,086

The movement in the provision for impairment of note receivables, trade receivables finance 

lease receivable and long-term finance lease receivable for the years ended December 31, 

2023 and 2022 is as follows: 
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Notes 
receivables 

Trade 
receivables  

Finance lease 
receivable and 

long-term finance 
lease receivable 

As of January 1, 2023 $65 $1,965 $56 
Addition/(reversal) for the current period (20) (1,797) (22) 

As of December 31, 2023 $45 $168 $34 

Notes 
receivables 

Trade 
receivables  

Finance lease 
receivable and 

long-term finance 
lease receivable 

As of January 1, 2022 $76 $723 $87 
Addition/(reversal) for the current period (11) 1,242 (31) 

As of December 31, 2022 $65 $1,965 $56 

(17) Leases

A. The Company as a lessee

The underlying assets leased by the Company included buildings and company cars, and
the term of lease contracts usually ranged from 1 to 5 years. The Company’s lease contracts
were individually negotiated and contain various terms and conditions.

The lease term did not exceed 12 months, and leases of low-value underlying assets were
multi-function printers and warehouses.

The effect that leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the Company are as follows:

(a) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

(i) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets
As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Buildings $3,741 $326 
Miscellaneous equipment (company cars) 2,886 881 

Total $6,627 $1,207 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s additions to 
right-of-use assets amounted to NT$9,742 thousand and NT$0 thousand, 
respectively. 
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(ii) Leases liabilities

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Current $4,882 $1,225 
Non-current 1,778 - 

Total $6,660 $1,225 

Please refer to Note 6 (19)(D) Financial Cost for the interest on lease liabilities 
recognized for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and refer to Note 12 
(5) Liquidity Risk Management for the maturity analysis for lease liabilities as of
December 31, 2023 and 2022.

(b) Amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

Depreciation charged for right-of-use assets

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 

Buildings $2,682 $2,170 
Miscellaneous equipment (company cars) 1,640 1,510 

Total $4,322 $3,680 

(c) Rental expenditure relating to leasing activities

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 

The expenses relating to short-term leases $584 $805 

(d) Cash outflow relating to leasing activities

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s total cash outflows
for leases amounted to NT$4,976 thousand and NT$4,472 thousand, respectively.

B. The Company as a lessor

The Company signed lease contracts for digital printing assets and multi-function printers,
the lease term ranged from 1 to 9 years, and the lease contracts were individually negotiated
and contained various terms and conditions. Leases are classified as finance leases as they
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of underlying assets.
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The Company leased the digital printing assets under finance leases. The profit or loss 
related to the lease contracts is as follows: 

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 

Lease income for finance leases $1,370 $2,077 

Analysis of the maturity date of the undiscounted lease payments leased by the Company 
under finance leases is as follows: 

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 
2023 $- $22,528 
2024 12,338 12,338 
2025 12,490 12,490 
2026 11,168 11,168 
2027 4,556 4,556 
After 2028 2,278 2,278 

Total undiscounted lease payments $42,830 $65,358 

Undiscounted lease payments $42,830 $65,358 
Unearned finance income (1,782) (3,151) 

Gross carrying amount 41,048 62,207 
Loss allowance - Finance lease receivable and long-term 

finance lease receivable 
(34) (56)

Net investment in the lease $41,014 $62,151 

Current $11,412 $21,103 

Non-current $29,602 $41,048 

Operating leases 

Please refer to Note 6 (8) for relevant disclosure of property, plant and equipment for 
operating leases under IFRS 16. For operating leases entered by the Company, the 
undiscounted lease payments to be received and a total of the amounts for the remaining 
years as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Not later than one year $2,378 $1,786 
Later than one year but not later than two years - - 
Total $2,378 $1,786 
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(18) Summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses by function
during the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022:

By function 

By nature 

For the years ended December 31, 

2023 2022 

Operating 

Cost 

Operating 

Expense Total 

Operating 

Cost 

Operating 

Expense Total 

Employee benefits expense 

Salaries and wages $- $40,497 $40,497 $- $48,910 $48,910 

Labor and health insurance - 4,298 4,298 - 4,406 4,406 

Pension - 2,495 2,495 - 2,023 2,023 

Remuneration to directors - 2,399 2,399 - 2,853 2,853 

Other employee benefits expense - 1,734 1,734 - 2,990 2,990 

Depreciation - 7,892 7,892 - 7,498 7,498 

Amortization - 190 190 - 609 609 

The average number of employees of the Company was 40 and 54 for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively, both including 7 non-employee directors. 

Information on average employee benefits and salaries and wages is as follows: 

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 
Average employee benefits expense $1,486 $1,409 

Average salaries and wages $1,227 $1,209 

The average salaries and wages for the year ended December 31, 2023 increased by 1.49% 
compared to the adjustment changes for the year ended December 31, 2022. 

The remuneration to supervisors for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 both 
amounted to NT$0 thousand. As the Company has an audit committee, no remuneration to 
supervisors needs to be paid. 

The Company’s remuneration to directors is paid in accordance with the “Remuneration 
Payment Methods for Directors and Functional Committee Members.” No higher than 3% of 
the profit for the current is distributable as the remuneration to directors in accordance with 
the Company's Articles of Incorporation, and the remuneration to directors shall be distributed 
according to the distribution ratio stipulated in these measures. The Company’s independent 
directors do not receive remuneration to directors; the remuneration to CEOs, general 
managers and deputy general managers includes salary, bonus and employee compensation, 
and is determined based on the positions held, responsibilities and the degree of contribution 
to the Company with reference to industry standards; the procedure for determining 
remuneration is also determined in accordance with the Company’s Articles of Incorporation 
and decision-making authority. 
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The company established a remuneration committee to assist the Board of Directors in 
formulating the remuneration to directors and managers and the Company’s remuneration 
policies. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, and the operation of the 
remuneration committee and the Board of Directors, the Company will review the 
remuneration to directors and managers based on their participation in the Company’s 
operations and the value of their contributions, and reduce the possibility and relevance of 
future risks to the minimum in order to strike a balance between the Company’s sustainable 
operations and risk control. The Company’s compensation and benefits are equivalent to the 
upper level of the market average in the same industry, and are determined based on 
employees’ experience, qualifications and value of the position they are applying for. The 
Company’s compensation and benefits are higher than the basic salary under the Labor 
Standards Act and do not differ by gender, age, nationality or race. Every year, the Company 
considers individual performance contributions as the basis for evaluation of salary increases, 
variable bonuses, remuneration and other rewards. The Company has planned a complete 
grade and rank system, which is applicable to both male and female employees without 
distinction; furthermore, the Company conducts performance evaluation twice a year. The 
purpose of the evaluation is not only to review work results, but also to coach employees to 
improve their academic abilities. The rewards and remuneration to supervisors at associate 
level and above are more directly linked to the organization’s operating performance, and 
senior supervisor welfare management measures was formulated to enhance the security and 
centripetal force of supervisors. In addition to rewarding employees for their hard work, 
various rewards and remuneration methods also acknowledge their commitment to their 
positions and their collaborative efforts with the Company to achieve operational goals. 

According to the Articles of Incorporation, no lower than 4%~11% of profit of the current 
year is distributable as employees’ compensation and no higher than 3% of profit of the current 
year is distributable as remuneration to directors and supervisors. However, the Company's 
accumulated losses shall have been covered. The Company may, by a resolution adopted by 
a majority vote at a meeting of Board of Directors attended by two-thirds of the total number 
of directors, have the profit distributable as employees’ compensation in the form of shares or 
in cash; and in addition thereto a report of such distribution is submitted to the shareholders’ 
meeting. Information on the Board of Directors’ resolution regarding the employees’ 
compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors can be obtained from the “Market 
Observation Post System” on the website of the TWSE. 

Based on the profit of the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company estimated the amounts 
of the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year 
ended December 31, 2023 according to the percentage stipulated in the Articles of 
Incorporation. As such, the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and 
supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to NT$11,997 thousand and 
NT$2,399 thousand, respectively, which were recognized as employee benefits expenses. 
Based on the profit of the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company estimated the amounts 
of the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year 
ended December 31, 2022 according to the percentage stipulated in the Articles of 
Incorporation. As such, the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and 
supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to NT$14,263 thousand and 
NT$2,853 thousand, respectively, which were recognized as employee benefits expenses. 
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A resolution was passed in the board meeting held on March 7, 2024 to distribute NT$11,997 
thousand and NT$2,399 thousand in cash as employees’ compensation and remuneration to 
directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2023, respectively. No material 
differences existed between the estimated amount and the actual distribution of the employee 
compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 
2023. 

A resolution was passed in the board meeting held on March 3, 2023 to distribute NT$14,263 
thousand and NT$2,853 thousand in cash as employees’ compensation and remuneration to 
directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2022, respectively. No material 
differences existed between the estimated amount and the actual distribution of the employee 
compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 
2022. 

(19) Non-operating income and expenses

A. Interest income

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 
Investment income on finance leases $1,370 $2,077 
Interest on bank deposits 1,296 1,222 
Other interest income 9 - 
Total $2,675 $3,299 

B. Other income

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 
Dividend income $5,339 $7,019 
Rental income 2,378 1,786 
Other revenue 1,040 878 
Total $8,757 $9,683 

C. Other gains and losses

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 
Foreign exchange (losses) gains, net $(134) $2,583 
Gains on disposals of intangible assets - 235
Gains on disposal of investments - 205
Total $(134) $3,023 
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D. Finance costs

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 

Interest on borrowings from bank $10,909 $8,558 
Interest on lease liabilities 85 37 

Total $10,994 $8,595 

(20) Components of other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2023:

Arising during the 

period 

Reclassification 

adjustments 

during the period 

Other 

comprehensive 

income Income tax 

Other 

comprehensive 

income, net of 

tax 

To be reclassified to profit or loss in 

subsequent periods: 

Exchange differences resulting from 

translating the financial statements 

of a foreign operation $(4,899) $- $(4,899) $- $(4,899) 

Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2022: 

Arising during the 

period 

Reclassification 

adjustments 

during the period 

Other 

comprehensive 

income Income tax 

Other 

comprehensive 

income, net of 

tax 

Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 

subsequent periods: 

Remeasurements of defined benefit 

plans 

$625 $- $625 $(126) $499 

Unrealized gains (losses) from equity 

instruments investments measured 

at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 

(521) - (521) - (521) 

To be reclassified to profit or loss in 

subsequent periods: 

Exchange differences resulting from 

translating the financial statements 

of a foreign operation 

101,392 - 101,392 - 101,392 

Total $101,496 $- $101,496 $(126) $101,370 
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(21) Income tax

The major components of income tax expense (income) for the years ended December 31, 
2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

Income tax expense (income) recognized in profit or loss 

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 
Current income tax expense (income): 
Current income tax payable $37,601 $20,985 
Higher estimates of income tax in previous fiscal years (39) (591)
Deferred tax expense (income): 
Deferred tax expense (income) relating to origination and 

reversal of temporary differences 
2,881 (1,143) 

Income tax expense $40,443 $19,251 

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 
Deferred tax expense (income): 
Remeasurements of defined benefit obligation $- $(126) 
Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive 

income $- $(126) 

A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by 
applicable tax rates is as follows: 

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 
Profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations $285,532 $339,452 

Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the 
country concerned $57,106 $67,890 

Tax effect of revenues exempt from taxation (53,685) (49,081) 
Tax effect of deferred tax assets/liabilities (2,881) 1,143 
Profit-seeking enterprise income tax on undistributed earnings 3,946 - 
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of prior periods (39) (591)
Other income tax adjustments in accordance with the tax 

laws and regulations 
35,996 (110)

Total income tax expense recognized in profit or loss $40,443 $19,251 
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities) relating to the following: 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

Beginning 
balance 

Recognized 
in profit or 

loss 

Recognized in 
other 

comprehensive 
income 

Ending 
Balance 

Temporary differences 
Excess losses on doubtful debts $1,365 $- $- $1,365 
Inventory valuation losses 3,190 (2,847) - 343
Allowance for unused leaves 467 - - 467
Unrealized gross margin 177 (419) - (242)
Excess pension 585 - - 585
Impairment loss 1,277 - - 1,277
Unrealized foreign exchange gains (357) 385 - 28
Employee benefits (1,100) - - (1,100)

Deferred tax income (expense) $(2,881) $- 

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $5,604 $2,723 

Information expressed in balance sheet 
as follows: 

Deferred tax assets $7,061 $4,065 

Deferred tax liabilities $1,457 $1,342 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

Beginning 
balance 

Recognized 
in profit or 

loss 

Recognized in 
other 

comprehensive 
income 

Ending 
Balance 

Temporary differences 
Excess losses on doubtful debts $1,365 $- $- $1,365 
Inventory valuation losses 1,903 1,287 - 3,190
Allowance for unused leaves 467 - - 467
Unrealized gross margin 32 145 - 177
Excess pension 585 - - 585
Impairment loss 1,277 - - 1,277 
Unrealized foreign exchange gains (68) (289) - (357)
Employee benefits (974) - (126) (1,100)

Deferred tax income (expense) $1,143 $(126) 

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $4,587 $5,604 

Information expressed in balance sheet 
as follows: 

Deferred tax assets $5,629 $7,061 

Deferred tax liabilities $1,042 $1,457 
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The assessment of income tax returns 

As of December 31, 2023, the assessment of the income tax returns of the Company is 
approved to 2021. 

(22) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable 
to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to 
ordinary equity holders of the parent entity (after adjusting for interest on the convertible 
preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion 
of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 

A. Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

Company (in thousand NT$) $245,089 $320,201 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding for basic earnings per share (in 
thousands) 62,089 58,305 

Basic earnings per share (NT$) $3.95 $5.49 

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 

B. Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

Company (in thousand NT$) $245,089 $320,201 

Effect of dilution: 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 

outstanding for basic earnings per share (in 
thousands) 62,089 58,305 

Employee compensation－stock (in thousands) 216 306 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding after dilution (in thousands) 62,305 58,611 

Diluted earnings per share (NT$) $3.93 $5.46 
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There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares 

between the reporting date and the date of completion of the financial statements. 

7. Related party transactions

Name and nature of relationship of the related parties 

Name of the related parties Name of the related parties 

GoldSun Application Technology Co., Ltd.  Subsidiary 

Cogate Co., Ltd.  Subsidiary 

GrandTech Cloud Services Inc.  Subsidiary 

DeepStone Digital Technology Co., Ltd.  Subsidiary 

Abico Digital Imaging Inc.  Subsidiary 

GrandTech (B.V.I) Inc.  Subsidiary 

GrandTech (Cayman) Inc.  Subsidiary 

Netcore Network Communication Corp.  Sub-subsidiary 

Topteam Information Co., Ltd. (Note)  Sub-subsidiary 

GrandTech Systems Limited  Sub-subsidiary 

GrandTech (China) Limited  Sub-subsidiary 

GrandTech International (Shanghai) Ltd.  Sub-subsidiary 

Ji Lu Shu Ma Technology (Shanghai) Ltd.  Sub-subsidiary 

GrandTech Systems Pte Limited  Sub-subsidiary 

PT. GrandTech Systems Indonesia  Sub-subsidiary 

GTMY Sdn. Bhd.  Sub-subsidiary 

Senco-Masslink Technology Limited  Sub-subsidiary 

GrandTech Systems Sdn. Bhd.  Sub-subsidiary 

DPI Technology Sdn. Bhd.  Sub-subsidiary 

GrandTech India Pvt Ltd  Sub-subsidiary 

GrandTech Cloud Services Japan Co., Ltd.  Sub-subsidiary 

Note: The company was dissolved due to a merger on November 3, 2022. 

Significant transactions with the related parties 

(1) Sales of merchandise and rendering of services

For the years ended 

December 31, 

2023 2022 

Subsidiaries $8,861 $8,601 

Sub-subsidiaries 5,336 5,145 

Total $14,197 $13,746 
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The transaction price and collection terms of merchandise sales are not significantly different 

from those with non-related parties. The rendering of services is negotiated with related parties 

on a cost-plus basis, with sales profits ranging from approximately 3% to 10%. 

(2) Purchases

For the years ended 

December 31, 

2023 2022 

Subsidiaries $158 $29 

Sub-subsidiaries 383 2,380 

Total $541 $2,409 

Merchandise and services are purchased from other related parties according to standard 

commercial terms and conditions. 

(3) Other income

For the years ended 

December 31, 

2023 2022 

Subsidiaries $1,993 $1,646 

Sub-subsidiaries 305 60 

Total $2,298 $1,706 

(4) Other payables

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Subsidiaries $21 $99 

(5) Property transactions

A. Disposal of intangible assets

For the years ended December 31, 

2023 2022 

Disposal price 

(Loss) gain on 

disposal Disposal price 

(Loss) gain on 

disposal 

Subsidiaries $- $- $3,255 $235 
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B. Acquisition of financial assets

Number of shares 

traded  

For the year ended 

December 31, 2022 

Accounts (in Thousands) Counterparty  Transaction price 

Subsidiaries 

Cash capital increase 

 

Investments accounted for 

using equity method 4,000  GrandTech Cloud $40,000 

Key management personnel compensation 

For the years ended 
December 31, 

2023 2022 

Short-term employee benefits $14,768 $16,918 
Post-employment benefits 230 233 

Total $14,998 $17,151 

8. Assets pledged as security

The following table lists assets of the Company pledged as security:

Carrying Amount 

As of December 31, 

Items 2023 2022 Secured liabilities 

Property, plant and equipment 
Land $90,581 $90,581 Short-term borrowings 
Buildings 12,826 12,694 Short-term borrowings 

Total $103,407 $103,275 

9. Significant contingencies and unrecognized contractual commitments

As of December 31, 2023, the Company’s guaranteed bills issued for the bank loans amounted to
NT$1,320,000 thousand.

10. Losses due to major disasters

None.

11. Significant subsequent events

None.
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12. Others

(1) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets 
As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value 

through profit or loss $100,755 $100,755 
Financial assets measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income 8,479 8,479 
Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand and 
revolving funds) 79,590 111,817 

Notes receivables 15,030 14,814 
Trade receivables 51,886 98,326 
Finance lease receivable and long-term finance lease 

receivable 41,014 62,151 
 Refundable deposits 3,365 3,631 
Total $300,119 $399,973 

Financial liabilities 
As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
Short-term borrowings $750,000 $540,000 
Payables 32,086 76,402 
Other payables 101,938 123,530 
Leases liabilities (including non-current) 6,660 1,225 

Total $890,684 $741,157 

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s principal financial risk management objective is to manage the market risk, 
credit risk and liquidity risk related to its operating activities. The Company identifies, 
measures and manages the aforementioned risks based on the Company’s policy and risk 
tendency. 

The Company has established appropriate policies, procedures and internal controls for 
financial risk management. Before entering into significant transactions, due approval process 
by the Board of Directors and Audit Committee must be carried out based on related protocols 
and internal control procedures. The Company complies with its financial risk management 
policies at all times. 
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(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will 

fluctuate because of the changes in market prices. Market risks comprise foreign currency 

risk, interest rate risk and other price risk (such as equity risk). 

In practice, it is rarely the case that a single risk variable will change independently from other 

risk variable, there is usually interdependencies between risk variables. However, the 

sensitivity analysis disclosed below does not take into account the interdependencies between 

risk variables. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to 

the Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense are denominated in a different 

currency from the Company’s functional currency) and the Company’s net investments in 

foreign subsidiaries. 

The Company has certain foreign currency receivables to be denominated in the same foreign 

currency with certain foreign currency payables, therefore natural hedge is received. The 

Company also uses forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk on certain items 

denominated in foreign currencies. Hedge accounting is not applied as they did not qualify for 

hedge accounting criteria. Furthermore, as net investments in foreign subsidiaries are for 

strategic purposes, they are not hedged by the Company. 

The foreign currency sensitivity analysis of the possible change in foreign exchange rates on 

the Company’s profit is performed on significant monetary items denominated in foreign 

currencies as of the end of the reporting period. The Company’s foreign currency risk is 

mainly related to the volatility in the exchange rates for USD and HKD. The information of 

the sensitivity analysis is as follows: 

When NTD strengthens/weakens against USD by 1%, the profit for the years ended December 

31, 2023 and 2022 would increase/decrease by NT$58 thousand and NT$386 thousand, 

respectively. 

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk 

of changes in market interest rates primarily relates to the Company’s bank loans at variable 

interest rates, which exposes the Company to interest rate risk of cash flows. 
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The Company simulates multiple scenarios and analyzes interest rate risks, including 
considering refinancing, renewal of existing contracts, other available financing and hedging, 
etc., to calculate the effect of changes in specific interest rates on profit or loss. The same 
interest rate movement is applied to all currencies for each simulation scenario. These 
simulation scenarios are only applied to material liabilities of interest calculation. 

When the interest on borrowings of New Taiwan Dollars increases or decreases by 1%, and 
all other factors remain unchanged, the profit after tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 
and 2022 would decrease/increase by NT$6,700 thousand and NT$4,320 thousand, 
respectively. This is mainly caused by the changes in interest expenses due to loans at variable 
interest rates. 

Equity price risk 

The Company’s equity instruments exposed to price risk are financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss and financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income. The Company manages the price risk of equity instrument investments by 
diversifying its investment portfolio in an approach based on the limit set by the Company. 

The Company mainly invests in the equity instruments issued by the domestic companies. The 
prices of these equity instruments are susceptible to market price risk arising from 
uncertainties about future values of the investment objectives. When the price of the equity 
instrument increases or decreases by 10%, and all other factors remain unchanged, the gains 
or losses on the profit after tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 arising from 
the equity instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss would increase/decrease 
by NT$10,076 thousand and NT$10,076 thousand, respectively; gains or losses on other 
comprehensive income arising from classification as equity investments measured at fair 
value through other comprehensive income would increase/decrease by NT$848 thousand and 
NT$848 thousand, repectively. 

(4) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a contract, leading 
to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from operating activities (primarily 
for Accounts receivable) and from its financing activities, including bank deposits and other 
financial instruments. 

Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Company’s established policy, 
procedures and control relating to credit risk management. Credit limits are established for all 
counterparties based on their financial position, rating from credit rating agencies, historical 
experience, prevailing economic condition and the Company’s internal rating criteria etc. 
Certain counter parties’ credit risk will also be managed by taking credit enhancing 
procedures, such as requesting for prepayment. 
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Credit risk from balances with banks and other financial instruments is managed by the 
Company’s treasury in accordance with the Company’s policy. The Company only transacts 
with counterparties approved by the internal control procedures, which are banks and financial 
institutions, companies and government entities with good credit rating. Consequently, there 
is no significant credit risk for these counter parties. 

The Company adopted IFRS 9 to assess the expected credit losses. The loss allowance of trade 
receivables is measured at lifetime expected credit losses, the remaining debt instrument 
investments which are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, low credit risk for 
these investments is a prerequisite upon acquisition and by using their credit risk as a basis 
for the distinction of categories. The Company makes an assessment at each reporting date as 
to whether the debt instrument investments are still considered low credit risk, and then further 
determines the method of measuring the loss allowance and the loss rates. 

Financial assets are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery (the issuer 
or the debtor is in financial difficulties or bankruptcy). 

(5) Liquidity risk management

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 
flexibility through the use of cash and cash equivalents, highly liquid equity investments, bank 
borrowings, convertible bonds and finance leases. The table below summarizes the maturity 
profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the contractual undiscounted payments 
and contractual maturity. The payment amounts include the contractual interest. The 
undiscounted payment relating to borrowings with variable interest rates is extrapolated based 
on the estimated interest rate yield curve as of the end of the reporting period. 

Non-derivative financial instruments 

Less than 1 

year 2 to 3 years 4 to 5 years > 5 years Total 

As of December 31, 2023 

Borrowings $751,043 $- $- $- $751,043 

Payables 32,086 - - - 32,086 

Other payables 101,938 - - - 101,938 

Leases liabilities 4,947 1,784 - - 6,731 

Less than 1 

year 2 to 3 years 4 to 5 years > 5 years Total 

As of December 31, 2022 

Borrowings $540,625 $- $- $- $540,625 

Payables 76,402 - - - 76,402 

Other payables 123,530 - - - 123,530 

Leases liabilities 1,228 - - - 1,228 
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(6) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Reconciliation of the liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows: 

Short-term 
borrowings 

Leases 
liabilities 

Total liabilities 
from financing 

activities 
As of January 1, 2023 $540,000 $1,225 $541,225 
Cash flows 210,000 (4,392) 205,608 
Non-cash changes - 9,827 9,827 
As of December 31, 2023 $750,000 $6,660 $756,660 

Reconciliation of the liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows: 

Short-term 
borrowings 

Leases 
liabilities 

Total liabilities 
from financing 

activities 
As of January 1, 2022 $660,000 $4,892 $664,892 
Cash flows (120,000) (3,667) (123,667) 
Non-cash changes - - - 
As of December 31, 2022 $540,000 $1,225 $541,225 

(7) Fair values of financial instruments

A. The methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair value of financial
instruments:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 
in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The 
following methods and assumptions were used by the Company to measure or disclose the 
fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities: 

(a) The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable
and other current liabilities approximate their fair value due to their short maturities.

(b) For financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market with standard terms and
conditions, their fair value is determined based on market quotation price (including
listed equity securities, beneficiary certificates, bonds and futures etc.) at the reporting
date.

(c) Fair value of equity instruments without market quotations (including private
placement of listed equity securities, unquoted public company and private company
equity securities) are estimated using the market method valuation techniques based
on parameters such as prices based on market transactions of equity instruments of
identical or comparable entities and other relevant information (for example, inputs
such as discount for lack of marketability, P/E ratio of similar entities and Price-Book
ratio of similar entities).
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(d) Fair value of debt instruments without market quotations, bank loans, bonds payable

and other non-current liabilities are determined based on the counterparty prices or

valuation method. The valuation method uses DCF method as a basis, and the

assumptions such as the interest rate and discount rate are primarily based on relevant

information of similar instrument (such as yield curves published by the GreTai

Securities Market, average prices for Fixed Rate Commercial Paper published by

Reuters and credit risk, etc.)

(e) The fair value of derivatives which are not options and without market quotations, is

determined based on the counterparty prices or discounted cash flow analysis using

interest rate yield curve for the contract period. Fair value of option-based derivative

financial instruments is obtained using on the counterparty prices or appropriate option

pricing model (for example, Black-Scholes model) or other valuation method (for

example, Monte Carlo Simulation).

B. The carrying amount of the Company’s financial assets and financial liabilities measured

at amortized cost is a reasonable approximation of their fair value.

C. Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments

Please refer to Note 12 (8) for fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments 

of the Company. 

(8) Fair value measurement hierarchy

A. Fair value measurement hierarchy

All asset and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input 

that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs are 

described as follows: 

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for 

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 

the Company determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy 

by re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period. 
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B. Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities

The Company does not have assets that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis.
Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair
value on a recurring basis is as follows:

As of December 31, 2023:
Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total

Assets measured at fair value:
Financial asset at fair value through

profit or loss $-  $-  $100,755  $100,755 

Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
Equity securities $- $- $8,479 $8,479 

As of December 31, 2022: 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Assets measured at fair value: 
Financial asset at fair value through 

profit or loss $- $- $100,755 $100,755 

Financial assets measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income 
Equity securities $- $- $8,479 $8,479 

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers between Level 
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements. 

Details of changes in Level 3 of the recurring fair value hierarchy 

Reconciliation for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for 
movements during the period is as follows: 

Assets 

Measured at fair 

value through 

profit or loss 

Measured at fair 

value through 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

Stocks Stocks Subtotal 

As of January 1, 2023 $100,755 $8,479 $109,234 

Total profit (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2023: 

Amount recognized in profit or loss (presented in “other 

profit or loss”) - - - 

Acquisition/Issue for the year ended December 31, 2023 - - - 

As of December 31, 2023 $100,755 $8,479 $109,234 
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Assets 

Measured at fair 

value through 

profit or loss 

Measured at fair 

value through 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

Stocks Stocks Subtotal 

As of January 1, 2022 $100,755 $11,000 $111,755 

Total profit (loss) for the year ended December 31, 2022: 

Amount recognized in profit or loss (presented in “other 

profit or loss”) - (521) (521) 

Acquisition/Issue for the year ended December 31, 2022 - - - 

Disposal/Settlement for the year ended December 31, 2022 - (2,000) (2,000) 

As of December 31, 2022 $100,755 $8,479 $109,234 

Information on significant unobservable inputs to valuation 

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of recurring fair value 
measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows: 

As of December 31, 2023: 

Fair Value 

Valuation 

techniques 

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs 

Relationship between 

inputs and fair value 

Non-derivative financial instruments: 

Unlisted companies stocks $109,234  Comparable to the 

Company Act of 

Exchange-Listed and 

OTC-Listed 

Companies 

 Price earnings 

ratios multiplier 

 The higher the 

multiplier, the higher 

the fair value 

 Discount for 

lack of 

marketability 

 The higher the 

discount for lack of 

marketability, the 

lower the fair value 

As of December 31, 2022: 

Fair Value 

Valuation 

techniques 

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs 

Relationship between 

inputs and fair value 

Non-derivative financial instruments: 

Unlisted companies stocks $109,234  Comparable to the 

Company Act of 

Exchange-Listed and 

OTC-Listed 

Companies 

 Price earnings 

ratios multiplier 

 The higher the 

multiplier, the higher 

the fair value 

 Discount for 

lack of 

marketability 

 The higher the 

discount for lack of 

marketability, the 

lower the fair value 
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The Company selects the valuation model and valuation parameters after careful 

assessment. However, using different valuation models or valuation parameters may lead 

to different valuation results. For financial assets classified as Level 3, when there are 

changes in valuation parameters, the effect of the current profit or loss, or other 

comprehensive income is as follows: 

As of December 31, 2023 

Recognized in profit or 

loss 

Recognized in other 

comprehensive income 

Inputs Changes 

Favorable 

changes 

Adverse 

changes 

Favorable 

changes 

Adverse 

changes 

Financial assets 

Equity instruments Discount for lack of 

marketability 

±1% $1,008 $(1,008) $85 $(85) 

As of December 31, 2022 

Recognized in profit or 

loss 

Recognized in other 

comprehensive income 

Inputs Changes 

Favorable 

changes 

Adverse 

changes 

Favorable 

changes 

Adverse 

changes 

Financial assets 

Equity instruments Discount for lack of 

marketability 

±1% $1,008 $(1,008) $85 $(85) 

(9) Significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Information regarding the significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

is listed below:

As of December 31, 2023 

Foreign 

currencies 

Foreign 

exchange rate NTD 

Financial assets 

Monetary items: 

USD $758 30.735 $23,284 

Financial liabilities 

Monetary items: 

USD 569 30.735 17,494 
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As of December 31, 2022 

Foreign 

currencies 

Foreign 

exchange rate NTD 

Financial assets 

Monetary items: 

USD $3,653 30.71 $112,184 

Financial liabilities 

Monetary items: 

USD 2,079 30.71 63,846 

Due to the wide variety of functional currencies of the Company, it is not possible to disclose 

the exchange gains and losses of monetary financial assets and liabilities by each significant 

asset and liability denominated in foreign currencies. The foreign exchange (losses) gains 

amounted to NT$(134) thousand and NT$2,583 thousand for the years ended December 31, 

2023 and 2022, respectively. 

The above information is disclosed based on the carrying amount of foreign currency (after 

conversion to functional currency). 

(10) Capital management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a 

strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize 

shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in 

light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the 

Company may adjust dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue 

new shares. 

13. Other disclosure

(1) Information on significant transactions

A. Financing provided to others: Please refer to Attachment 1.

B. Endorsement/Guarantee provided to others: None.

C. Marketable securities held at the end of the period (excluding the portion held due to

investment in a subsidiary or an associate): Please refer to Attachment 2.

D. Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower

of NT$300 million or 20 percent of the paid-in capital: Please refer to Attachment 3.

E. Acquisition of real estate exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20 percent of paid-in

capital: None.
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F. Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or

20 percent of the paid-in capital: None.

G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties exceeding the lower of NT$100

million or 20 percent of paid-in capital: None.

H. Trade receivables from related parties exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20 percent

of paid-in capital: None.

I. Financial instruments and derivative transactions: Please refer to Attachment 3.

J. Significant inter-company transactions between consolidated entities: Please refer to

Attachment 4.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and related information of investee companies (excluding investees in 

Mainland China): Please refer to Attachment 5. 

(3) Information on investments in mainland China

A. Please refer to Attachment 6 for the basic information.

B. Significant direct or indirect transactions with the investee, its prices, terms of payment

and unrealized gain or loss: None.

(a) Amount and percentage of purchases, and ending balance and percentage of related

payables: None.

(b) Amount and percentage of sales, and ending balance and percentage of related

receivables: None.

(c) Property transactions and the amount of profit or loss generated therefrom: None.

(d) Ending balance and purpose of endorsements/guarantees or collaterals: None.

(e) The maximum balance, ending balance, interest rate and total current interest of

financing: None.

(f) Other transactions that have a significant influence on current profit or loss, or

financial position, such as rendering or receipt of services: None.

(4) Information on major shareholders

Names, number of shares held and percentage of ownership for the Company’s shareholders 

that hold more than 5%: Please refer to Attachment 7. 
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A
ttachm

ent 5: N
am

es, locations and related inform
ation of investee com

panies (excluding investees in M
ainland C

hina)

U
nit: T

housands of N
ew

 T
aiw

an D
ollars

Initial investm
ent am

ount
A

s of D
ecem

ber 31, 2023

G
randT

ech C
.G

. System
s Inc.

G
randT

ech (B
.V

.I.) Inc.
B

V
I

H
olding com

pany
$122,613

$122,613
4,000,000

100.00%
$1,088,526

$140,323
$140,323

Subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
.G

. System
s Inc.

G
randT

ech (C
aym

an) Inc.
C

aym
an Islands

H
olding com

pany
67,251

67,251
1,922,000

100.00%
373,850

49,984
49,984

Subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
.G

. System
s Inc.

A
bico D

igital Im
aging Inc.

T
aiw

an
T

rading of com
puters, optical products, etc.

764
764

100,000
100.00%

(315)
- 

-  
Subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
.G

. System
s Inc.

D
eepStone D

igital T
echnology C

o., L
td.

T
aiw

an
B

ook publishing
11,241

36,351
2,447,440

81.00%
21,948

(6,830)
(5,533)

Subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
.G

. System
s Inc.

C
ogate C

o., L
td.

T
aiw

an
T

rading of various m
icrocom

puters, office com
puters,

industrial com
puters and com

puter softw
are

18,438
18,438

1,377,000
51.00%

25,250
9,308

4,747
Subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
.G

. System
s Inc.

G
oldSun A

pplication T
echnology C

o., L
td.

T
aiw

an
Sales agent for trading of com

puter softw
are and electronic

products
27,250

27,250
2,000,000

100.00%
22,504

(2,316)
(2,316)

Subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
.G

. System
s Inc.

G
randT

ech C
loud Services Inc.

T
aiw

an
C

loud services
154,000

154,000
15,148,113

75.14%
312,401

76,357
50,771

Subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
.G

. System
s Inc.

Senco-M
asslink Solutions L

td.
H

ong K
ong

Sales agent for A
pple, A

dobe, Sym
antee and other softw

are,
hardw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

-  
-  

-  
55.00%

-  
-  

-  
Subsidiary

G
randT

ech (B
.V

.I.) Inc.
G

randT
ech System

s L
im

ited
H

ong K
ong

Sales agent for graphics, im
aging, m

ultim
edia, Internet and

other related com
puter softw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

43,727
43,727

988,000
76.71%

142,960
100,569

77,146
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech (B
.V

.I.) Inc.
G

randT
ech(C

hina)L
im

ited
H

ong K
ong

Sales agent for graphics, im
aging, m

ultim
edia, Internet and

other related com
puter softw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

135,810
135,810

34,320,000
60.09%

106,107
3,602

2,164
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech (B
.V

.I.) Inc.
G

randT
ech India P

rivate L
im

ited
India

Sales agent for graphics, im
aging, m

ultim
edia, Internet and

other related com
puter softw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

9,321
9,321

1,200,000
100.00%

2,125
76

76
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech (B
.V

.I.) Inc.
Senco-M

asslink T
echnology L

td.
H

ong K
ong

Sales agent for A
pple, A

dobe, Sym
antee and other softw

are,
hardw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

54,450
54,450

491,011
33.00%

94,220
78,798

26,003
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech (B
.V

.I.) Inc.
G

randT
ech System

s Sdn. B
hd.

M
alaysia

Sales agent for graphics, im
aging, m

ultim
edia, Internet and

other related com
puter softw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

135,999
135,999

16,948,630
88.00%

162,746
7,805

6,868
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech (C
aym

an) Inc.
G

randT
ech System

s L
im

ited
H

ong K
ong

Sales agent for graphics, im
aging, m

ultim
edia, Internet and

other related com
puter softw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

13,276
13,276

300,000
23.29%

43,404
100,569

23,422
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech (C
aym

an) Inc.
G

randT
ech(C

hina)L
im

ited
H

ong K
ong

Sales agent for graphics, im
aging, m

ultim
edia, Internet and

other related com
puter softw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

116,241
116,241

22,796,000
39.91%

70,473
3,602

1,438
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech (C
aym

an) Inc.
G

randT
ech System

s P
te L

im
ited

Singapore
Sales agent for graphics, im

aging, m
ultim

edia, Internet and
other related com

puter softw
are and peripheral equipm

ent
76,948

76,948
43,499,455

100.00%
19,672

(3,586)
(3,586)

Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech (C
aym

an) Inc.
Senco-M

asslink T
echnology L

td.
H

ong K
ong

Sales agent for A
pple, A

dobe, Sym
antee and other softw

are,
hardw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

36,300
36,300

327,340
22.00%

62,813
78,798

17,336
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech (C
aym

an) Inc.
G

randT
ech System

s Sdn. B
hd.

M
alaysia

Sales agent for graphics, im
aging, m

ultim
edia, Internet and

other related com
puter softw

are and peripheral equipm
ent

18,464
18,464

2,311,180
12.00%

22,193
7,805

937
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech System
s P

te L
im

ited
P

T
.G

randT
ech System

s Indonesia
Indonesia

W
arehousing, w

holesale and international trade
23,139

23,139
7,600

100.00%
4,192

(1,021)
(1,021)

Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech System
s Sdn.B

hd.
D

P
I T

echnology Sdn. B
hd.

M
alaysia

T
rading of various com

puters and relevant electronic products
44,931

44,931
312,000

52.00%
49,212

8,249
4,289

Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech System
s Sdn.B

hd.
G

T
M

Y
 SD

N
. B

H
D

.
M

alaysia
Sales agent for graphics and im

aging-related com
puter

softw
are and peripheral equipm

ent
6,222

6,222
800,000

100.00%
3,677

(78)
(78)

Sub-subsidiary

D
P

I T
echnology Sdn. B

hd.
D

P
I T

echnology P
te L

td.
Singapore

T
rading of various com

puters and relevant electronic products
3,193

3,193
300,000

100.00%
24,109

2,638
2,638

Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
loud Services Inc.

G
randtech C

loud Service (H
K

) L
im

ited
H

ong K
ong

C
loud services

35,818
35,818

9,000,000
100.00%

38,116
5,958

5,958
Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
loud Services Inc.

N
etcore N

etw
ork C

om
m

unication C
O

R
P

.
T

aiw
an

Internet-related com
puter softw

are
31,500

(N
ote 3)

31,500
(N

ote 3)
2,530,000

63.25%
47,283

23,918
15,129

Sub-subsidiary

G
randT

ech C
loud Services Inc.

G
randT

ech C
loud Services Japan C

o., L
td.

Japan
C

loud services
2,247

- 
1,000

100.00%
12

(2,209)
(2,209)

Sub-subsidiary

N
ote 1: For public com

pany that has foreign holding subsidiaries and are required to prim
arily prepare consolidated financial statem

ents in accordance w
ith local regulations, disclosure of inform

ation related to foreign investee com
panies m

ay be lim
ited to relevant details pertaining 

      to those subsidiaries.

N
ote 2: For circum

stances not listed in N
ote 1, filled in by the follow

ing rules:

(1) T
he colum

ns of "Investee", "A
ddress", "M

ain businesses and products", "Initial investm
ent" and "Investm

ent as of D
ecem

ber 31, 2023" shall be filled in the C
om

pany's investm
ent to the subsidiaries' re-investm

ent in corresponding order, and indicate the relationship in the N
otes.

(2) T
he colum

n of "N
et incom

e (loss) of investee com
pany" shall be filled in am

ount of net profit (loss) of the investee for the current period.

(3) In colum
n of "Investm

ent incom
e (loss) recognized", it is only required to fill in the Investm

ent incom
e (loss) of each subsidiary recognized by the C

om
pany (public com

pany) for direct investm
ent in each subsidiaries and each investee accounted for under equity m

ethod,

and the rest is not required. W
hen filling in the "N

et incom
e (loss) of investee com

pany", please confirm
 that the current incom

e (loss) of each subsidiary has included the investm
ent incom

e (loss) that should be recognized by its reinvestm
ent in accordance w

ith law
s and regulations.

N
ote 3: T

he C
om

pany transferred the shares of N
etcore N

etw
ork C

om
m

unication C
O

R
P

. to the subsidiary, G
randT

ech C
loud Services Inc., in the am

ount of N
T

$31,500  thousand on N
ovem

ber 9, 2018.

Investor
Investee (N

otes 1, 2)
L

ocation
M

ain businesses and products
N

ote
A

s of
D

ecem
ber

31, 2023

A
s of

D
ecem

ber
31, 2022

P
ercentage of
ow

nership
(%

)

C
arrying

am
ount

N
um

ber of
shares

N
et incom

e
(losses) of

the
investee

Investm
ent

incom
e

(loss)
recognized

178
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GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.

1. Statement of cash and cash equivalents

As of December 31, 2023

 Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars and foreign currencies

Item Description Amount Note

Cash on hand and petty cash $37

Cash in banks

Checking, demand and time deposits 56,306

Checking, demand and time deposits for foreign currencies 23,284

Total $79,627

USD 757,567.33

Exchange rate: 30.735
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GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.

2. Statement of trade receivables

As of December 31, 2023

 Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Client 　Description Amount Note

Trade receivables (non-related parties)

Company A Receivables from sales of products $16,096

Company B Receivables from sales of products 4,448

Company C Receivables from sales of products 3,613

Company D Receivables from sales of products 3,045

Company E Receivables from sales of products 2,857

Company F Receivables from sales of products 2,735

Company G Receivables from sales of products 2,664

Others (Note) Receivables from sales of products 16,596

Total 52,054

Less: loss allowance (168)

Subtotal (168)  

Total $51,886

Note: The amount of individual item in others does not exceed 5% of the account balance.
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GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.

3. Statement of net inventories

As of December 31, 2023

 Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Amount

Cost
Net realizable

 value
Note

Computer software and hardware $56,081 $58,463

Less: Allowance for losses for market price decline (1,713) $58,463

and obsolete and slow-moving inventories

Total $54,368

Items Description
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GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.

6. Statement of trade payables

As of December 31, 2023

 Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Supplier 　Description Amount Note

Trade payables (non-related parties)

Company A Payables to suppliers $15,907

Others (Note) Payables to suppliers 16,179

Total $32,086

Note: The amount of individual item in others does not exceed 5% of the account balance.
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GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.

7. Statement of operating revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2023

 Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Items Amount Note

Sales revenue of software and hardware $129,210

Less: sales returns and discounts (3,934)

Subtotal 125,276

Service revenue 287,086

Operating income, net $412,362

Units
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GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.

8. Statement of operating costs

For the year ended December 31, 2023

 Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Items Amount Note

Beginning inventory $92,968

Add: Purchase of goods for the current period 258,574

Less: Receipt reclassified as expenses (499)

      Ending inventory (56,081)

Cost of inventories sold 294,962

Losses for market price decline and obsolete (6,368)

   and slow-moving inventories

Total operating costs $288,594
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GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.

9. Statement of selling expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023

 Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Items Description Amount Note

Wages and salaries $25,495

Freight 2,178

Insurance premiums 2,580

Others (Note) 12,635

Total $42,888

Note: The amount of individual item in others does not exceed 5% of the account balance.
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GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.

10. Statement of administrative expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2023

 Unit: Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars

Items Description Amount Note

Wages and salaries $19,897

Insurance premiums $2,066

Depreciation 6,242

Services expense 5,174

Others (Note) 3,308

Total $36,687

Note: The amount of individual item in others does not exceed 5% of the account balance.
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Independent Auditors’ Report Translated from Chinese 

To GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc.: 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. (the 
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as of December 31, 2023, and the related consolidated 
statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years ended December 
31, 2023, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including the summary of material 
accounting policies (together “the consolidated financial statements”). 

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of the other auditors (please refer to the Other 
Matter – Making Reference to the Audits of Other Auditors section of our report), the consolidated 
financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial 
position of the Group as of December 31, 2023, and their consolidated financial performance and 
cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2023, in conformity with the requirements of the 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International 
Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the 
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations 
Committee as endorsed and became effective by Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic 
of China. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Financial Statement Audit 
and Attestation Engagements of Certified Public Accountants and the Standards on Auditing of the 
Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public 
Accountant of the Republic of China (the “Norm”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with the Norm. Based on our audits and the report(s) of the other 
auditors, we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in 
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023. These 
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, 
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 
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Correctness of timing of sales revenue recognition 

The Group recognized net operating revenue in the amount of NT$5,210,306 thousand, of which 
revenue from information software and hardware products totaled NT$3,810,476 thousand, 
accounting for 73% of the operating revenue. As the revenue from information software and hardware 
products is diversified, including sales of goods, computer management and printing machine 
services, information service revenue, etc., with diverse types and different transaction terms, we 
believe that the correctness of the timing when performance obligations are met is considered material 
to consolidated financial statements. Therefore, the timing of recognition of revenue from information 
software and hardware products was determined to be a key audit matter. 

Our audit procedures include (but are not limited to): 

1. Understanding the revenue recognition method related to the revenue from information
software and hardware products, and assessing and testing the internal control related to the
relevant revenue recognition of information software and hardware products.

2. Conducting analytical procedures on product-specific gross margin to evaluate the
reasonableness of revenue recognition amounts.

3. Conducting tests of details on sales revenue transactions, including randomly selecting and
verifying relevant vouchers from the record of sales revenue to ensure that performance
obligations have been truly met.

4. Performing sales revenue cut-off tests for the period before and after the date of financial
statements, randomly selecting operating revenue transactions, and reviewing the relevant
vouchers to confirm that revenue is recognized in the correct period.

We also considered the appropriateness in disclosures of operating revenues in Note 6 to the 
consolidated financial statements. 

Other Matter – Making Reference to the Audits of Other Auditors 

We did not audit the financial statements of certain subsidiaries in the consolidated financial 
statements of the Group and investees accounted for using the equity method, which were audited by 
other auditors. Therefore, our opinions expressed herein regarding the amounts recorded in the 
financial statements of certain companies are based solely on the reports of the other auditors. As of 
December 31, 2023, the aforementioned companies’ total assets amounted to NT$1,105,802 thousand, 
accounting for 34.08% of the total consolidated assets; their total liabilities amounted to NT$341,732 
thousand, accounting for 21.85% of the total consolidated liabilities; and their operating revenue for 
the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to NT$1,577,404 thousand, accounting for 30.27% of 
the consolidated net operating revenue. 
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Other Matter – Audits for Previous Periods of Other Auditors 

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2022 were not 

audited by us, but were audited by other auditors, and an audit report with unqualified opinions 

including Other Matter Paragraphs was issued on March 3, 2023. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 

Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial 

statements in accordance with the requirements of the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 

Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Financial Reporting Standards, International 

Accounting Standards, Interpretations developed by the International Financial Reporting 

Interpretations Committee or the former Standing Interpretations Committee as endorsed by Financial 

Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China and for such internal control as management 

determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free 

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability 

to continue as a going concern of the Group, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to 

liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those charged with governance, including audit committee, are responsible for overseeing the 

financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements 

as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ 

report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of 

China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud 

or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated 

financial statements. 
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As part of an audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, we 

exercise professional judgment and professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,

and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of the internal control of the Group.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists

related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability to continue as a

going concern of the Group. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required

to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial

statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are

based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial

statements, including the accompanying notes, and whether the consolidated financial

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities

or business activities within the Company and its subsidiaries to express an opinion on the

consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and

performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 

internal control that we identify during our audit. 
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters 

that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 

December 31, 2023 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ 

report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely 

rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 

adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 

Others 

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion including an Other Matter Paragraph on the 

parent company only financial statements of the Company as of and for the years ended December 

31, 2023. 

/s/Hsu, Hsin-Min 

/s/Yu, Chien-Ju 

Ernst & Young, Taiwan 

March 22, 2024 

Notice to Readers 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the financial position, results of operations and cash flows in 

accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, 

procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China. 

Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and report of independent accountants are not intended for use by those who are not 

informed about the accounting principles or Standards on Auditing of the Republic of China, and their applications in practice. As the financial 

statements are the responsibility of the management, Ernst & Young cannot accept any liability for the use of, or reliance on, the English translation 

or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation. 
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese
GRANDTECH C.G. SYSTEMS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022
 (Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Amount % Amount %
Operating revenue 4 and 6 $5,210,306 100 $5,286,819 100
Operating costs 6 (4,382,914) (84) (4,407,993) (83)
Gross profit 827,392 16 878,826 17

Operating expenses
　Selling expenses 6 (320,053) (6) (297,024) (6)
　Administrative expenses 6 (143,300) (3) (147,270) (3)
　Research and development expenses 6 (5,505) - (4,412) - 
　Expected credit gains (losses) 4 and 6 2,768 - (2,559) - 
　Total operating expenses (466,090) (9) (451,265) (9)

Operating income 361,302 7 427,561 8

Non-operating income and expenses
　Interest income 6 47,300 - 20,500 - 
　Other income 6 5,419 - 7,099 - 
　Other gains and losses 6 17,863 - 32,562 1
　Financial costs 6 (12,705) - (19,379) - 
　Total non-operating income and expenses 57,877 - 40,782 1

Profit before income tax 419,179 7 468,343 9
Income tax expense 4 and 6 (105,819) (1) (78,931) (1)
Net income 313,360 6 389,412 8

Other comprehensive income 6
　Items that may not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
　Remeasurements of defined benefit plans - - 625 - 
　Unrealized gains (losses) from investment in equity instruments at
　fair value through other comprehensive income

- - (521) - 

　Income tax related to the items not to be reclassified to profit or loss - - (126) - 
　Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
　Exchange differences resulting from translating the financial
　　statements of a foreign operation

(6,338) - 114,984 2

Other comprehensive income, net of tax (6,338) - 114,962 2

Total comprehensive income $307,022 6 $504,374 10

Net income attributable to:
　Owners of the parent $245,089 5 $320,201 7
　Non-controlling interests 68,271 1 69,211 1

$313,360 6 $389,412 8
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
　Owners of the parent $240,190 5 $421,571 8
　Non-controlling interests 66,832 1 82,803 2

$307,022 6 $504,374 10

Basic earnings per share 6
　Basic earnings per share $3.95 $5.49
Diluted earnings per share 6
　Diluted earnings per share $3.93 $5.46

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.

Accounts
20222023

For the years ended December 31, 

Notes
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English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese 
GRANDTECH C.G. SYSTEMS INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 
(Expressed in Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless Otherwise Specified) 

1. History and organization

GrandTech C.G. Systems Inc. (the “Company”) was incorporated in Taiwan. The Company and 
its subsidiaries (the “Group”) mainly engage in wholesale of books, publishing, wholesale of 
computer software, other services (sales agent for computer programming), other consulting 
services (analysis and planning consulting services of computer management information and 
automatic system) and data processing services. The Company’s shares were listed and traded on 
the Taipei Exchange on January 23, 2002. 

2. Date and procedures of authorization of financial statements for issue

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022 were authorized for issue by the Company’s board of directors (hereinafter the “Board of 
Directors”) on March 7, 2024. 

3. Newly issued or revised standards and interpretations

(1) Changes in accounting policies resulting from applying for the first-time certain standards and
amendments

The Group applied for the first time International Financial Reporting Standards, International 
Accounting Standards, and Interpretations issued, revised or amended which are recognized 
by Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”) and become effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after January 1, 2023. The adoption of these new standards and amendments 
had no material impact on the Group. 

(2) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) which are endorsed by FSC, and not yet adopted by the Group as
of the end of the reporting period are listed below.

Items New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations 
Effective Date 
issued by IASB 

A Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current – 
Amendments to IAS 1 

January 1, 2024 

B Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback – Amendments to IFRS 16 January 1, 2024 

C Non-current Liabilities with Covenants – Amendments to IAS 1 January 1, 2024 

D Supplier Finance Arrangements – Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 January 1, 2024 
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A. Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current – Amendments to IAS 1

These are the amendments to paragraphs 69-76 of IAS 1 Presentation of Financial 

statements and the amended paragraphs related to the classification of liabilities as current 

or non-current. 

B. Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback – Amendments to IFRS 16

The amendments add seller-lessees additional requirements for the sale and leaseback 

transactions in IFRS 16, thereby supporting the consistent application of the standard. 

C. Non-current Liabilities with Covenants – Amendments to IAS 1

The amendments improved the information companies provide about long-term debt with 

covenants. The amendments specify that covenants to be complied within twelve months 

after the reporting period do not affect the classification of debt as current or non-current 

at the end of the reporting period. 

D. Supplier Finance Arrangements – Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7

The amendments introduced additional information of supplier finance arrangements and 

added disclosure requirements for such arrangements. 

The above-mentioned standards and interpretations were issued by IASB and endorsed by 

FSC so that they are applicable for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2024. The 

aforementioned standards and interpretations have no material impact on the Group. 

(3) Standards or interpretations issued, revised or amended, by IASB which are not endorsed by

FSC, and not yet adopted by the Group as of the end of the reporting period are listed below.

Items New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations 
Effective Date 

issued by IASB 

A IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 

“Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” — Sale or 

Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or 

Joint Ventures 

To be determined 

by IASB 

B IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2023 

C Lack of Exchangeability – Amendments to IAS 21 January 1, 2025 
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A. IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and

Joint Ventures” — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Ventures

The amendments address the inconsistency between the requirements in IFRS 10 

Consolidated Financial Statements and IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint 

Ventures, in dealing with the loss of control of a subsidiary that is contributed to an 

associate or a joint venture. IAS 28 restricts gains and losses arising from contributions of 

non-monetary assets to an associate or a joint venture to the extent of the interest 

attributable to the other equity holders in the associate or joint ventures. IFRS 10 requires 

full profit or loss recognition on the loss of control of the subsidiary. IAS 28 was amended 

so that the gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of assets that constitute a 

business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor and its associate or joint venture is 

recognized in full. 

IFRS 10 was also amended so that the gains or loss resulting from the sale or contribution 

of a subsidiary that does not constitute a business as defined in IFRS 3 between an investor 

and its associate or joint venture is recognized only to the extent of the unrelated investors’ 

interests in the associate or joint venture. 

B. IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”

IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance contracts, covering all relevant 

accounting aspects (including recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure 

requirements). The core of IFRS 17 is the General (building block) Model, under this 

model, on initial recognition, an entity shall measure a group of insurance contracts at the 

total of the fulfilment cash flows and the contractual service margin. The carrying amount 

of a group of insurance contracts at the end of each reporting period shall be the sum of the 

liability for remaining coverage and the liability for incurred claims. 

Other than the General Model, the standard also provides a specific adaptation for contracts 

with direct participation features (the Variable Fee Approach) and a simplified approach 

(Premium Allocation Approach) mainly for short-duration contracts. 

The amendments include deferral of the date of initial application of IFRS 17 by two years 

to annual beginning on or after January 1, 2023 (from the original effective date of January 

1, 2021); provide additional transition reliefs; simplify some requirements to reduce the 

costs of applying IFRS 17 and revise some requirements to make the results easier to 

explain. IFRS 17 replaces an interim Standard – IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts – from annual 

reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. 
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C. Lack of Exchangeability – Amendments to IAS 21

These amendments specify whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency and, 

when it is not, to determining the exchange rate to use and the disclosures to provide. The 

amendments apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2025. 

The above-mentioned standards and interpretations issued by IASB have not yet endorsed by 

FSC at the date when the Group’s financial statements were authorized for issue, the local 

effective dates are to be determined by FSC. The new or amended standards and 

interpretations have no material impact on the Group. 

4. Summary of material accounting policies

(1) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the years ended December 31, 2023 

and 2022 have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation 

of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (“the Regulations”) and International Financial 

Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, and Interpretations developed by 

the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee or the former Standing 

Interpretations Committee as endorsed and became effective by the FSC (“TIFRS”). 

(2) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for 

financial instruments that have been measured at fair value. The consolidated financial 

statements are expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars (“NT$”) unless otherwise stated. 

(3) Basis of consolidation

Preparation principle of consolidated financial statement 

Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its 

involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over 

the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 

A. power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the

relevant activities of the investee)

B. exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

C. the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns
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When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the 

Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over 

an investee, including: 

A. the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee

B. rights arising from other contractual arrangements

C. the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate 

that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. 

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the acquisition date, being the date on which the 

Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that such control ceases. 

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting period as the 

parent company, using uniform accounting policies. All intra-group balances, income and 

expenses, unrealized gains and losses and dividends resulting from intra-group transactions 

are eliminated in full. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a change of control, is accounted 

for as an equity transaction. 

Total comprehensive income of the subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the parent and 

to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a 

deficit balance. 

If the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it: 

A. derecognizes the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary;

B. derecognizes the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest;

C. recognizes the fair value of the consideration received;

D. recognizes the fair value of any investment retained;

E. reclassifies the parent’s share of components previously recognized in other comprehensive

income to profit or loss, or transfer directly to retained earnings; and

F. recognizes any resulting difference in profit or loss.

The consolidated entities are listed as follows: 

Percentage of ownership (%) 

As of December 31, 

Investor Name of subsidiaries Nature of business 2023 2022 Note 

The Company  GrandTech (B.V.I.) Inc. 

(GrandTech (B.V.I.)) 

 Holding company 100.00% 100.00%  Note 5 
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Percentage of ownership (%) 

As of December 31, 

Investor Name of subsidiaries Nature of business 2023 2022 Note 

The Company  GrandTech (Cayman) Inc. 

(GrandTech (Cayman)) 

 Holding company 100.00% 100.00% 

The Company  DeepStone Digital 

Technology Co., Ltd. 

(DeepStone) 

 Book publishing 81.00% 81.00%  Note 1 

The Company  Abico Digital Imaging Inc. 

(Abico Digital) 

 Trading of computers, 

optical products, etc. 

100.00% 100.00% 

The Company  Cogate Co., Ltd. (Cogate)  Trading of various 

microcomputers, 

office computers, 

industrial computers 

and computer software 

51.00% 51.00%  Note 1 

The Company  GoldSun Application 

Technology Co., Ltd. 

(GoldSun) 

 Sales agent for trading 

of computer 

software/hardware and 

electronic products 

100.00% 100.00% 

The Company  GrandTech Cloud Services 

Inc. (GrandTech Cloud) 

 Cloud services 75.14% 75.14%  Notes 1, 2 

The Company  Senco-Masslink Solutions 

Limited 

 Sales agent for Apple, 

Adobe, Symantee and 

other software, 

hardware and 

peripheral equipment 

55.00% 55.00% 

GrandTech (B.V.I.) 

andd GrandTech 

(Cayman) 

 Senco-Masslink 

Technology Limited 

(Senco-Masslink) 

 Sales agent for Apple, 

Adobe, Symantee and 

other software, 

hardware and 

peripheral equipment 

55.00% 55.00% 

GrandTech (B.V.I.) 

andd GrandTech 

(Cayman) 

 GrandTech Systems Sdn. 

Bhd. (GrandTech Systems 

Sdn. Bhd.) 

 Sales agent for 

graphics, imaging, 

multimedia, Internet 

and other related 

computer software and 

peripheral equipment 

100.00% 100.00%  Note 1 

GrandTech (B.V.I.) 

andd GrandTech 

(Cayman) 

 GrandTech Systems 

Limited (GrandTech 

Systems) 

 Sales agent for 

graphics, imaging, 

multimedia, Internet 

and other related 

computer software and 

peripheral equipment 

100.00% 100.00% 
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Percentage of ownership (%) 

As of December 31, 

Investor Name of subsidiaries Nature of business 2023 2022 Note 

GrandTech (B.V.I.) 

andd GrandTech 

(Cayman) 

 GrandTech (China) Limited 

(GrandTech (China)) 

 Sales agent for 

graphics, imaging, 

multimedia, Internet 

and other related 

computer software and 

peripheral equipment 

100.00% 100.00% 

GrandTech (B.V.I.)  GrandTech India Private 

Limited 

 Sales agent for 

graphics, imaging, 

multimedia, Internet 

and other related 

computer software and 

peripheral equipment 

100.00% 100.00% 

GrandTech 

(Cayman) 

 GrandTech Systems Pte 

Limited (GrandTech 

Systems Pte) 

 Sales agent for 

graphics, imaging, 

multimedia, Internet 

and other related 

computer software and 

peripheral equipment 

100.00% 100.00%  Note 1 

GrandTech (China)  GrandTech Subsidiary in 

Guangzhou 

 Data processing and 

supply services 

100.00% 100.00% 

GrandTech (China)  GrandTech International 

(Shanghai) Ltd. (GrandTech 

International (Shanghai)) 

 Warehousing, 

wholesale and 

international trade 

100.00% 100.00% 

GrandTech Systems 

Pte 

 PT. GrandTech Systems 

Indonesia 

 Sales agent for 

graphics, imaging, 

multimedia, Internet 

and other related 

computer software and 

peripheral equipment 

100.00% 100.00%  Note 1 

DeepStone Digital 

Technology Co., 

Ltd. 

 Topteam Information Co., 

Ltd. 

 Wholesale of 

computer software and 

book publishing 

-% -%  Note 4 

GrandTech Systems 

Sdn. 

 DPI Technology Sdn. Bhd.  Trading of various 

computers and 

relevant electronic 

products 

52.00% 52.00%  Note 1 

GrandTech Systems 

Sdn. 

 GTMY Sdn. Bhd. (GTMY)  Sales agent for 

graphics and imaging-

related computer 

software and 

peripheral equipment 

100.00% 100.00%  Note 1 
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Percentage of ownership (%) 

As of December 31, 

Investor Name of subsidiaries Nature of business 2023 2022 Note 

DPI Technology 

Sdn. Bhd. 

 DPI Technology Pte. Ltd.  Trading of various 

computers and 

relevant electronic 

products 

100.00% 100.00%  Note 1 

GrandTech Cloud  GrandTech Cloud 

Services(HK) Limited 

(GrandTech Cloud (HK)) 

 Cloud services 100.00% 100.00%  Notes 1, 3 

GrandTech Cloud  GrandTech Cloud Services 

Japan Co., Ltd. 

 Cloud services 100.00% -%  Notes 1, 6 

GrandTech Cloud  Netcore Network 

Communication Corp. 

(Netcore) 

 Internet-related 

computer software 

63.25% 63.25%  Note 1 

GrandTech 

International 

(Shanghai) 

 Ji Lu Shu Ma Technology 

(Shanghai) Ltd. 

 Warehousing, 

wholesale and 

international trade 

100.00% 100.00% 

Note 1: The subsidiary’s financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2023 were 
audited by other auditors. 

Note 2: GrandTech Cloud proceeded with cash capital increase in June 2022, and reserved 
10% of new shares for subscription by employees in accordance with the Company 
Act. The Company subscribed NT$40,000 thousand to this capital increase. The 
Company’s ownership dropped from 77.71% to 75.14% as it did not subscribe for 
shares according to its original shareholding ratio. 

Note 3: In June 2022, GrandTech Cloud (HK) proceeded with cash capital increase in the 
amount of NT$9,500 thousand, divided into 2,500 thousand shares in total, due to its 
operating strategies. GrandTech Cloud held 100% of the company’s shares. 

Note 4: DeepStone acquired 1.5% ownership interest in Topteam Information Co., Ltd. in the 
consideration of NT$406 thousand due to its operating strategies in March, 2022. 
After this transaction, DeepStone held a total of 100% ownership interest in Topteam 
Information Co., Ltd., along with the 98.5% it held in the previous fiscal years. On 
August 8, 2022, Topteam Information Co., Ltd. passed a resolution in the board 
meeting to offset the deficit by decreasing its share capital totaling NT$5,839 
thousand, the proportion of capital reduction approximated 18.34%, and its 
percentage of ownership remained the same. In November 2022, Topteam 
Information Co., Ltd. was dissolved due to a merger. 

Note 5: On Septemeber 14, 2022, GrandTech (B.V.I.) passed a resolution in the board 
meeting to proceed with cash capital reduction, refunding US$3,000 thousand 
(approximately NT$90,264 thousand) in total, the proportion of capital reduction 
approximated 42.86%, and its percentage of ownership remained the same. 

Note 6: In July, 2023, GrandTech Cloud Services Japan Co., Ltd. proceeded with cash capital 
increase in the amount of NT$2,247 thousand, divided into 1 thousand shares in total, 
which were fully subscribed by GrandTech Cloud, due to its operating strategies. 
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(4) Foreign currency transactions

The Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in NT$, which is also the 
Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the Group determines its own functional 
currency and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that 
functional currency. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Group entities at their 
respective functional currency rates prevailing at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets 
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency 
closing rate of exchange ruling at the reporting date. Non-monetary items measured at fair 
value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair 
value is determined. Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange rates as of the dates of the initial transactions. 

All exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating 
monetary items are taken to profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for the 
following: 

A. Exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings for an acquisition of a
qualifying asset to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs are
included in the borrowing costs that are eligible for capitalization.

B. Foreign currency items within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are accounted for
based on the accounting policy for financial instruments.

C. Exchange differences arising on a monetary item that forms part of a reporting entity’s net
investment in a foreign operation is recognized initially in other comprehensive income
and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on disposal of the net investment.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in other comprehensive income, 
any exchange component of that gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income. 
When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognized in profit or loss, any exchange 
component of that gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. 

(5) Translation of financial statements in foreign currency

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into NT$ at the closing rate of 
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their income and expenses are translated at an 
average rate for the period. The exchange differences arising on the translation are recognized 
in other comprehensive income. On the disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount 
of the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation, recognized in other 
comprehensive income and accumulated in the separate component of equity, is reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss when the gain or loss on disposal is recognized. The following 
partial disposals are accounted for as disposals: (a) when the partial disposal involves the 
loss of control of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation; and (b) when the retained 
interest after the partial disposal of an interest in a joint arrangement or a partial disposal of 
an interest in an associate that includes a foreign operation is a financial asset that includes a 
foreign operation. 
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On the partial disposal of a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation that does not result in 
a loss of control, the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences 
recognized in other comprehensive income is re-attributed to the non-controlling interests in 
that foreign operation. In partial disposal of an associate or joint arrangement that includes a 
foreign operation that does not result in a loss of significant influence or joint control, only 
the proportionate share of the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized in 
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss. 

Any goodwill and any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities 
arising on the acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the 
foreign operation and expressed in its functional currency. 

(6) Current and non-current distinction

An asset is classified as current when it meets one of the following conditions; otherwise, it 
will be classified as non-current: 

A. The Group expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal
operating cycle

B. The Group holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading
C. The Group expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period
D. The asset is cash or cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or

used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.

A liability is classified as current when it meets one of the following conditions; otherwise, it 
will be classified as non-current: 

A. The Group expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle
B. The Group holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading
C. The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period
D. The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at

least twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect
its classification.

(7) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term, highly 
liquid investment (including time deposits that have maturity within 3 months) that are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes 
in value. 

(8) Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when the Group becomes a party to 
the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
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Financial assets and financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are 
recognized initially at fair value plus or minus, in the case of investments not at fair value 
through profit or loss, directly attributable transaction costs. 

A. Recognition and Measurement of Financial assets

The Group accounts for regular way purchase or sales of financial assets on the trade date.

The Group classified financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, or fair
value through other comprehensive income considering both factors below:

(a) the Group’s business model for managing the financial assets and
(b) the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met 
and presented as note receivables, trade receivables, financial assets measured at amortized 
cost and other receivables etc., on balance sheet as of the reporting date: 

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets to collect contractual cash flows and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost (the amount at which 
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus 
or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference 
between the initial amount and the maturity amount and adjusted for any loss allowance) 
and is not part of a hedging relationship. A gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss when 
the financial asset is derecognized, through the amortization process or in order to 
recognize the impairment gains or losses. 

Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated by 
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except 
for: 

(a) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets, the
Group applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financial asset from initial recognition.

(b) financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets but
subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets,
the Group applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial asset
in subsequent reporting periods.
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Financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

A financial asset is measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if both of 

the following conditions are met: 

(a) the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both

collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and

(b) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Recognition of gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income are described as below: 

(a) A gain or loss on a financial asset measured at fair value through other comprehensive

income recognized in other comprehensive income, except for impairment gains or

losses and foreign exchange gains and losses, until the financial asset is derecognized

or reclassified.

(b) When the financial asset is derecognized the cumulative gain or loss previously

recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from equity to profit or loss

as a reclassification adjustment.

(c) Interest revenue is calculated by using the effective interest method. This is calculated

by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset

except for:

(i) purchased or originated credit-impaired financial assets. For those financial assets,

the Group applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost

of the financial asset from initial recognition.

(ii) financial assets that are not purchased or originated credit-impaired financial

assets but subsequently have become credit-impaired financial assets. For those

financial assets, the Group applies the effective interest rate to the amortized cost

of the financial asset in subsequent reporting periods.

Besides, for certain equity investments within the scope of IFRS 9 that is neither held for 

trading nor contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer in a business combination 

to which IFRS 3 applies, the Group made an irrevocable election to present the changes of 

the fair value in other comprehensive income at initial recognition. Amounts presented in 

other comprehensive income shall not be subsequently transferred to profit or loss (when 

disposal of such equity instrument, its cumulated amount included in other components of 

equity is transferred directly to the retained earnings) and these investments should be 

presented as financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 

on the balance sheet. Dividends on such investment are recognized in profit or loss unless 

the dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of investment. 
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Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 

Financial assets were classified as measured at amortized cost or measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income based on aforementioned criteria. All other financial 
assets were measured at fair value through profit or loss and presented on the balance sheet 
as financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss. 

Such financial assets are measured at fair value, the gains or losses resulting from 
remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss which includes any dividend or interest 
received on such financial assets. 

B. Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on debt instrument 
investments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial asset 
measured at amortized cost. The loss allowance on debt instrument investments measured 
at fair value through other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehensive 
income and not reduce the carrying amount in the balance sheet. 

The Group measures expected credit losses of a financial instrument in a way that reflects: 

(a) an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is determined by evaluating a range
of possible outcomes;

(b) the time value of money; and
(c) reasonable and supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort

at the reporting date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of future
economic conditions.

The loss allowance is measures as follows: 

(a) At an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial
asset has not increased significantly since initial recognition or the financial asset is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. In addition, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses in
the previous reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date that the
credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition is no
longer met.

(b) At an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses: the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition or financial asset that is
purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset.

(c) For trade receivables or contract assets arising from transactions within the scope of
IFRS 15, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime
expected credit losses.

(d) For lease receivables arising from transactions within the scope of IFRS 16, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses.
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At each reporting date, the Group needs to assess whether the credit risk on a financial asset 

has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a default 

occurring at the reporting date and the risk of default occurring at initial recognition. Please 

refer to Note 12 for further details on credit risk. 

C. Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is derecognized when: 

(a) The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired

(b) The Group has transferred the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of the

asset have been transferred

(c) The Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards

of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the carrying 

amount and the consideration received or receivable including any cumulative gain or loss 

that had been recognized in other comprehensive income, is recognized in profit or loss. 

D. Financial liabilities and equity

Classification of liabilities or equity 

The Group classifies the instrument issued as a financial liability or an equity instrument 

in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a 

financial liability, and an equity instrument. 

Equity instruments 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an 

entity after deducting all of its liabilities. The transaction costs of an equity transaction are 

accounted for as a deduction from equity (net of any related income tax benefit) to the 

extent they are incremental costs directly attributable to the equity transaction that 

otherwise would have been avoided. 

Financial liabilities 

Financial liabilities within the scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments are classified as 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss or financial liabilities measured at 

amortized cost upon initial recognition. 
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Financial liabilities at amortized cost 

Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost include interest bearing loans and 

borrowings that are subsequently measured using the effective interest rate method after 

initial recognition. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are 

derecognized as well as through the effective interest rate method amortization process. 

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition 

and fees or transaction costs. 

Derecognition of financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged 

or cancelled or expires. 

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on 

substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified 

(whether or not attributable to the financial difficulty of the debtor), such an exchange or 

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a 

new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts and the consideration 

paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in profit 

or loss. 

E. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the 

balance sheet if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 

recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets 

and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

(9) Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in 

an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value 

measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the 

liability takes place either: 

A. In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

B. In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or

liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group. 
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The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market 
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants 
in their economic best interest. 

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s 
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling 
it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. 

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which 
sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs. 

(10) Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value item by item.

Costs incurred in bringing each inventory to its present condition and location that is available
for sale and production; Merchandise is valued at the actual cost of goods purchased and
accounted for weighted average method.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

(11) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of dismantling and
removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located and borrowing costs for
construction in progress if the recognition criteria are met. Each part of an item of property,
plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is
depreciated separately. When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required
to be replaced in intervals, the Group recognized such parts as individual assets with specific
useful lives and depreciation, respectively. The carrying amount of those parts that are
replaced is derecognized in accordance with the derecognition provisions of IAS 16 Property,
plant and equipment. When a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the
carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are
satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated economic lives of the
following assets:

Buildings 5 to 50 years 
Renral equipment 1 to 5 years 
Miscellaneous equipment 1 to 8 years 
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An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant component initially recognized 
is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use 
or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset is recognized in profit or 
loss. 

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment 
are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. 

(12) Leases

The Group assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a 
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of 
time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control 
the use of an identified asset for a period of time, the Group assesses whether, throughout the 
period of use, has both of the following: 

A. the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the identified asset;
and

B. the right to direct the use of the identified asset.

For a contract that is, or contains, a lease, the Group accounts for each lease component within 
the contract as a lease separately from non-lease components of the contract. For a contract 
that contains a lease component and one or more additional lease or non-lease components, 
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease component on the basis of 
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of 
the non-lease components. The relative stand-alone price of lease and non-lease components 
shall be determined on the basis of the price the lessor, or a similar supplier, would charge the 
Group for that component, or a similar component, separately. If an observable stand-alone 
price is not readily available, the Group estimates the stand-alone price, maximizing the use 
of observable information. 

Group as a lessee 

Except for leases that meet and elect short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Group 
recognizes right-of-use asset and lease liability for all leases which the Group is the lessee of 
those lease contracts. 

At the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the 
lease payments that are not paid at that date. The lease payments are discounted using the 
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be 
readily determined, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate. At the commencement date, 
the lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following 
payments for the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid at the 
commencement date: 
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A. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

B. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the
index or rate as of the commencement date;

C. amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;
D. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that

option; and
E. payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee

exercising an option to terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, the Group measures the lease liability on an amortized cost 
basis, which increases the carrying amount to reflect interest on the lease liability by using an 
effective interest method; and reduces the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments made. 

At the commencement date, the Group measures the right-of-use asset at cost. The cost of the 
right-of-use asset comprises: 

A. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease liability;
B. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, less any lease incentives

received;
C. any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and
D. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying

asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the
condition required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

For subsequent measurement of the right-of-use asset, the Group measures the right-of-use 
asset at cost less any accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. That 
is, the Group measures the right-of-use applying a cost model. 

If the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset to the Group by the end of the lease 
term or if the cost of the right-of-use asset reflects that the Group will exercise a purchase 
option, the Group depreciates the right-of-use asset from the commencement date to the end 
of the useful life of the underlying asset. Otherwise, the Group depreciates the right-of-use 
asset from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-
use asset or the end of the lease term. 

The Group applies IAS 36 “Impairment of Assets” to determine whether the right-of-use asset 
is impaired and to account for any impairment loss identified. 

Except for those leases that the Group accounted for as short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, the Group presents right-of-use assets and lease liabilities in the balance sheet 
and separately presents lease-related interest expense and depreciation charge in the statement 
of comprehensive income. 
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For short-term leases or leases of low-value assets, the Group elects to recognize the lease 

payments associated with those leases as an expense on either a straight-line basis over the 

lease term or another systematic basis. 

Group as a lessor 

At inception of a contract, the Group classifies each of its leases as either an operating lease 

or a finance lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the 

risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an 

operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of an underlying asset. At the commencement date, the Group recognizes assets 

held under a finance lease in its balance sheet and present them as a receivable at an amount 

equal to the net investment in the lease. 

For a contract that contains lease components and non-lease components, the Group allocates 

the consideration in the contract applying IFRS 15. 

The Group recognizes lease payments from operating leases as rental income on either a 

straight-line basis or another systematic basis. Variable lease payments for operating leases 

that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as rental income when incurred. 

(13) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of 

intangible assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as of the date of 

acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any 

accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated 

intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure 

is reflected in profit or loss for the year in which the expenditure is incurred. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. 

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life and assessed for 

impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 

amortization period and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful 

life is reviewed at least at the end of each financial year. Changes in the expected useful life 

or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is 

accounted for by changing the amortization period or method, as appropriate, and are treated 

as changes in accounting estimates. 
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Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized, but are tested for impairment 
annually, either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite 
life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. 
If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis. 

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference 
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in 
profit or loss when the asset is derecognized. 

Computer software 

The cost of computer software is amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful 
life (3 to 5 years). 

A summary of the policies information applied to the Group’s intangible assets is as follows: 

Computer software 

Useful lives Finite 
Amortization method used Amortized on a straight- line basis over the estimated 

useful life 
Internally generated or acquired Acquired 

(14) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that an
asset in the scope of IAS 36 Impairment of Assets may be impaired. If any such indication
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s (“CGU”) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an
asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the asset’s or cash-
generating unit’s recoverable amount. A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only if there has been an increase in the estimated service potential of an asset which in turn
increases the recoverable amount. However, the reversal is limited so that the carrying amount
of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years.
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A cash generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, to which goodwill has been 

allocated is tested for impairment annually at the same time, irrespective of whether there is 

any indication of impairment. If an impairment loss is to be recognized, it is first allocated to 

reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the cash generating unit (group of 

units), then to the other assets of the unit (group of units) pro rata on the basis of the carrying 

amount of each asset in the unit (group of units). Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot 

be reversed in future periods for any reason. 

An impairment loss of continuing operations or a reversal of such impairment loss is 

recognized in profit or loss. 

(15) Revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue arising from contracts with customers are primarily related to sale of 

goods and rendering of services. The accounting policies are explained as follows: 

Sales of goods 

The Group sells and represents the original software and hardwares, and its sales revenue is 

recognized when control of a product is transferred to the customer, that is, when the product 

is delivered to the customer and the Group has no outstanding performance obligations that 

may influence the customer to accept the product. 

The Group’s sales revenue is recognized at the net revenue by contract prices deducting 

estimated sales discounts and allowances. The Group uses expected value method based on 

historical experience at the time of sales to estimate sales returns. The number of returned 

products has been stable over the years; therefore, the Group assessed that it is highly probable 

that there will be no significant reversal in the accumulated revenue recognized. 

Trade receivables are recognized when the goods are delivered to customers because from that 

point on, the Group has an unconditional right to the contract price and only needs time to 

collect consideration from customers. 

Computer management and printing machine services 

The Group offers services, including computer management information, and rotational speed 

and maintenance of printing machines. Service revenue is recognized at the time when the 

Group renders services to customers in the financial reporting period. 
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Some customer contracts include multiple merchandise or services deliverable, such as 

inostallation of hardware and software. In most cases, the nature of installation is simple, it 

does not involve integrated services, and can be performed by other companies and 

manufacturers; therefore, installation is identified as a stand-alone performance obligation. 

The transaction price is allocated to each performance obligation in the contract based on the 

relative stand-alone selling price. If the sales of hardware are stated in the contract, revenue 

from the sales of hardware is recognized when the hardware is delivered to the customer, the 

legal ownership of the hardware is transferred to the customer, and the customer accepts the 

hardware. 

Revenue from information services 

The Group provides corporate integration services and recognizes related revenue during the 

financial reporting period when the information services are provided. 

For certain contracts, contract asset is recognized when the performance obligations are met 

but the unconditional right to collect consideration is not yet available. In addition, the contract 

asset still needs to be evaluated for loss allowances in accordance with IFRS 9 "Financial 

Instruments". In addition, for some other contracts, part of the consideration is collected from 

customers upon signing the contract, and the Company has the obligation to provide the 

services subsequently; accordingly, these amounts are recognized as contract liabilities. 

The period between the transfers of contract liabilities to revenue is usually within one year, 

thus, no significant financing component is arisen. 

(16) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset 

that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are 

capitalized as part of the cost of the respective assets. All other borrowing costs are expensed 

in the period they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity 

incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. 

(17) Government grants

Government grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be 

received and all attached conditions will be complied with. Where the grant relates to an asset, 

it is recognized as deferred income and released to income in equal amounts over the expected 

useful life of the related asset. When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as 

income over the period necessary to match the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it 

is intended to compensate. 
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(18) Post-employment benefits

All regular employees of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are entitled to a pension 
plan that is managed by an independently administered pension fund committee. Fund assets 
are deposited under the committee’s name in the specific bank account and hence, not 
associated with the Company and its domestic subsidiaries. Therefore, fund assets are not 
included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Pension benefits for employees of 
the overseas subsidiaries and the branches are provided in accordance with the respective local 
regulations. 

For the defined contribution plan, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries will make a 
monthly contribution of no less than 6% of the monthly wages of the employees subject to the 
plan. The Company recognizes expenses for the defined contribution plan in the period in 
which the contribution becomes due. Overseas subsidiaries and branches make contribution 
to the plan based on the requirements of local regulations. 

Post-employment benefit plan that is classified as a defined benefit plan uses the Projected 
Unit Credit Method to measure its obligations and costs based on actuarial assumptions. Re-
measurements, comprising of the effect of the actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset 
ceiling (excluding net interest) and the return on plan assets, excluding net interest, are 
recognized as other comprehensive income with a corresponding debit or credit to retained 
earnings in the period in which they occur. Past service costs are recognized in profit or loss 
on the earlier of: 

A. the date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
B. the date that the Group recognizes restructuring-related costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or 
asset, both as determined at the start of the annual reporting period, taking account of any 
changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of contribution 
and benefit payment. 

(19) Share-based payment transactions

The cost of equity-settled transactions between the Group and its subsidiaries is recognized 
based on the fair value of the equity instruments granted. The fair value of the equity 
instruments is determined by using an appropriate pricing model. 

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognized, together with a corresponding increase 
in other capital reserves in equity, over the period in which the performance and/or service 
conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognized for equity-settled transactions at 
each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has 
expired and the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately 
vest. The income statement expense or credit for a period represents the movement in 
cumulative expense recognized as of the beginning and end of that period. 
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No expense is recognized for awards that do not ultimately vest, except for equity-settled 
transactions where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-vesting condition, which are 
treated as vesting irrespective of whether or not the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, 
provided that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied. 

Where the terms of an equity-settled transaction award are modified, the minimum expense 
recognized is the expense as if the terms had not been modified, if the original terms of the 
award are met. An additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the 
total fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the 
employee as measured at the date of modification. 

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it vested on the date of 
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognized for the award is recognized immediately. 
This includes any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of either the entity 
or the employee are not met. However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled award, 
and designated as a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and new 
awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original award, as described in the 
previous paragraph. 

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the 
computation of diluted earnings per share. 

The cost of restricted stocks issued is recognized as salary expense based on the fair value of 
the equity instruments on the grant date, together with a corresponding increase in other capital 
reserves in equity, over the vesting period. The Group recognized unearned employee salary 
which is a transitional contra equity account; the balance in the account will be recognized as 
salary expense over the passage of vesting period. 

(20) Income tax

Income tax expense (income) is the aggregate amount included in the determination of profit
or loss for the period in respect of current tax and deferred tax.

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, using the tax rates
and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Current income tax relating to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity and not in profit or loss.

The income tax for undistributed earnings is recognized as income tax expense in the
subsequent year when the distribution proposal is approved by the Shareholders’ meeting.
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Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date between the tax bases 
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes. 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except: 

A. Where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction, and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences and at the time of the transaction.

B. In respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, where the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of 
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except: 

A. Where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction,
and does not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences at the time of
the transaction.

B. In respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 
the year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws 
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of 
deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax consequences that would follow 
from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or 
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax relating to items recognized 
outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss. Deferred tax items are recognized in 
correlation to the underlying transaction either in other comprehensive income or directly in 
equity. Deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognized 
accordingly. 
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists 

to set off current income tax assets against current income tax liabilities and the deferred taxes 

relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority. 

According to the temporary exception in the International Tax Reform – Pillar Two Model 

Rules (Amendments to IAS 12), information about deferred tax assets and liabilities related 

to Pillar Two income tax will neither be recognized nor be disclosed. 

(21) Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration 

transferred, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are measured at acquisition 

date fair value. For each business combination, the acquirer measures any non-controlling 

interest in the acquiree either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s proportionate 

share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are accounted for as 

expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and are classified under administrative 

expenses. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the assets and liabilities assumed for 

appropriate classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic 

circumstances and pertinent conditions as of the acquisition date. This includes the separation 

of embedded derivatives in host contracts by the acquiree. 

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the 

acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the 

acquisition date through profit or loss. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognized at the 

acquisition-date fair value. Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent 

consideration which is deemed to be an asset or liability, will be recognized in accordance 

with IFRS 9 Financial Instruments either in profit or loss or as a change to other 

comprehensive income. However, if the contingent consideration is classified as equity, it 

should not be remeasured until it is finally settled within equity. 

Goodwill is initially measured as the amount of the excess of the aggregate of the 

consideration transferred and the non-controlling interest over the net fair value of the 

identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed. If this aggregate is lower than the fair 

value of the net assets acquired, the difference is recognized in profit or loss. 
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After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. 
Goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each 
of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination, 
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units. 
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is so allocated represents the lowest level 
within the Group at which the goodwill is monitored for internal management purpose and is 
not larger than an operating segment before aggregation. 

Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit 
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed of is included in the 
carrying amount of the operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is measured 
based on the relative recoverable amounts of the operation disposed of and the portion of the 
cash-generating unit retained. 

5. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements require management to make judgements, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and 
liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. However, 
uncertainty about these assumption and estimate could result in outcomes that require a material 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods. 

Critical judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies 

According to the order No. Ji-Mi-Zi-0000000535, explanation on "Accounting Treatment of 
Prepayment for Acquisition of Cloud Computing Arrangement", issued by the Accounting 
Research and Development Foundation on November 25, 2022, the Group’s sub-subsidiary, 
GrandTech Cloud Services Inc.,will reserve advance usage amount of AWS cloud service from 
the supplier for the contracts which will use the cloud service in future 1 or 3 years. The contract 
only transfers the right of using AWS cloud service in the contract period, and GrandTech Cloud 
Services Inc. did not obtain the software, an intangible assets. Since the contract did not give rights 
to GrandTech Cloud Services Inc. for the future economic benefit arising from the software and 
to restrict others from obtaining the benefit, and the contract excluded software leasing. As 
GrandTech Cloud Services Inc. did not have any right to decide rights on the usage and the purpose 
of using the software, the Group reclassified the cloud computing arrangement, which was 
formerly accounted as intangible assets on December 31, 2022, in the amount of NT$236,830 
thousand to current and non-current prepayments to suppliers, in the amount of NT$131,184 
thousand and NT$105,646 thousand, respectively, according to liquidity. 

Estimates and assumptions 

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the 
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. 
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(1) Trade receivables - estimation of impairment loss

The Group estimates the impairment loss of trade receivables at an amount equal to lifetime 

expected credit losses. The credit loss is the present value of the difference between the 

contractual cash flows that are due under the contract (carrying amount) and the cash flows 

that expects to receive (evaluate forward looking information). However, as the impact from 

the discounting of short-term receivables is not material, the credit loss is measured by the 

undiscounted cash flows. Where the actual future cash flows are lower than expected, a 

material impairment loss may arise. Please refer to Note 6 for more details. 

(2) Inventories

Estimates of net realizable value of inventories take into consideration that inventories may 

be damaged, become wholly or partially obsolete, or their selling prices have declined. The 

estimates are based on the most reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made. 

Please refer to Note 6 for more details. 

(3) Income tax

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the 

amount and timing of future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business 

relationships and the long-term nature and complexity of existing contractual agreements, 

differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions made, or future changes to 

such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense already 

recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible 

consequences of audits by the tax authorities of the respective counties in which it operates. 

The amount of such provisions is based on various factors, such as experience of previous tax 

audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the taxable entity and the responsible 

tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of issues 

depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective Group company's domicile. 

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all carryforward of unused tax losses and unused tax 

credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit 

will be available or there are sufficient taxable temporary differences against which the unused 

tax losses, unused tax credits or deductible temporary differences can be utilized. The amount 

of deferred tax assets determined to be recognized is based upon the likely timing and the level 

of future taxable profits and taxable temporary differences together with future tax planning 

strategies. 
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6. Contents of significant accounts

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Cash on hand and revolving funds $740 $793 
Bank checks and demand deposits 744,572 961,684 
Time deposits 665,320 433,011 

Total $1,410,632 $1,395,488 

(2) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss: 
Unlisted companies stocks $100,755 $100,755 
Preference shares of unlisted companies - 13,396
Beneficiary certificates 115,588 94,127

Total $216,343 $208,278 

Current $- $- 
Non-current 216,343 208,278 

Total $216,343 $208,278 

The Group’s subsidiary, GrandTech Systems SDN. BHD, disposed of the preference shares 
of unlisted companies on September 8, 2023. 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss were not pledged. 

(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Equity instrument investments measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income: 
Unlisted companies stocks $8,479 $8,479 

Current $- $- 
Non-current 8,479 8,479 

Total $8,479 $8,479 

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income were not pledged. 
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The Group recovered the investment amount of NT$2,000 thousand due to the refund arising 
from capital reduction in equity investment in 2022. 

Please refer to Note 12 for more information on the price risk and fair value of financial assets 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

(4) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Time deposits with original maturity exceeding 3 months $107,898 $60,816 

Current $107,898 $60,816 
Non-current - - 
Total $107,898 $60,816 

The Group classified certain financial assets as financial assets measured at amortized cost. 
Please refer to Note 6 (19) for more details on loss allowance and Note 12 for more details on 
credit risk. 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost were not pledged. 

(5) Notes receivables

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Notes receivables arising from operating activities $37,236 $19,565 
Less: loss allowance (47) (69)
Total $37,189 $19,496 

Notes receivables were not pledged. 

The Group follows the requirement of IFRS 9 to assess the impairment. Please refer to Note 
6 (19) for more details on loss allowance and Note 12 for details on credit risk. 

(6) Trade receivables

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Trade receivables $612,932 $606,713 
Less: loss allowance (4,014) (6,968) 
Total $608,918 $599,745 

Trade receivables were not pledged. 
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Trade receivables are generally on 30 to 90 day terms. The total carrying amount as of 
December 31, 2023 and 2022 were NT$612,932 thousand and NT$606,713 thousand, 
respectively. Please refer to Note 6 (19) for more details on loss allowance of trade receivables 
for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022. Please refer to Note 12 for more details on 
credit risk management. 

(7) Inventories

As of December 31, 2023 

Cost  

Allowance for 
inventory 

valuation losses 
Carrying 
Amount 

Inventories of software and hardware $135,053 $(9,298) $125,755 
Machines, consumable materials and 

accessories 
25,413 (4,006) 21,407 

Inventories of books 52 (52) -
Total $160,518 $(13,356) $147,162 

As of December 31, 2022 

Cost  

Allowance for 
inventory 

valuation losses 
Carrying 
Amount 

Inventories of software and hardware $254,817 $(26,488) $228,329 
Machines, consumable materials and 

accessories 
21,255 (3,102) 18,153 

Inventories of books 5,173 (3,876) 1,297 
Total $281,245 $(33,466) $247,779 

Inventory cost recognized as loss is as follows: 
 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 
Cost of inventory sold $4,156,978 $4,355,731 
Cost of services 235,700 47,432 
Losses (reversal gains) on market price decline and 

obsolete and slow-moving inventories (Note 1) 
(10,775) 4,530 

Others (Note 2) 1,011 300 
Total $4,382,914 $4,407,993 

Note 1: For the year ended December 31, 2023, the Group eliminated some of its inventories 
that had been recorded as inventory valuation losses, resulting in reversal gains on 
inventories. 

Note 2: Others were mainly inventory profit or loss, scrapping and revenue from sale of 
scraps. 

No inventories were pledged. 
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(8) Property, plant and equipment

Owner occupied and leased property, plant and equipment

Land Buildings 

Renral 

equipment 

Miscellaneous 

equipment Total 

Cost: 

As of January 1, 2023 $95,456 $63,730 $245 $101,807 $261,238 

Additions - 1,781 - 9,539 11,320 

Disposals - - (215) (4,901) (5,116) 

Transfers - - - 1,605 1,605 

Exchange differences - - (5) (2,065) (2,070) 

As of December 31, 2023 $95,456 $65,511 $25 $105,985 $266,977 

As of January 1, 2022 $95,456 $59,731 $751 $101,494 $257,432 

Additions - 410 - 8,870 9,280 

Disposals - - (481) (13,920) (14,401) 

Transfers - 2,970 - - 2,970 

Exchange differences - 619 (25) 5,363 5,957 

As of December 31, 2022 $95,456 $63,730 $245 $101,807 $261,238 

Depreciation and impairment: 

As of January 1, 2023 $- $29,720 $201 $81,153 $111,074 

Depreciations - 2,177 30 9,956 12,163 

Disposals - - (203) (4,082) (4,285) 

Exchange differences - 1 (3) (2,414) (2,416) 

As of December 31, 2023 $- $31,898 $25 $84,613 $116,536 

As of January 1, 2022 $- $27,610 $635 $82,075 $110,320 

Depreciations - 2,029 72 9,441 11,542 

Disposals - - (478) (13,903) (14,381) 

Exchange differences - 81 (28) 3,540 3,593 

As of December 31, 2022 $- $29,720 $201 $81,153 $111,074 

Net carrying amounts as of: 

December 31, 2023 $95,456 $33,613 $- $21,372 $150,441 

December 31, 2022 $95,456 $34,010 $44 $20,654 $150,164 

Please refer to Note 8 for more details on property, plant and equipment under pledge. 
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(9) Intangible assets

Goodwill 

Computer 

software Total 

Cost: 

As of January 1, 2023 $32,190 $8,420 $40,610 

Additions - 75 75 

Disposals - (39) (39) 

Exchange differences 7  369 376 

As of December 31, 2023 $32,197 $8,825 $41,022 

As of January 1, 2022 $30,585 $8,466 $39,051 

Additions - 325 325 

Exchange differences 1,605 (371) 1,234

As of December 31, 2022 $32,190 $8,420 $40,610 

Amortization and impairment: 

As of January 1, 2023 $- $5,176 $5,176 

Amortization and impairment - 906 906 

Disposals - (39) (39) 

Exchange differences - 368 368 

As of December 31, 2023 $- $6,411 $6,411 

As of January 1, 2022 $- $4,586 $4,586 

Amortization and impairment - 961 961 

Exchange differences - (371) (371) 

As of December 31, 2022 $- $5,176 $5,176 

Net carrying amounts as of: 

December 31, 2023 $32,197 $2,414 $34,611 

December 31, 2022 $32,190 $3,244 $35,434 

Amortization expense of intangible assets under the statement of comprehensive income: 

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Operating costs $- $- 

Selling expenses $494 $682 

Administrative expenses $285 $220 

Research and development costs $127 $59 
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(10) Impairment testing of goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives

The fair value of cash-generating units of goodwill acquired through business combinations, 

which is for impairment testing, is as follows: 

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Senco-Masslink Technology Ltd. $32,197 $32,190 

The cash-generating units of Senco-Masslink Technology Ltd. 

The recoverable amount of Senco-Masslink Technology Ltd.’s cash-generating units as of 

December 31, 2023 was determined based on a value in use calculation using cash flow 

projections from financial budgets approved by management. The discount rate used in the 

cash flow projection was 10.47% in 2023. As a result of this analysis, the management has 

recognized no impairment loss against goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2023. 

Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations 

The calculation of value-in-use for cash generating unit of Senco-Masslink Technology Ltd. 

is most sensitive to the following assumptions: 

A. Revenue growth rate

B. Discount rates

C. Growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows beyond the budget period

Revenue growth rate – The revenue growth rate is estimated based on the growth rate during 

the financial budget period and taking into account future market trends. 

Discount rates – Discount rates reflect the current market assessment of the risks specific to 

each cash generating unit (including the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset 

for which the future cash flow estimates have not been adjusted). 

Estimated growth rate – The growth rate is based on historical experience assessment. The 

growth rate has been adjusted by considering the overall economic environment. 

Sensitivity to changes in assumptions 

With regard to the assessment of value-in-use of the cash generating unit, the management 

believes that no reasonably possible change in any of the above key assumptions would cause 

the carrying value of the unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount. 
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(11) Prepayments to suppliers – Acquisition of cloud computing services

According to the order No. Ji-Mi-Zi-0000000535, explanation on "Accounting Treatment of 
Prepayment for Acquisition of Cloud Computing Arrangement", issued by the Accounting 
Research and Development Foundation, the Group made the prepayments to reserve advance 
usage amount of AWS cloud services from the supplier, and obtained the rights to use AWS 
cloud services in the next 1 or 3 years prepayments made by the Group are recognized under 
prepayments to suppliers, current and other non-current assets based on the period in which 
the services will be used in the future. 

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Current $180,800 $131,184 
Non-current 131,741 105,646 
Total $312,541 $236,830 

(12) Other non-current assets

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Prepayments to suppliers (Note) $131,741 $105,646 
Refundable deposits 73,057 72,870 
Prepaid pension cost 5,311 5,311 
Others 6,503 1 
Total $216,612 $183,828 

Note: Please refer to Note 6 (11) for transaction description. 

(13) Short-term borrowings

As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Secured bank loans $170,000 $140,000 
Unsecured bank loans 580,000 440,000 
Total $750,000 $580,000 

Interest Rates (%) 
Secured bank loans 1.65%~1.83%  0.87%~1.83% 
Unsecured bank loans 1.40%~1.83%  0.85%~2.00% 

The Group’s unused short-term lines of credits amounted to NT$880,000 thousand and 
NT$325,000 thousand, as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

Please refer to Note 8 for more details on financial assets measured at amortized cost pledged 
as security for short-term borrowings. 
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(14) Other payables

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Dividends payable $68,298 $77,746 
Accrued salaries and bonuses 29,219 36,829 
Payables for employee compensation, and remuneration to 

directors and supervisors 
20,068 23,324 

Other accrued expenses 49,109 44,663 
Others 3,489 5,974 

Total $170,183 $188,536 

(15) Post-employment benefits

Defined contribution plan 

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries adopted a defined contribution plan in accordance 
with the Labor Pension Act of the R.O.C. Under the Labor Pension Act, the Company and its 
domestic subsidiaries would make monthly contributions to the employees’ individual 
pension accounts at the amounts not less than 6% of the employees’ monthly wages. The 
Company and its domestic subsidiaries have made monthly contributions of 6% of each 
individual employee’s salaries or wages to employees’ pension accounts. 

Expenses under the defined contribution plan for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 
2022 amounted to NT$6,721 thousand and NT$7,117 thousand, respectively. 

The overseas subsidiaries adopt defined contribution measures for their pension plans, and the 
pensions for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 amounted to NT$14,354 thousand 
and NT$12,837 thousand, respectively. 

Defined benefits plan 

The Company and its domestic subsidiaries adopt a defined benefit plan in accordance with 
the Labor Standards Act of the R.O.C. The pension benefits are disbursed based on the units 
of service years and the average salaries per month when retirement. Two units per year are 
awarded for the first 15 years of services while one unit per year is awarded after the 
completion of the 15th year. The total units shall not exceed 45 units. Under the Labor 
Standards Act, the Company contribute an amount equivalent to 2% of the employees’ total 
salaries and wages on a monthly basis to the pension fund deposited at the Bank of Taiwan in 
the name of the administered pension fund committee. Before the end of each year, the 
Company assess the balance in the designated labor pension fund. If the amount is inadequate 
to pay pensions calculated for workers retiring in the same year, the Company will make up 
the difference in one appropriation before the end of March the following year. 
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The Ministry of Labor is in charge of establishing and implementing the fund utilization plan 

in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of 

the Labor Retirement Fund. The pension fund is invested in-house or under a mandate, based 

on a passive-aggressive investment strategy for long-term profitability. The Ministry of Labor 

establishes checks and risk management mechanism based on the assessment of risk factors 

including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk, in order to maintain adequate manager 

flexibility to achieve targeted return without over-exposure of risk. With regard to utilization 

of the pension fund, the minimum earnings in the annual distributions on the final financial 

statement shall not be less than the earnings attainable from the amounts accrued from two-

year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local banks. Treasury Funds can be used 

to cover the deficits after the approval of the competent authority. As the Company does not 

participate in the operation and management of the pension fund, no disclosure on the fair 

value of the plan assets categorized in different classes could be made in accordance with 

paragraph 142 of IAS 19. 

The weighted average duration of the defined benefits obligation is 9 years and 10 to 11 years 

as of December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. Contribution to the defined benefit plans for 

the next year is expected to amount to NT$60 thousand. 

Amounts for defined benefit plans recognized in profit or loss are as follows: 

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Net interest on service costs and net defined benefit (assets) 

liabilities 

$189 $(35) 

Reconciliations of liabilities (assets) of the defined benefit obligation and plan assets at fair 

value are as follows: 

As of 

December 31, 

2023 

December 31, 

2022 

January 1, 

2022 

Defined benefit obligation $(1,861) $(2,996) $(2,749) 

Plan assets at fair value 7,043 8,160 7,310 

Net defined benefit assets (liabilities) $5,182 $5,164 $4,561 
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Reconciliation of net defined benefit assets (liabilities): 

Defined 
benefits 

obligation 
Plan assets 
Fair value 

Net defined 
benefit assets 
(liabilities) 

As of January 1, 2022 $(2,749) $7,310 $4,561 
Service costs and interest (expenses) income (20) 55 35 

Subtotal (2,769) 7,365 4,596 
Remeasurements of defined benefit 

liabilities/assets: 
Return on plan assets 

(excluding the amounts of interest 
income or expenses) 

- 852 852 

Actuarial gains and losses arising from 
changes in financial assumptions 

189 - 189

Experience adjustments (416) - (416) 
Subtotal (277) 852 625 

Benefits paid - (218) (218) 
Contributions by employer - 161 161 
As of December 31, 2022 (2,996) 8,160 5,164 
Service costs and interest (expenses) income (222) 33 (189) 
Benefits paid 1,357 (1,357) - 
Contributions by employer - 207 207 
As of December 31, 2023 $(1,861) $7,043 $5,182 

The principal assumptions used in determining the Group’s defined benefit plan are shown 
below: 

As of 
December 31, 

2023 
December 31, 

2022 
Discount rate 1.30% 1.40% 
Expected rate of salary increases 2.00% 2.00% 

Sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions is shown below: 

For the years ended December 31, 
2023 2022 

Defined 
benefits 

obligation 
increase 

Defined 
benefits 

obligation 
decrease 

Defined 
benefits 

obligation 
increase 

Defined 
benefits 

obligation 
decrease 

Discount rate increases by 0.25% $- $41 $- $74 
Discount rate decreases by 0.25% 42 - 77 - 
Rate of future salary increases by 0.25%  41 - 75 - 
Rate of future salary decreases by 0.25%  - 40 - 73
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The sensitivity analysis above is based on a change in a significant assumption (for example: 
change in discount rate or future salary), keeping all other assumptions constant. The 
sensitivity analysis may not be representative of an actual change in the defined benefit 
obligation as it is unlikely that changes in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another. 

There was no change in the methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis 
compared to the previous period. 

(16) Equity

A. Common stock

As of December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s authorize capital were both
NT$1,050,000 thousand, issued shares both amounted to NT$620,894 thousand, each at a
par value of NT$10, and both divided into 62,089 thousand shares. Each share has one
voting right and a right to receive dividends.

The Company passed a resolution in the board meeting held on August 4, 2022 to proceed
with cash capital increase and set November 4, 2022 as the reference date of capital
increase. The purpose of the cash capital increase was for increasing operating funds. The
actual number of shares issued was 4,500 thousand, at the actual subscription price of
NT$49 per share. This capital increase has raised NT$220,500 thousand, and the
registration of change was completed.

B. Capital surplus

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Additional paid-in capital $221,565 $221,565 
Increase (decrease) through changes in ownership 

interests in subsidiaries 
20,648 20,648 

Total $242,213 $242,213 

According to the Company Act, the capital reserve shall not be used except for making 
good the deficit of the company. When a company incurs no loss, it may distribute the 
capital reserves related to the income derived from the issuance of new shares at a premium 
or income from endowments received by the company. The distribution could be made in 
cash or in the form of dividend shares to its shareholders in proportion to the number of 
shares being held by each of them. 

A resolution was passed by the Board of Directors on March 3, 2022 to distribute cash 
from the capital reserves related to the income derived from the issuance of new shares at 
a premium in the amount of NT$97,850 thousand, at a par value of NT$1.6991 per share. 
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C. Retained earnings and dividend policies

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, profit in the annual final accounts 

shall be used to cover the deficits in the previous fiscal year after all taxes and dues are 

paid, and legal reserve at 10% of net income after tax. However, this restriction does not 

apply in the event that the amount of the accumulated legal reserve equals or exceeds the 

Company’s total paid-in capital. When necessary, the special reserve may be appropriated 

or reversed in accordance with laws or regulations of the securities regulators. The 

remainder, if any, along with the undistributed earnings at the beginning of the same period, 

shall be resolved by the Board of Directors to be reserved or distributed as dividends paid 

to shareholders depending on the capital and economic development for the current year, 

and proposed to shareholders’ meeting for approval. The Company authorizes the Board 

of Directors to distribute cash dividends after passing a special resolution and report it to 

the shareholders’ meeting in accordance with laws and regulations. 

In addition, the Company may distribute earnings or offset losses after the end of each 

quarter in accordance with the Articles of Incorporation. Earnings distributed in cash shall 

be implemented after a resolution passed by the Board of Directors; when earnings are 

distributed by issuing new shares, it shall be implemented by a resolution passed in the 

shareholders’ meeting in accordance with regulations. 

The implementation method of the Company’s dividend policies requires considering the 

Company’s future capital budget planning, meeting shareholders’ needs for cash inflow, 

ensuring the Company’s competitiveness in the market, and other related factors. Cash 

dividends shall not be lower than 10% of the total dividends paid to shareholders. 

According to the Company Act, the Company needs to set aside amount to legal reserve 

unless where such legal reserve amounts to the total paid-in capital. The legal reserve can 

be used to make good the deficit of the Company. When the Company incurs no loss, it 

may distribute the portion of legal serve which exceeds 25% of the paid-in capital by 

issuing new shares or by cash in proportion to the number of shares being held by each of 

the shareholders. 

According to existing regulations, when the Company distributes distributable earnings, it 

shall set aside to special reserve, from the profit/loss of the current period and the 

undistributed earnings from the previous period, an amount equal to “other net deductions 

from shareholders’ equity for the current fiscal year, provided that if the company has 

already set aside special reserve in the first-time adoption of the IFRS, it shall set aside 

supplemental special reserve based on the difference between the amount already set aside 

and other net deductions from shareholders’ equity. For any subsequent reversal of other 

net deductions from shareholders’ equity, the amount reversed may be distributed from the 

special reserve. 
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Appropriation of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2023 and the cash dividend per 
share as resolved by the Board of Directors are as follows: 

For the three-month period ended 

June 30, 2023  December 31, 2023 Total 

Resolution date of the Board of Directors August 10, 2023 March 7, 2024 

Legal reserve $13,028 $11,481 $24,509 

Special reserve $- $4,898 $4,898 

Cash dividends $68,298 $180,059 $248,357 

Cash dividend per share $1.10 $2.90 $4.00 

Appropriation of earnings for the year ended December 31, 2022 and the cash dividend per 
share as resolved by the Board of Directors are as follows: 

For the three-month period ended 

June 30, 2022  December 31, 2022 Total 

Resolution date of the Board of Directors August 4, 2022 March 3, 2023 

Legal reserve $14,520 $17,550 $32,070 

Reversal of special reserve $- $(100,868) $(100,868) 

Cash dividends $77,746 $232,835 $310,581 

Cash dividend per share $1.35 $3.75 $5.10 

Please refer to Note 6 (21) for details on employees’ compensation and remuneration to 
directors and supervisors. 

D. Non-controlling interests

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Beginning balance $338,718 $272,311 
Profit (loss) attributable to non-controlling interests 68,271 69,211 
Other comprehensive income, attributable to non-

controlling interests, net of tax: 
Exchange differences resulting from translating the 

financial statements of a foreign operation 
(1,439) 13,592 

Changes in parent’s interest in subsidiaries 102 - 
Subscription to shares due to cash capital increase for 

subsidiaries 
- 29,977

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary - (406)
Cash dividends from the subsidiaries in the consolidated 

entity 
(100,792) (45,967)

Ending Balance $304,860 $338,718 
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(17) Share-based payment plans

Certain employees of the Group are entitled to share-based payment as part of their 

remunerations; services are provided by the employees in return for the equity instruments 

granted. These plans are accounted for as equity-settled share-based payment transactions. 

A. The Company’s share-based payment arrangement is as follows:

(a) The Company’s share-based payment arrangement for the year ended December 31,

2022 is as follows:

Type of arrangement Grant date 

Number of 

shares granted  Contract period 

Vesting 

conditions 

Cash capital increase and retained 

employee subscription 

November 

4, 2022 

36 thousand 

shares 

- Immediately

vested 

(b) Details of the above-mentioned share-based payment arrangement are as follows:

For the years ended December 31, 

2022 

Number of 

stock option 

Weighted 

average 

exercise price 

of stock 

options (NT$) 

Outstanding at beginning of period - $-

Granted 36 49.0

Exercised (36) 49.0

Outstanding at end of period - - 

Exercisable at end of period - - 

(c) The Company uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value

of the stock option for the share-based payment transaction on the grant date. The

relevant information is as follows:

Type of arrangement Grant date 

Share 

price 

Exercise 

price 

Expected 

volatility 

Expected 

life  

Expected 

dividends 

Risk-free 

interest rate 

Fair value 

per unit 

Cash capital increase and 

retained employee 

subscription 

November 4, 

2022 

53.3 49 10.48%  0.01 years - 0.78% NT$4.3038 
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(d) Details of the above-mentioned share-based payment arrangement are as follows:

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Company’s expenses arising
from the equity-settled share-based payment transaction amounted to NT$0 thousand
and NT$155 thousand, respectively.

B. The share-based payment arrangement of the Company’s subsidiary, GrandTech Cloud
Services Inc. (hereinafter “GrandTech Cloud”), is as follows:

(a) The Group’s share-based payment arrangement for the year ended December 31, 2022
is as follows:

Type of arrangement Grant date 

Number of 

shares granted  Contract period 

Vesting 

conditions 

Cash capital increase and retained 

employee subscription 

April 27, 

2022 

27 thousand 

shares 

- Immediately

vested 

(b) GrandTech Cloud uses the Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair
value of the stock option for the share-based payment transaction on the grant date.
The relevant information is as follows:

Type of arrangement Grant date 

Share 

price 

Exercise 

price 

Expected 

volatility 

Expected 

life  

Expected 

dividends 

Risk-free 

interest rate 

Fair value 

per unit 

Cash capital increase and 

retained employee 

subscription 

April 27, 

2022 

76.85 80 19.93%  0.02 years - 0.41% NT$0.08 

(c) Details of the above-mentioned share-based payment arrangement are as follows:

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, GrandTech Cloud’s expenses
arising from the equity-settled share-based payment transaction amounted to NT$0
thousand and NT$2 thousand, respectively.

(18) Operating revenue

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Revenue from contracts with customers 
Revenue from information software and hardware products $3,810,476 $4,135,922 
Revenue from sale of other products 777,561 558,643 
Service revenue 622,186 591,982 
Other operating revenues 83 272 

Total $5,210,306 $5,286,819 
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Analysis of revenue from contracts with customers for the years ended December 31, 2023 
and 2022, which could be classified into the following main regions: 

A. Disaggregation of revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

 Taiwan region 

Hong Kong 
and Macao 

regions Other regions Total 
Timing of revenue 

recognition: 
At a point in time $882,846 $3,243,474 $384,601 $4,510,921 
Over time 416,875 282,510 - 699,385

Total $1,299,721 $3,525,984 $384,601 $5,210,306 

For the year ended December 31, 2022 

 Taiwan region 

Hong Kong 
and Macao 

regions Other regions Total 
Timing of revenue 

recognition: 
At a point in time $1,142,677 $3,376,787 $281,411 $4,800,875 
Over time 311,988 173,956 - 485,944

Total $1,454,665 $3,550,743 $281,411 $5,286,819 

B. Contract balances

Contract liabilities, current 
As of December 31, 

2023 2022 2021 
Sales of goods $71,926 $95,716 $115,487 

The significant changes in the Company’s balances of contract liabilities for the years 
ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 are as follows: 

 For the years ended December 31, 
2023  2022 

The opening balance transferred to revenue $74,163 $112,451 
Increase in receipts in advance during the period 

(excluding the amount incurred and transferred to 
revenue during the period) 

50,373 92,680 

The period between the transfers of contract liabilities to revenue is usually within one 
year, thus, there was no performance obligation that has not been met and no asset was 
recognized from costs to fulfill a contract with the customer. 
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(19) Expected credit losses (gains)

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Operating expenses – Expected credit (gains) losses 

Trade receivables $(2,724) $2,614 

Notes receivables (22) (24)

Finance lease receivable and long-term finance lease 

receivable 

(22) (31)

Total $(2,768) $2,559 

Please refer to Note 12 for more details on credit risk. 

The credit risks for the Group’s financial assets measured at amortized cost as of December 

31, 2023 and 2022 are assessed as low (the same as the assessment result as of January 1, 

2022). Therefore, the loss allowance is both measured at an amount equal to 12-month 

expected credit losses (loss rate is 0%). 

The Group measures the loss allowance of its trade receivables (including note receivables, 

trade receivables, finance lease receivable and long-term finance lease receivable) at an 

amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. The assessment of the Group’s loss allowance 

as of December 31, 2023 and 2022 is as follows: 

Not yet due 

Overdue 

0-90 days

Overdue 

91-180 days

Overdue 181 

Days Total 

As of December 31, 2023 

Expected loss rates 0.08% 1.59% 20.63% 100% 

Total carrying amount $532,742 $152,860 $5,522 $92 $691,216 

Loss allowance $430 $2,434 $1,139 $92 $4,095 

Not yet due 

Overdue 

0-90 days

Overdue 

91-180 days

Overdue 181 

Days Total 

As of December 31, 2022 

Expected loss rates  0.03%~0.72% 2.79% 27.85% 100.00% 

Total carrying amount $546,743 $137,474 $4,262 $6 $688,485 

Loss allowance $2,064 $3,836 $1,187 $6 $7,093 

The movement in the provision for impairment of note receivables, trade receivables finance 

lease receivable and long-term finance lease receivable for the years ended December 31, 

2023 and 2022 is as follows: 
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Notes receivables Trade receivables 

Finance lease 
receivable and 

long-term finance 
lease receivable 

As of January 1, 2023 $69 $6,968 $56 
Addition/(reversal) for the 

current period 
(22) (2,724) (22) 

Exchange differences - (230) - 
As of December 31, 2023 $47 $4,014 $34 

Notes receivables Trade receivables 

Finance lease 
receivable and 

long-term finance 
lease receivable 

As of January 1, 2022 $93 $4,415 $87 
Addition/(reversal) for the 

current period 
(24) 2,614 (31) 

Exchange differences - (61) - 
As of December 31, 2022 $69 $6,968 $56 

(20) Leases

A. Group as a lessee

The underlying assets leased by the Group included buildings and company cars, and the 
term of lease contracts usually ranged from 1 to 5 years. The Group’s lease contracts were 
individually negotiated and contain various terms and conditions. 

The lease term did not exceed 12 months, and leases of low-value underlying assets were 
multi-function printers and warehouses. 

The Group’s leases effect on the financial position, financial performance and cash flows 
are as follows: 

(a) Amounts recognized in the balance sheet

(i) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets 
As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Buildings $18,521 $40,748 
Miscellaneous equipment (company cars) 3,646 1,854 
Total $22,167 $42,602 
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For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s additions to right-

of-use assets amounted to NT$18,629 thousand and NT$12,174 thousand, 

respectively. 

(ii) Leases liabilities

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Current $19,253 $31,661 

Non-current 3,696 16,159 

Total $22,949 $47,820 

Please refer to Note 6 (22)(D) Financial Cost for the interest on lease liabilities 

recognized for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 and refer to Note 12 

(5) Liquidity Risk Management for the maturity analysis for lease liabilities as of

December 31, 2023 and 2022.

(b) Amounts recognized in the statement of comprehensive income

Depreciation charged for right-of-use assets 

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Buildings $27,394 $29,033 

Miscellaneous equipment (company cars) 1,853 1,722 

Total $29,247 $30,755 

(c) Rental expenditure relating to leasing activities

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

The expenses relating to short-term leases $6,533 $3,178 

The expense relating to leases of low-value assets 286 596 

(Excluding the expenses relating to short-term leases 

of low-value assets) 

(d) Cash outflow relating to leasing activities

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, the Group’s total cash outflows for 

leases amounted to NT$30,646 thousand and NT$21,314 thousand, respectively. 
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B. Group as a lessor

The Group signed lease contracts for digital printing assets and multi-function printers, the 

lease term ranged from 1 to 9 years, and the lease contracts were individually negotiated 

and contained various terms and conditions. Leases are classified as finance leases as they 

transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of underlying assets. 

The Group leased the digital printing assets under finance leases. The profit or loss related 

to the lease contracts is as follows: 

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Lease income for finance leases $1,370 $2,077 

Analysis of the maturity date of the undiscounted lease payments leased by the Group under 

finance leases is as follows: 

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

2023 $- $22,528 

2024 12,338 12,338 

2025 12,490 12,490 

2026 11,168 11,168 

2027 4,556 4,556 

After 2028 2,278 2,278 

Total undiscounted lease payments $42,830 $65,358 

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Undiscounted lease payments $42,830 $65,358 

Unearned finance income  (1,782) (3,151) 

Gross carrying amount 41,048 62,207 

Loss allowance - Finance lease receivable and long-term 

finance lease receivable 

(34) (56)

Net investment in the lease $41,014 $62,151 

Current $11,412 $21,103 

Non-current $29,602 $41,048 
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Operating leases 

Please refer to Note 6 (8) for relevant disclosure of property, plant and equipment for 

operating leases under IFRS 16. For operating leases entered by the Group, the 

undiscounted lease payments to be received and a total of the amounts for the remaining 

years as of December 31, 2023 are as follows: 

As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Not later than one year $80 $62 

Later than one year but not later than two years - - 

Total $80 $62 

(21) Summary statement of employee benefits, depreciation and amortization expenses by function

during the years ended March 31, 2023 and 2022:

By function 

By nature 

For the years ended December 31, 

2023 2022 

Operating 

costs 

Operating 

expenses Total 

Operating 

costs 

Operating 

expenses Total 

Employee benefits expense 

Salaries and wages $- $291,881 $291,881 $- $281,083 $281,083 

Labor and health insurance - 11,505 11,505 - 11,553 11,553 

Pension - 21,264 21,264 - 19,919 19,919 

Remuneration to directors - 15,598 15,598 - 2,853 2,853 

Other employee benefits expense - 7,100 7,100 - 7,432 7,432 

Depreciation - 41,410 41,410 119 42,178 42,297 

Amortization - 906 906 - 961 961 

According to the Articles of Incorporation, no lower than 4%~11% of profit of the current 

year is distributable as employees’ compensation and no higher than 3% of profit of the current 

year is distributable as remuneration to directors and superviosors. However, the Company's 

accumulated losses shall have been covered. The Company may, by a resolution adopted by 

a majority vote at a meeting of Board of Directors attended by two-thirds of the total number 

of directors, have the profit distributable as employees’ compensation in the form of shares or 

in cash; and in addition thereto a report of such distribution is submitted to the shareholders’ 

meeting. Information on the Board of Directors’ resolution regarding the employees’ 

compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors can be obtained from the “Market 

Observation Post System” on the website of the TWSE. 
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Based on the profit of the year ended December 31, 2023, the Company estimated the amounts 

of the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year 

ended December 31, 2023 according to the percentage stipulated in the Articles of 

Incorporation. As such, the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and 

supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2023 amounted to NT$11,997 thousand and 

NT$2,399 thousand, respectively, which were recognized as employee benefits expenses. 

Based on the profit of the year ended December 31, 2022, the Company estimated the amounts 

of the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year 

ended December 31, 2022 according to the percentage stipulated in the Articles of 

Incorporation. As such, the employees’ compensation and remuneration to directors and 

supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2022 amounted to NT$14,263 thousand and 

NT$2,853 thousand, respectively, which were recognized as employee benefits expenses. 

A resolution was passed in the board meeting held on March 7, 2024 to distribute NT$11,997 

thousand and NT$2,399 thousand in cash as employees’ compensation and remuneration to 

directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2023, respectively. No material 

differences existed between the estimated amount and the actual distribution of the employee 

compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 

2023. 

A resolution was passed in the board meeting held on March 3, 2023 to distribute NT$14,263 

thousand and NT$2,853 thousand in cash as employees’ compensation and remuneration to 

directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 2022, respectively. No material 

differences existed between the estimated amount and the actual distribution of the employee 

compensation and remuneration to directors and supervisors for the year ended December 31, 

2022. 

(22) Non-operating income and expenses

A. Interest income

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Interest on bank deposits $42,328 $15,720 

Interest income on financial assets measured at 

amortized cost 

2,587 1,490 

Investment income on finance leases 1,370 2,077 

Other interest income 1,015 1,213 

Total $47,300 $20,500 
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B. Other income

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Dividend income $5,339 $7,019 

Rental income 80 80 

Total $5,419 $7,099 

C. Other gains and losses

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss $10,733 $6,540 

Foreign exchange gains, net 5,418 11,192 

Other gains 2,180 13,477 

(Losses) gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (468) 1,353

Total $17,863 $32,562 

D. Finance costs

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Interest on borrowings from bank $11,167 $9,093 

Interest on lease liabilities 1,357 2,282 

Other financial expenses 181 8,004 

Total $12,705 $19,379 

(23) Components of other comprehensive income

Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2023: 

Arising during 

the period 

 Reclassification 

adjustments 

during the 

period 

Other 

comprehensive 

income Income tax 

Other 

comprehensive 

income, net of 

tax 

To be reclassified to profit or loss in 

subsequent periods: 

Exchange differences resulting from 

translating the financial statements of a 

foreign operation 

$(6,338) $- $(6,338) $- $(6,338) 
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Other comprehensive income for the year ended December 31, 2022: 

Arising during 

the period 

 Reclassification 

adjustments 

during the 

period 

Other 

comprehensive 

income Income tax 

Other 

comprehensive 

income, net of 

tax 

Not to be reclassified to profit or loss in 

subsequent periods: 

Remeasurements of defined benefit plans $625 $- $625 $(126) $499 

Unrealized gains (losses) from equity 

instruments investments measured at fair 

value through other comprehensive 

income 

(521) - (521) - (521) 

To be reclassified to profit or loss in 

subsequent periods: 

Exchange differences resulting from 

translating the financial statements of a 

foreign operation 

114,984 - 114,984 - 114,984

Total $115,088 $- $115,088 $(126) $114,962 

(24) Income tax

The major components of income tax expense (income) for the years ended December 31,
2023 and 2022 are as follows:

Income tax income (expense) recognized in profit or loss
 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 
Current income tax expense (income): 
Current income tax payable $96,687 $79,442 
Higher estimates of income tax in previous fiscal years (39) (591)
Deferred tax expense (income): 
Deferred tax expense (income) relating to origination and 

reversal of temporary differences 
9,171 80

Income tax expense $105,819 $78,931 

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive income 

 For the years ended December 31, 
2023  2022 

Deferred tax expense (income): 
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans $- $(126) 

Income tax relating to components of other comprehensive 
income 

$- $(126) 
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A reconciliation between tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by 

applicable tax rates is as follows: 

 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Profit (loss) before tax from continuing operations $419,179 $468,343 

Tax at the domestic rates applicable to profits in the 

country concerned 

$128,772 $127,460 

Tax effect of deferred tax assets/liabilities (9,171) - 

Profit-seeking enterprise income tax on undistributed 

earnings 

3,946 - 

Higher (lower) estimates of income tax in previous fiscal 

years 

(39) (591)

Tax effect of revenues exempt from taxation (53,685) (47,938) 

Other income tax adjustments in accordance with the tax 

laws and regulations 

35,996 - 

Total income tax expense (income) recognized in profit or 

loss 

$105,819 $78,931 

Deferred tax assets (liabilities) relating to the following: 

For the year ended December 31, 2023 

Beginning 

balance 

Recognized in 

profit or loss 

Recognized in 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

Ending 

Balance 

Temporary differences 

Unrealized inventory valuation loss $8,341 $(2,967) $- $5,374 

Allowance for unused leaves 878 (8) - 870 

Allowance for doubtful debts 2,333 (151) - 2,182 

Impairment loss 1,588 - - 1,588 

Others 1,544 (187) - 1,357 

Unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses (2,514) (327) - (2,841) 

Tax losses 11,382 (5,531) - 5,851

Deferred tax income (expense) $(9,171) $- 

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $23,552 $14,381 

Information expressed in balance sheet as 

follows: 

Deferred tax assets $26,066 $17,222 

Deferred tax liabilities $2,514 $2,841 
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 

Beginning 

balance 

Recognized in 

profit or loss 

Recognized in 

other 

comprehensive 

income 

Ending 

Balance 

Temporary differences 

Unrealized inventory valuation loss $7,054 $1,287 $- $8,341 

Allowance for unused leaves 878 - - 878 

Allowance for doubtful debts 2,333 - - 2,333 

Impairment loss 1,588 - - 1,588 

Others 2,139 (469) (126) 1,544 

Unrealized foreign exchange gains or losses (1,616) (898) - (2,514) 

Tax losses 11,382 - - 11,382 

Deferred tax income (expense) $(80) $(126) 

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) $23,758 $23,552 

Information expressed in balance sheet as 

follows: 

Deferred tax assets $25,374 $26,066 

Deferred tax liabilities $1,616 $2,514 

The assessment of income tax returns 

As of December 31, 2023, the assessment of the income tax returns of the Company and its 
domestic subsidiaries is all approved to 2021. 

(25) Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing net profit for the year attributable 
to ordinary equity holders of the parent entity by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the year. 

Diluted earnings per share amounts are calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to 
ordinary equity holders of the parent entity (after adjusting for interest on the convertible 
preference shares) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
year plus the weighted average number of ordinary shares that would be issued on conversion 
of all the dilutive potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares. 

 For the years ended December 31, 
2023  2022 

A. Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

Company (in thousand NT$) 
$245,089 $320,201 

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 
for basic earnings per share (in thousands) 

62,089 58,305 

Basic earnings per share (NT$) $3.95 $5.49 
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 For the years ended December 31, 
2023  2022 

B. Diluted earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the

Company (in thousand NT$) 
$245,089 $320,201 

Effect of dilution: 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

for basic earnings per share (in thousands) 
62,089 58,305 

Employee compensation－stock (in thousands) 216 306 
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding 

after dilution (in thousands) 
62,305 58,611 

Diluted earnings per share (NT$) $3.93 $5.46 

There have been no other transactions involving ordinary shares or potential ordinary shares 
between the reporting date and the date of completion of the financial statements. 

(26) Changes in parent’s interest in subsidiaries

Acquisition of additional interest in a subsidiary 

In March 2022, the Group’s consolidated subsidiary, DeepStone, purchased the issued shares 
of the consolidated subsidiary, Topteam Information Co., Ltd., resulting in the Group’s 
ownership interest held in the company adjusted to 100%. The transaction reduced the non-
controlling interests in the amount of NT$406 thousand. 

Acquisition of new shares in a subsidiary not in proportionate to ownership interest 

On June 28, 2022, the Group’s consolidated subsidiary, GrandTech Cloud Services Inc., 
proceeded with cash capital increase and issued new shares. The Group subscribed NT$40,000 
thousand to the new shares, but its ownership interest decreased by 2.57% due to not subscribe 
to its original shareholding ratio. 

(27) Subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests

The Group’s total non-controlling interests for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 
amounted to NT$304,860 thousand and NT$338,718 thousand, respectively. Information on 
non-controlling interests and subsidiaries that are material to the Group is as follows: 

Name of subsidiaries 
 Country of incorporation and 

operation 
As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Senco-Masslink Hong Kong 45% 45% 
GrandTech Cloud Taiwan 24.86% 24.86% 

Note: The above-mentioned shareholding ratio represents the comprehensive shareholding 
ratio of the Group based on the non-controlling interests, except for the subsidiaries held 
by the above-mentioned companies. Therefore, the following financial information is 
consolidated financial information. 
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As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Accumulated balances of material non-controlling interest: 
Senco-Masslink $102,139 $148,884 
GrandTech Cloud 110,187 99,208 

 For the years ended December 31,
2023  2022 

Profit/(loss) allocated to material non-controlling interest: 
Senco-Masslink $35,460 $39,119 
GrandTech Cloud 18,951 18,494 

This information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations. 

The summarized financial information of Senco-Masslink is provided below. This information 
is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations. 

Balance sheet 
As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Current assets $348,636 $468,144 
Non-current assets 73,009 90,286 
Current liabilities (194,670) (216,460) 
Non-current liabilities - (11,117)
Total net assets $226,975 $330,853 

Statement of comprehensive income 
 For the years ended December 31,

2023  2022 
Operating Revenue $2,546,943 $2,525,328 
Profit before income tax 94,177 102,220 
Income tax expense (15,378) (15,289) 
Net income 78,799 86,931 
Other comprehensive income (post-tax) - - 
Total comprehensive income $78,799 $86,931 

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest $81,675 $72,477 

Statement of cash flows 
 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 
Net cash provided by operating activities $107,015 $13,869 
Net cash used in financing activities (181,460) (75,000) 
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents (74,445) (61,131) 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 135,635 196,766 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $61,190 $135,635 
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The summarized financial information of GrandTech Cloud is provided below. This 
information is based on amounts before inter-company eliminations. 

Balance sheet  
As of December 31, 

2023 2022 

Current assets $551,600 $515,621 
Non-current assets 156,759 125,140 
Current liabilities (255,449) (237,937) 
Non-current liabilities (9,680) (3,757) 

Total net assets $443,230 $399,067 

Statement of comprehensive income  
 For the years ended December 31,

2023  2022 

Operating Revenue $1,051,781 $876,206 

Profit before income tax 94,671 89,408 
Income tax expense (18,314) (17,044) 

Net income 76,357 72,364 
Other comprehensive income (post-tax) (127) 2,027

Total comprehensive income $76,230 $74,391 

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest $5,889 $374 

Statement of cash flows  
 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $22,742 $(20,360) 
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities (8,626) 5,983 
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (75,444) 116,104 
Effect of changes in exchange rate on cash and cash equivalents  (137) 2,047

(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (61,465) 103,774 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 191,254 87,480 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period $129,789 $191,254 

7. Related party transactions

Key management personnel compensation  
 For the years ended December 31, 

2023  2022 

Short-term employee benefits $40,345 $40,269 
Post-employment benefits 588 522 

Total $40,933 $40,791 
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8. Assets pledged as security

The following table lists assets of the Group pledged as security:

Carrying Amount 

Items 
As of December 31, 

Secured liabilities 2023 2022 
Property, plant and equipment 

Land $90,581 $90,581  Short-term borrowings 
Buildings 12,826 12,694  Short-term borrowings 

Total $103,407 $103,275 

9. Significant contingencies and unrecognized contractual commitments

As of December 31, 2023, the Group’s guaranteed bills issued for the bank loans amounted to
NT$1,630,000 thousand.

10. Losses due to major disasters

None.

11. Significant subsequent events

The Company’s appropriation of earnings for the three-month period ended December 31, 2023
was resolved by the Board of Directors on March 7, 2024. Please refer to Note 6 (16) for details.

12. Others

(1) Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Financial asset at fair value through profit or loss 
Financial assets mandatorily measured at fair value 

through profit or loss 
$216,343 $208,278 

Financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income 

8,479 8,479 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 
Cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand and 

revolving funds) 
1,409,892 1,394,695 

Financial assets measured at amortized cost 107,898 60,816 
Notes receivables 37,189 19,496 
Trade receivables 608,918 599,745 
Finance lease receivable and long-term finance lease 

receivable 
41,014 62,151 

Other receivables 20,191 19,521 
Refundable deposits 73,057 72,870 

Total $2,522,981 $2,446,051 
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Financial liabilities 
As of December 31, 
2023 2022 

Financial liabilities at amortized cost 
Short-term borrowings $750,000 $580,000 
Payables 464,537 468,396 
Other payables 170,183 188,536 
Leases liabilities (including non-current) 22,949 47,820 

Total $1,407,669 $1,284,752 

(2) Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s principal financial risk management objective is to manage the market risk, credit 
risk and liquidity risk related to its operating activates. The Group identifies measures and 
manages the aforementioned risks based on the Group’s policy and risk appetite. 

The Group has established appropriate policies, procedures and internal controls for financial 
risk management. Before entering into significant transactions, due approval process by the 
Board of Directors and Audit Committee must be carried out based on related protocols and 
internal control procedures. The Group complies with its financial risk management policies 
at all times. 

(3) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will 
fluctuate because of the changes in market prices. Market prices comprise currency risk, 
interest rate risk and other price risk (such as equity risk). 

In practice, it is rarely the case that a single risk variable will change independently from other 
risk variable, there is usually interdependencies between risk variables. However, the 
sensitivity analysis disclosed below does not take into account the interdependencies between 
risk variables. 

Foreign currency risk 

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the 
Group’s operating activities (when revenue or expense are denominated in a different currency 
from the Group’s functional currency) and the Group’s net investments in foreign subsidiaries. 

The Group has certain foreign currency receivables to be denominated in the same foreign 
currency with certain foreign currency payables, therefore natural hedge is received. The 
Group also uses forward contracts to hedge the foreign currency risk on certain items 
denominated in foreign currencies. Hedge accounting is not applied as they did not qualify for 
hedge accounting criteria. Furthermore, as net investments in foreign subsidiaries are for 
strategic purposes, they are not hedged by the Group. 
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The foreign currency sensitivity analysis of the possible change in foreign exchange rates on 

the Group’s profit is performed on significant monetary items denominated in foreign 

currencies as of the end of the reporting period. The Group’s foreign currency risk is mainly 

related to the volatility in the exchange rates for USD and HKD. The information of the 

sensitivity analysis is as follows: 

A. When NTD strengthens/weakens against USD by 1%, the profit for the years ended

December 31, 2023 and 2022 would increase/decrease by NT$512 thousand and NT$595

thousand, respectively.

B. When NTD strengthens/weakens against HKD by 1%, the profit for the years ended

December 31, 2023 and 2022 would increase/decrease by NT$159 thousand and NT$53

thousand, respectively.

Interest rate risk 

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument 

will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Group’s exposure to the risk of 

changes in market interest rates primarily relates to the Group’s bank loans at variable interest 

rates, which exposes the Group to interest rate risk of cash flows. 

The Group simulates multiple scenarios and analyzes interest rate risks, including considering 

refinancing, renewal of existing contracts, other available financing and hedging, etc., to 

calculate the effect of changes in specific interest rates on profit or loss. The same interest rate 

movement is applied to all currencies for each simulation scenario. These simulation scenarios 

are only applied to material liabilities of interest calculation. 

When the interest on borrowings of New Taiwan Dollars increases or decreases by 1%, and 

all other factors remain unchanged, the profit after tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 

and 2022 would decrease/increase by NT$7,697 thousand and NT$4,640 thousand, 

respectively. This is mainly caused by the changes in interest expenses due to loans at variable 

interest rates. 

Equity price risk 

The Group’s equity instruments exposed to price risk are financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss and financial assets measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

The Group manages the price risk of equity instrument investments by diversifying its 

investment portfolio in an approach based on the limit set by the Group. 
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The Group mainly invests in the equity instruments issued by the domestic companies. The 

prices of these equity instruments are susceptible to market price risk arising from 

uncertainties about future values of the investment objectives. When the price of the equity 

instrument increases or decreases by 10%, and all other factors remain unchanged, the gains 

or losses on the profit after tax for the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022 arising from 

the equity instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss would increase/decrease 

by NT$21,634 thousand and NT$20,828 thousand, respectively; gains or losses on other 

comprehensive income arising from classification as equity investments measured at fair 

value through other comprehensive income would increase/decrease by NT$848 thousand and 

NT$848 thousand, repectively. 

(4) Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a contract, leading 

to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk from operating activities (primarily for 

trade receivables and notes receivable) and from its financing activities, including bank 

deposits and other financial instruments. 

Credit risk is managed by each business unit subject to the Group’s established policy, 

procedures and control relating to credit risk management. Credit limits are established for all 

counterparties based on their financial position, rating from credit rating agencies, historical 

experience, prevailing economic condition and the Group’s internal rating criteria etc. Certain 

counter parties’ credit risk will also be managed by taking credit enhancing procedures, such 

as requesting for prepayment or insurance. 

Credit risk from balances with banks and other financial instruments is managed by the 

Group’s treasury in accordance with the Group’s policy. The Group only transacts with 

counterparties approved by the internal control procedures, which are banks and financial 

institutions, companies and government entities with good credit rating. Consequently, there 

is no significant credit risk for these counter parties. 

The Group adopted IFRS 9 to assess the expected credit losses. The loss allowance of trade 

receivables is measured at lifetime expected credit losses, the remaining debt instrument 

investments which are not measured at fair value through profit or loss, low credit risk for 

these investments is a prerequisite upon acquisition and by using their credit risk as a basis 

for the distinction of categories. The Group makes an assessment at each reporting date as to 

whether the debt instrument investments are still considered low credit risk, and then further 

determines the method of measuring the loss allowance and the loss rates. 

Financial assets are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery (the issuer 

or the debtor is in financial difficulties or bankruptcy). 
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(5) Liquidity risk management

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility 
through the use of cash and cash equivalents, highly liquid equity investments, bank 
borrowings, convertible bonds and finance leases. The table below summarizes the maturity 
profile of the Group’s financial liabilities based on the contractual undiscounted payments and 
contractual maturity. The payment amount includes the contractual interest. The undiscounted 
payment relating to borrowings with variable interest rates is extrapolated based on the 
estimated interest rate yield curve as of the end of the reporting period. 

Non-derivative financial instruments 

 Less than 1 year  2 to 3 years 4 to 5 years > 5 years Total 

As of December 31, 2023 

Borrowings $751,043 $- $- $- $751,043 

Payables 464,537 - - - 464,537 

Other payables 170,183 - - - 170,183 

Leases liabilities 20,309 3,389 129 - 23,827

 Less than 1 year  2 to 3 years 4 to 5 years > 5 years Total 

As of December 31, 2022 

Borrowings $580,572 $- $- $- $580,572 

Payables 468,396 - - - 468,396 

Other payables 188,536 - - - 188,536 

Leases liabilities 39,533 14,625 1,586 - 55,744

(6) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

Reconciliation of the liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2023 is as follows: 

Short-term 
borrowings 

Leases 
liabilities 

Total liabilities 
from financing 

activities 
As of January 1, 2023 $580,000 $47,820 $627,820 
Cash flows 170,000 (23,827) 146,173 
Non-cash changes - (1,044) (1,044) 
As of December 31, 2023 $750,000 $22,949 $772,949 

Reconciliation of the liabilities for the year ended December 31, 2022 is as follows: 

Short-term 
borrowings 

Leases 
liabilities 

Total liabilities 
from financing 

activities 
As of January 1, 2022 $660,000 $55,467 $715,467 
Cash flows (80,000) (17,540) (97,540) 
Non-cash changes - 9,893 9,893 
As of December 31, 2022 $580,000 $47,820 $627,820 
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(7) Fair values of financial instruments

A.The methods and assumptions applied in determining the fair value of financial instruments:

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability 

in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The 

following methods and assumptions were used by the Group to measure or disclose the fair 

values of financial assets and financial liabilities: 

(a) The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, accounts payable

and other current liabilities approximate their fair value due to their short maturities.

(b) For financial assets and liabilities traded in an active market with standard terms and

conditions, their fair value is determined based on market quotation price (including

listed equity securities, beneficiary certificates, bonds and futures etc.) at the reporting

date.

(c) Fair value of equity instruments without market quotations (including private

placement of listed equity securities, unquoted public company and private company

equity securities) are estimated using the market method valuation techniques based

on parameters such as prices based on market transactions of equity instruments of

identical or comparable entities and other relevant information (for example, inputs

such as discount for lack of marketability, P/E ratio of similar entities and Price-Book

ratio of similar entities).

(d) Fair value of debt instruments without market quotations, bank loans, bonds payable

and other non-current liabilities are determined based on the counterparty prices or

valuation method. The valuation method uses DCF method as a basis, and the

assumptions such as the interest rate and discount rate are primarily based on relevant

information of similar instrument (such as yield curves published by the GreTai

Securities Market, average prices for Fixed Rate Commercial Paper published by

Reuters and credit risk, etc.)

(e) The fair value of derivatives which are not options and without market quotations, is

determined based on the counterparty prices or discounted cash flow analysis using

interest rate yield curve for the contract period. Fair value of option-based derivative

financial instruments is obtained using on the counterparty prices or appropriate option

pricing model (for example, Black-Scholes model) or other valuation method (for

example, Monte Carlo Simulation).

B. The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities measured at

amortized cost is a reasonable approximation of their fair value.
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C. Fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments

Please refer to Note 12 (8) for fair value measurement hierarchy for financial instruments 

of the Group. 

(8) Fair value measurement hierarchy

A. Fair value measurement hierarchy

All asset and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, based on the lowest level input 

that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole. Level 1, 2 and 3 inputs are 

described as follows: 

Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date 

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly or indirectly 

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability 

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, 

the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between Levels in the hierarchy by 

re-assessing categorization at the end of each reporting period. 

B. Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities

The Group does not have assets that are measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis. 

Fair value measurement hierarchy of the Group’s assets and liabilities measured at fair 

value on a recurring basis is as follows: 

As of December 31, 2023: 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Assets measured at fair value: 

Financial asset at fair value through 

profit or loss 

Unlisted companies stocks $- $- $100,755 $100,755 

Beneficiary certificates - - 115,588 115,588 

Total $- $- $216,343 $216,343 

Financial assets measured at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive income 

Equity securities $- $- $8,479 $8,479 
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As of December 31, 2022: 
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total 

Assets measured at fair value: 
Financial asset at fair value through 

profit or loss 
Unlisted companies stocks $- $- $100,755 $100,755 
Preference shares of unlisted 

companies - - 13,396 13,396 
Beneficiary certificates - - 94,127 94,127 

Total $- $- $208,278 $208,278 

Financial assets measured at fair 
value through other 
comprehensive income 
Equity securities $- $- $8,479 $8,479 

Transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during the period 

For the years ended December 31, 2023 and 2022, there were no transfers between Level 
1 and Level 2 fair value measurements. 

Details of changes in Level 3 of the recurring fair value hierarchy 

Reconciliation for fair value measurements in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy for 
movements during the period is as follows: 

Assets 

Measured at 
fair value 

through profit 
or loss 

Measured at 
fair value 

through other 
comprehensive 

income 

Stocks Stocks Subtotal 

As of January 1, 2023 $208,278 $8,479 $216,757 
Total profit (loss) for the year ended 

December 31, 2023: 
Amount recognized in profit or loss 

(presented in “other profit or loss”) 
10,733 - 10,733

Acquisition/Issue for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 

10,861 - 10,861

Disposal/Settlement for the year ended 
December 31, 2023 

(13,486) - (13,486)

Exchange differences (43) - (43) 

As of December 31, 2023 $216,343 $8,479 $224,822 
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Assets 

Measured at 

fair value 

through profit 

or loss 

Measured at 

fair value 

through other 

comprehensive 

income 

Stocks Stocks Subtotal 

As of January 1, 2022 $148,085 $11,000 $159,085 

Total profit (loss) for the year ended 

December 31, 2022: 

Amount recognized in profit or loss 

(presented in “other profit or loss”) 

6,745 (521) 6,224

Acquisition/Issue for the year ended 

December 31, 2022 

47,652 - 47,652

Disposal/Settlement for the year ended 

December 31, 2022 

- (2,000) (2,000) 

Exchange differences 5,796 - 5,796

As of December 31, 2022 $208,278 $8,479 $216,757 

Information on significant unobservable inputs to valuation 

Description of significant unobservable inputs to valuation of recurring fair value 

measurements categorized within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy is as follows: 

As of December 31, 2023: 

Fair value 

Valuation 

techniques 

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs 

Relationship 

between inputs and 

fair value 

Non-derivative financial 

instruments: 

Unlisted companies 

stocks 

$100,755  Comparable to the 

Company Act of 

Exchange-Listed 

and OTC-Listed 

Companies 

 Price 

earnings 

ratios 

multiplier 

 The higher the 

multiplier, the 

higher the fair 

value 

 Discount for 

lack of 

marketability 

 The higher the 

discount for lack of 

marketability, the 

lower the fair value 

Investment of privately 

offered fund 

115,588  Net asset value 

method 

 Not 

applicable 

 Not applicable 
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As of December 31, 2022: 

Fair value 

Valuation 

techniques 

Significant 

unobservable 

inputs 

Relationship 

between inputs and 

fair value 

Non-derivative financial 

instruments: 

Unlisted companies 

stocks 

$114,151  Comparable to the 

Company Act of 

Exchange-Listed 

and OTC-Listed 

Companies 

 Price 

earnings 

ratios 

multiplier 

 The higher the 

multiplier, the 

higher the fair 

value 

 Discount for 

lack of 

marketability 

 The higher the 

discount for lack of 

marketability, the 

lower the fair value 

Investment of privately 

offered fund 

94,127  Net asset value 

method 

 Not 

applicable 

 Not applicable 

The Group selects the valuation model and valuation parameters after careful assessment. 

However, using different valuation models or valuation parameters may lead to different 

valuation results. For financial assets classified as Level 3, when there are changes in 

valuation parameters, the effect of the current profit or loss, or other comprehensive income 

is as follows: 

As of December 31, 2023 

Recognized in profit 

or loss  

Recognized in other 

comprehensive income 

Inputs Changes 

Favorable 

changes 

Adverse 

changes 

Favorable 

changes 

Adverse 

changes 

Financial assets 

Equity 

instruments 

 Discount for lack of 

marketability 

±1% $2,163 $(2,163) $85 $(85) 

As of December 31, 2022 

Recognized in profit 

or loss  

Recognized in other 

comprehensive income 

Inputs Changes 

Favorable 

changes 

Adverse 

changes 

Favorable 

changes 

Adverse 

changes 

Financial assets 

Equity 

instruments 

Discount for lack of 

marketability 

±1% $2,083 $(2,083) $85 $(85) 
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(9) Significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies

Information regarding the significant assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies 
is listed below: 

As of December 31, 2023 
Foreign 

currencies Exchange rate NTD 
Financial assets 
Monetary items: 

USD $5,750 30.74 $176,755 
HKD 3,251 7.81 25,390 

Financial liabilities 
Monetary items: 

USD $4,083 30.74 $125,511 
HKD 5,282 7.81 41,252 

As of December 31, 2022 
Foreign 

currencies Exchange rate NTD 
Financial assets 
Monetary items: 

USD $4,654 30.71 $142,924 
HKD 4,700 7.80 36,660 

Financial liabilities 
Monetary items: 

USD $2,716 30.71 $83,408 
HKD 4,526 7.80 35,303 

Due to the wide variety of individual entity functional currencies of the Group, it is not 
possible to disclose the exchange gains and losses of monetary financial assets and liabilities 
by each significant asset and liability denominated in foreign currencies. The foreign exchange 
(losses) gains amounted to NT$5,418 thousand and NT$11,192 thousand for the years ended 
December 31, 2023 and 2022, respectively. 

The above information is disclosed based on the carrying amount of foreign currency (after 
conversion to functional currency). 

(10) Capital management

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong 
credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize 
shareholder value. The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in 
light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group 
may adjust dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new 
shares. 

269



13. Other disclosure

(1) Information on significant transactions

A. Financing provided to others: Please refer to Attachment 1.
B. Endorsement/Guarantee provided to others: None.
C. Marketable securities held at the end of the period (excluding the portion held due to

investment in a subsidiary or an associate): Please refer to Attachment 2.
D. Individual securities acquired or disposed of with accumulated amount exceeding the lower

of NT$300 million or 20 percent of the paid-in capital: Please refer to Attachment 3.
E. Acquisition of real estate exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or 20 percent of paid-in

capital: None.
F. Disposal of individual real estate with amount exceeding the lower of NT$300 million or

20 percent of the paid-in capital: None.
G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties exceeding the lower of NT$100

million or 20 percent of paid-in capital: None.
H. Trade receivables from related parties exceeding the lower of NT$100 million or 20 percent

of paid-in capital: None.
I. Financial instruments and derivative transactions: Please refer to Attachment 3.
J. Significant inter-company transactions between consolidated entities: Please refer to

Attachment 4.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and related information of investee companies (excluding investees in 
Mainland China): Please refer to Attachment 5. 

(3) Information on investments in mainland China

A. Please refer to Attachment 6 for the basic information.

B. Significant direct or indirect transactions with the investee, its prices, terms of payment and
unrealized gain or loss: None.

(a) Amount and percentage of purchases, and ending balance and percentage of related
payables: None.

(b) Amount and percentage of sales, and ending balance and percentage of related
receivables: None.

(c) Property transactions and the amount of profit or loss generated therefrom: None.
(d) Ending balance and purpose of endorsements/guarantees or collaterals: None.
(e) The maximum balance, ending balance, interest rate and total current interest of

financing: None.
(f) Other transactions that have a significant influence on current profit or loss, or

financial position, such as rendering or receipt of services: None.
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(4) Information on major shareholders

Names, number of shares held and percentage of ownership for the Company’s shareholders

that hold more than 5%: Please refer to Attachment 7.

14. Segment information

(1) General information

The Group operates its business and makes decisions for the sales in each region, so the

management also uses this model to identify reportable segments.

The Group shall have two reportable segments: Taiwan region, and Hong Kong and Macao

regions. Taiwan region is located in Taipei and Kaohsiung; Hong Kong and Macao regions

are mainly located in Hong Kong. The main business and products in each region are

wholesale of office machinery and equipment, retail sales, and wholesale and retail of

information software.

(2) The information on profit or loss and assets of reportable segments

The information on reportable segments provided to the chief operating decision maker is as

follows:

For the year ended December 31, 2023

Taiwan 

region 

Hong Kong 

and Macao 

regions  Other regions 

Adjustment 

and write-off Total 

Revenue 

Revenue from external customer $1,299,721 $3,525,984 $384,519 $- $5,210,224 

Revenue from parent and consolidated 

subsidiaries 

91,850 373,527 63,800 (529,177) - 

Revenue from contracts with customers $1,391,571 $3,899,511 $448,319 $(529,177) $5,210,224 

Other revenue - rental receipt $- $- $82 $- $82 

Total revenue $1,391,571 $3,899,511 $448,401 $(529,177) $5,210,306 

Segment profit $397,967 $223,547 $206,467 $(408,802) $419,179 

Total segment assets $3,187,807 $1,002,854 $1,915,867 $(2,862,236) $3,244,292 
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For the year ended December 31, 2022 

Taiwan 

region 

Hong Kong 

and Macao 

regions  Other regions 

Adjustment 

and write-off Total 

Revenue 

Revenue from external customer $1,454,665 $3,550,743 $281,087 $- $5,286,495 

Revenue from parent and consolidated 

subsidiaries 

113,528 310,438 20,129 (444,095) - 

Revenue from contracts with customers $1,568,193 $3,861,181 $301,216 $(444,095) $5,286,495 

Other revenue - rental receipt $- $- $324 $- $324 

Total revenue $1,568,193 $3,861,181 $301,540 $(444,095) $5,286,819 

Segment profit $445,870 $255,403 $203,896 $(436,826) $468,343 

Total segment assets $3,030,085 $1,154,597 $1,721,405 $(2,697,611) $3,208,476 

(3) The reconciliations of segment profit or loss

Inter-segment sales are conducted on an arm’s length basis. External revenue is reported to

the chief operating decision maker and is measured in the same method as revenue in the

statement of income.
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